T lames Hoffs, International General President
FROM.: Independent Review Board

RE: Proposed Charges against former Local 439 Secretary-Treasurer
Samuel Rosas and former President Armando Alonzo

DATE: February 27, 2015

L. RECOMMENDATION

The Independent Review Board (“IRB"} recommeands to the 18T General President that
charges be filed against former Locz| 438 Secretany-Treasurer and principal officer Samuel
Rosas {"Rosas”) for bringing reproach upon the BT and abusing his fiduciary positlon through
engaging in a pattern of criminal conduct, Including racketeering acts. Rosas’ misconduct
ncluded ambezriement, mail fraud, soliciting and receiving a thing of value from an employer,
receiving an illegal loan from the Local and violating federal criminal statutes mandating the

keeping of Local records.? it is also recommended that former Local 439 President Armando

1 Articie XI¥, sectlon 7lb) of the |BT Constitution provides in pertinent part that the basis for disciplinary
charges against IBT members and offlcers includes:

(] Winkatlon of any specific provislon of the Constitution, Local Union Bylaws . ..
{2] violation of oath of offlee . ..

{3} Breaching a fiductary obligation owed to sny labor organization by any act of
embezziement or conversion af unlon’s funds or property.

15} Conduct which |s distuptive of, interferes with, or induces others to disrupt or interfere with,
the perfarmance of any union's legal or contractual obligations,

{11) Committing any act of racketeering as defined by applicable law.

(£3] Arcepting money of other things of value from an employer or any agent of an
employer, in violation of applicable law.

{Ex. 3)




Alonzg, Jr. {“Alonzo”) be charged with embezzlement, bringing reproach upon the 1BY and
violating the federal record keeping statutes. In addition, 1t is recommended that both Rosas
and Alonzo be charged with bringing reproach upon tha union through breaching their fiduciary
guties and violating the Bylaws by causing the Local to make over 5845,000 in purthases
without the Executive Board approvals the Bylaws required and over $568,000 without
requirad membership approvais,

Ii. SUMMARY

Local 438, located in Stockton, California, had approximately 4,379 membets amployed
in varicus industries. {Ex. 22) Rosas was the Local's Secretary-Treasurer and principal officer
from 2001 through December 31, 2014. Alonzo was the Local's President from 2003 through
December 31, 2014,

A, Rosas

Rosas, the Local’s former principal officer, brought reproach upon the IBT and abused his
fiduclary position while Secretary-Treasurer through engaging in a patlern of criminal conduct
including racketeering acts. Rosas repeatedly breached his fiduclary duties and embezzled from
the Local when he caused the Locai to pay for persona expenses.? Among other things, Rosas
knowingly caused the Local to pay a business agent upon retirement over 515,000 in payments
the agent was not entitled to and to also give the retiree at Local expense 2 Hawaiian vacation

costing 53,484 withcut authority and without a union purpose. {Exs. 817, §5) In addition, Rosas

2 An officer’s embezzlement from a labor organization, 29 U.5.C. §501{c}, s an act of recketeering Under 18
Lh.5.C. 51961 and therefore 1s an act which every 1BT member Is enjoined from cammitting by the Injunction kn the
March 14, 1989 Consent Order 1n United States v, 18T, 88 Chv, 4486. {Ex. 1}




caused the Local to pay personal expenses upon falsified receipts, pay for expenses he incurred
that were covered by allowances he received and pay for his local area meals, hotel rooms and
other personal expenses without any union purpose. {Exs. 75, 527, 66)

In ather acts of racketeering, Rosas violated the mall fraud statute when he defrauded
California of tax due and owing it from him with the assistance of the owner of a vendor from
which Rpsas caused the Local to make substantial unauthorized purchases. (Ex. 407; Ex. 8 at
3961 The vendor, Stars and Stripes, was located in llinols. (Ex. 346} Stars and Stripes employed
members of a different Teamster Local, (Ex. 346} Rosas soficited the owner to make a false
representation to California on & form filed with the state to assist Rosas in not paylng tax due.
{Ex. B at 396-397; Ex. 407) Mallings were invoived in the scheme. (Ex. 8 at 398} In addition, since
the false representation to the state was assistance the employer provided Rosas to defraud
California, it was 2 thing of value Rosas solicited and received from an employer In violation of 18
U.5.C. §186{b).* In addition, Rosas knowingly paid the owner for the motorcycle a price for It
iess than its market value in violation of tha statute. {Ex. 8 at 358, 395; Ex. 14 at 69-70)

tn addition, Rosas requested and received from the Lotal over 52,000 in leans in
viniation of 28 U.5.C. §503 through a pattern of taking payments from the Local allegedly for
advences on vacation he had not yet earned. {Ex. 383)° As of luly 2013, Rosas had an illegal

loan totaling $4,375.50 based upon these advances. (Ex. 383) Rosas concealed his misconduct.

2 The mail fraud statute, 18 U.5.C. §1341, t5 an act of racketeartng under 18 U.5 €. §1961{a).

4 PUFSUANT to 28 UL.S.C. 5186{b1{1), a unlon officer's recetpt of a thing of value from an employer with intent
to Influsnes the officer's actlons or decislons is unlawful, Violating 29 U.5.C. §186{k){1) s an act of racketeering
under 18 U.5. C. §1981(a].

i 29 U.5.4. §503 prohibits a labot organization from making a direct or indirect loan over %2,00010 zn
officer or employes of such labor organization.




None of the money lent to Rosas was reporied on the 2013 Form Lii-2 as explicitly required.
{Exs. 22, 532} Rosas under cath signed the false form attesting that it was true, {Ex. 22) in
addition, Rosas, as did Alonzo, viclated the criminal and civil provisions of 29 L1.5.C. §R431, 436,
439, when he faiied to have the Local maintain records of the disposition of its assets. {Exs. 272,

474)

B, Alenzo

Alonzo, the Lotal's former President, brought reproach upon the BT, hreached his
fiduclary dutles and embezzled from the Local when with Rosas he knowingly caused the Locel
to pay a retlring business agent over $15,000 for unused vacation to which he was not entitled.
{Ex. 617) In addition, Alonzo breached his fiduciary duties and embezzled when he caused the
Local to pay for expenses that did not benefit the union. These personal expenses he caused the
tocal to pay included meals and hotel rooms in Stockton. [Exs. 310, 528} 1t also included Raiders
tickets for himseff and his guests. (Ex. 528} As noted above, he also violated his obiigations under
federal law concerning record keeping.

C. Rosas and Ajonzo Spent Local Money in Violation of the Bylaws and
Thelr Fiduciary Duties

in addition, over at least five years, Rosas and Alonzo engaged in pervasive violations of
the Local’s Bylaws that restricted their power to spend Local money and breached their
fiduciary duties to the members. Between 2008 and 2013, in viclation of the Bylaws Rosas and
Alonzo caused the Local to spend $845,853 without required Board approvals. {Ex. 78] These
expenditures Included purchases of cars and trucks, tickets to sporting events and costs in

connection with parties and fishing trips, {Exs. 78, 566) [n addition, between 2008 and 2013,




also in violation of the Bylaws, Rosas and Alonzo czused the Local to spend 4568, 761 without
required membership approvals for substantial non-routine expenditures, including those
redated to sporting events and merchandise purchases. {Exs, 348, 511}¢ In doing so, they
hreached their fiduclary duties to the members, 29 U.5.C. 8501(a), and viclated Sections
14{B)(8} and 16(C) of the Bylaws. (Ex. 5 at 16, 22-23)

Relatedly, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to pay for over $43,000 in expenditures
Rosas charged to the Local's credit card and caused the Local 1o pay without submitting receipis
and having the Local maintain receipts. (Exs. 352, 600) The Local’s Bylaws, IBT policy and
federal law all required the Local to have supporting documentation for all expenditures, {29
U.S.C. 65431, 436, 439; Ex, 552; Ex. 5 at 21; Ex. 4 at 2}

D. Rosas and Alenzo Falied to Have the Local Record the Disposition of [tems it
Owsed in Violation of Federal Law

Furthermore, in violation of federal law, 29 U.S.C. §§431, 436, 439, Rosas and Alonzo
failed to maintain required records to show the disposition of substantial amounts of
merchandise they caused the Local to purchase including televisions, appliances, other

electronics, liguor, gift cards and shirts. (Ex. 8 at 391; Ex. 10 at 47-48; Exs. 273, 474, 552y

& The Executive Board never adopted a policy as 10 what was 2 substantial expense requiring membaers’
approval, (Ex. & at 34-38) For purpases of this report, purchases over %1,000 were considered to be substantial.

? pursuant ta 29 U.5.C. §431(h), all iabor organization: must flle anaus! reports containing, among ather
things, “assets and Nabilities at the beginning znd end of the fiseal year” and "other dishursements made by it
inchuding the purposes thereof.” {Ex. 552) Title 29 U.5.C. §436 provides,

Evety person required to file any report under [this subchapter] shall maintain records on the
matters required to be reported which will provide In sufficient detall the necessary basic
information and data from which the documants filed with the Secretary may te verified,
explained or clarfled, and checked for accuracy and completeness, and shall include vouchers,
worksheats, receipts, and applicalle resolutions, and shall keep such records avallable for
exarmination for a period of not less than flve years after the filing of the documents based on the
information which they contain.




They caused over $72,000 in Local assets to be disposed of with ho Local records reflecting the
dispositions. (Exs, 542, 541, 396, 272, 564) Under Section 436 they were personally
responsible to ensure the Local maintained such records and pursuant to Section 433, its
violation could be prosecuted criminally. 29 U.5.C. 55436, 439.
Ik, JURSECTION

Pursuant to Article XX, Section 14{c) of the IBT Constitution, this matter is within the
jurisdiction of the IBT General President. Paragraph G (e} of the March 14, 1889 Consent Crder

in United States v. |BT, 88 Civ. 4486 {$.D.N.Y.} and Paragraph I{&) of the Rules and Procadures

for Operation of the Independent Review Board (“IRB Rules”) require that within S0 days of the
IRB's refarral of a maiter ta the General President, the Ge_neral Prasident must flie with the IRB
written findings setting forth the specific action taken and the reascns for that action. Pursuant
to Paragraph 1{8} of the {RB Rule:_s, not meeting this _deadline may bg considered a failure to
cooperate with the IRB. Given recent IBT fall_u_n_‘:_l_ to comply with the Consent Decree deadlines,
it Is on notice that compliance is obligatory.

V. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS

A. Former Local 439 Officers and 5taff

After an election in |ate 2014, as of January 2, 2015, there was a new Executive Board at

the Lacal.

1. Former Secretary-Treasurar Samuel Rosas

{Fx. 552] Titla 25 L.5.C. §433(3) provides for crimlnat sanctions for willful viclations of the subthapter, [Ex. 552]




Rosas began working full-time ai the Local in 1999, {Ex, & at §) The Board appointed him
Secretary-Treasurer and principal officer in 2001. (Ex, 8 at 7-91% In 2013, the Local paid him
$97,243 in salary and $6,000 in aliowances, {Ex. 22} In addition, that year he had $29,618 In
disbursements for officizl business. (Ex. 22)

Since 2011, Rosas was a Trustee of ioint Council 7. {Exs. 37-38} in 2013, the loint
Council paid him $10,465. {Ex. 33)

Z. Former President Armande Alonzo, Je.

Alonzo Joined Local 439 in 1980, (Ex. 10 at 5} He became Presldent beginning in January
2008, [Ex. 10 at 9} In 2013, the Local paid him $91,418 in salary and $13,800 In allowances.
(Ex. 22) That year, Alonzo had $21,973 in disbursements for union business. {Ex. 22}

3. Other Former Executive Board Membears

The other ex-Board members were not emplayess of the Local. Rafael Choluia
{"Chotula”) had been the Local's Recording Secretary since 2012, {Ex. 21; Ex. 16 at &-8) He
worked for a Local employer. (Ex. 16 at 6)° Daniel Lee {“Lee”) had been the Local's Vice
President since 2009, (Ex. 18) He worked for a Locat employer. (Ex. 15 at 3) He had been a
Local officer since 2000, (Ex. 15 at 5§)*° The Local’s Trustees were Chuck Tryon {“Tryon™}, loe
Delgado {"Delgadc”) and Alex Parra ("Parra”). (Exs. 22, 36) Tryon and Parra were employed at

Local 439 employers, Tryon had been a Trustee for approximately fifteen years. {Ex. 17 at 8)

E Rosas joined the Local In 1994 {Fx. 7]

a In 2013, the Loce] paid Cholulz $10,396 and he received 55,100 in allowances. {Ex. 22} That year Cholula
had $776 In dishursaments for unlon business, (Ex, 22}

to In 2013, the Local paid Lee 52,513 and he recelved $5,100 in ailowances, {Ex. 22} That year Lee had 5729
in dishursemants for unlon business, (Ex. 22)




At a May 21, 2014 Executive Board meeting, the Board voted to appoint Parra 2 Trustee
effective June 1, 2014. (Ex. 36) Delgado had been a Trustee since 2012, {Ex. 21)1' Delgadeis
Alonzo’s brother-in-law and continued as Trustee of the Local after he was ineligible to hold
office beginning in June 2013. {Ex. 10 at 10; £x, 13 at 9}

Antonig Camacho ["Camache™) was 8 Trustee from January 1, 2002 until June 1, 2014
when he resigned. (Exs. 557, 367) On May 15, 2014, Camacha became a business agent. {Ex.
36)

4. Business Agents

Besides Camacha, the Local employed five husiness agents who were Local members
hut not Loca) officers; Rick Buzo (“Buzo”}, Reuben Moreno, Robert Nicewonger, Mario Flores
and Richard Andazola ["Andazola™). (Ex. 22) Albart De La Cruz ("De ta Cruz"} was a business
agent who was suspended as of March 23, 2014 and fired as of November 15, 2014. {Ex. 14 at

11, 17) His termination letter was from the Executive Board, {Ex, 14 at 11)

B. Rosas and Alonzo Engaged in a Pattern of Violating the Bylaws and Breaching Their
Fiduciary Dutles to the Members by Violating Legal Restraints on their Power o Spend
Local Money

Raosas and Alonzo violated legal restraints on their power to spend Local meoney, They
routinely violated the Bylaws by falling to obtain the required Board approvals for Local

expenditures they caused to be made. This included the purchases and sales of cars and trucks

B Delgado hat previously been a Trustee for two three year terms endlng in 1927 or 1938, {Ex. 13 at 7-8)

12 Delgado retired from UPS In May 2013, {Ex. B at 168-168) Despite not working for an emplayer, he
continued 25 a Local member paying hls dues. {Ex. 7] Under the IBT Constitution, after he ratired he was inellgible
o be @ Board member. Article H, Section 4{e) of the BT Constitutian provides that "officers wha are not full time
employees”, not empioyed in the craft snd not receiving 2 salary from the bocal for performing work do not meet
the requirements for holding office. {Ex. 3]




as well as loant to finance them. [ addition, in connection with substaniial purchases of non-
routine items, such as tickets to sporting events, expenditures for fishing trips and Locat parties,
Rosas and Alonzo viplated the Bylaws by failing to obtain hoth required Board and members’
approvais, Between 2008 and 2013, Rosas and Alohzo caused the Local to spend at least
5845 853 without the reguired Board approvals. (Exs. 78, 77, 349, 566) Between 2008 and
2013, Rosas and Alenza caused the Local to spend at least S568,761 without the required
members’ approvals in connection with non-routine substantial expenditures such as tickets to
sporting events, fishing trips and merchandlse purchases. [Exs. 348, £il) In spending money
without legal authority, Rosas and Alonzo breached their fiduclary duties to the membars,
Under Sectlon 29 U.S.C. §501({a), officers are in a fiduciary relationship with the union and its
members. As such, they are under an express obligation to spend the union’s funds .. . In
aceordance with its constitutlon and bylaws . . .. {29 U.5.C. §501{a))

Furthermore, in viclation of federal law, Rosas and Alonzo failed to maintain required
records to show the disposition of substantial amounts of merchandise they caused the Local to
purchase intluding televisions, appliances, other electronics, liquor, shirts and gift cards, {(Ex. 8

at 391; Ex. 10 at 47-48; Exs. 273, 474, 564)

1. Rosas and Alonzo Engaged in a Pattern of Causing the Local to
Make Car Purchases and Trate-ins Without the Required
Executive Board Approvals

A, Car Purchases and Trade-ins

Sectian 16(C) of the Bylaws provides, “Upon authorization of the Local Union Executive
Roard, the principal executive officer is empowered to seli, exchange or lease automoblles ar

arrange financing thereof in [sic] behaif of the Local Union.” (Ex. 5at 22) inviolation of this




Bylaw provision, without Board approvals between October 2008 and May 2014, Rosas and
Alonzo caused the tocal to purchase seven cars costing $275,748. {Exs. 77, 80-87, 30-361% In
2008, 2010, 2012 and 2014, without the required authority, Rasas signed the car purchase

“agreements Tor five of these cars totaling £176,726. (Exs. 77, 80-82, 87-87, 30, 32, 34, 36} In
2011, Alonzo without the required authority signed the car purchase agreements for fwo of
these cars costing $99,022. (Exs. 77, 83-84, 33)

In addition, between February 2011 and May 2014, four Local cars were traded-in. {Exs.
77,80-87) There were no required approvals abtained for the trade-ins of any of these cars.
{Exs. 33-36)" After 2008, the only two full time officers were Rosas and Alonzo.'¢ Without
authority, Rosas explicitly authorized the trade-in of two cars and Alonzo alsa sighed for the

trade-in of two cars. (Exs. 77, 83-84, 86-87)

e tn May 2014, the Lacal purchased two vehicles 2nd obtalned required Executtve Board approval one week
after the purchase had been made. Such retroactive approval does not cure the Bylaw viclation since the Local
funds were already spent. Unjted States v, |BT Higuretis], 814 F. Supp. 1165, 1175 {S.0.N.Y. 1883) On May 14,
20114, the Local traded-in a 2011 Tahoe that business agent Cary Baughters had driven. {Exs. 77, 82) The same tay,
the Local purchased two Lsed cars: 2 2011 Chevrolet Equinox and a 2011 Chevrolet baliby for 526,489.60 and
£23,478.80 respectivaly. {Exs. 77, B0-81] Prior to these transactions, there were no Exerutive Board approvals to
trage-in the ene car and purchase the twa cars as the Byiaws required. {Ex. 36} A week after the Lacal's Tahoe was
traded-in and the two cars were purchased, the minutes of the May 21, 2014 Executive Board mesting contained
the following statement, “There was a motioh by Trustee Delgada and a second by Recording Secretary Chelula to
approve the trading In of the Chevolet Tahoe and purchase of the 2 aconomy cars snd that motion carried.” [Ex.
36} Approval after the horse has left the barn |s not valid Executive Board approval. Ligurotis, 814 F. Supp. at
11749,

u Farmer Local 439 President Phitip Rushing also without authority slened the purchase agrement for one
of the cars purchased in 2008, [Exs. 77, BE)

B A5 noted above, the Executive Board spproval for the trade-In of @ 2011 Cheviolet Tahoe and purchase of
two cars took place on May 14, 2014, a week after the transactions took place. {Exs. ¥7, 80-81, 83, 36!

1 Phillp Rushing was a full-time officer i 2008. (Fxs. 515, 30]
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On October 31, 2008, Rosas caused the Local to purchase a Chevrolet Pickup for then
business agent De La Cruz for $35,052. {Exs. 77, 87, 514) Rosas signed the purchase agreement
for this truck, {Ex, 87) There was no Board approval. (Ex. 30}

On Dctober 15, 2010, Rasas caused the Local to purchase a 2010 Chevrolet Tahoe for
business agent Andazola by signing the $43,910.96 purchase agreement on behalf of the Local.
[Exs. 77, BS, 514) The Board did not authorlze it. {Ex. 32

On February 17, 2011, Alonzo caused the Local 1o purchase for $42,597.65 a 2011
Chevrotet Tahoe for De La Cruz. {Exs, 77, 84, 514} The 2008 Pickup that De La Cruz had driven
was traded-In. {Exs. 77, 87) Alonzo signed both the purchase and trade-In documents. {Exs. 84,
87) There were no Board approvals for alther. {£x. 33)

On February 18, 2011, Aflonzo caused the Local to purchase for $49,425.06 3 2011
Chevrolet Tahoe for then business ageni Cary Daughters’ {"Daughters”} use. {Exs. 77, 83, 514)
The 2008 pickup that Daughters had used was traded-in. {Exs. 77, 83, 86) Alanzo signed the
purchase agreement and trade-in documents. {Exs. 83, 86} There were no Board approvals for

either, (Ex. 33}

On Decemnber 20, 2012, Rosas caused the Local to purchase for 547,844.72 a 2013
Chevrolet Pickup for his use. (Exs. 77, 82) Rosas signed the purchase agreement. fEx, 82}
There was no Executive Board approval. (Ex. 34) According to Local records, a Loca! 2011
Chevy Tahoe that De La Cruz had driven was “Traded for Sam's [Rosas] Car”. (Exs. 84, 514}
Without authority, Rosas signed for this trade-in. {Ex. 84)

On June 5, 2013, Rosas causad the Local to transfer title of a 2006 Ford F-150 pickup to

former business agent Edward Speckman {"Speckman”) who had retired the previous month.
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(Exs. 79, 588) The 2006 Ford was soid to Speckman for $3,500. (Ex. 79)%  in violation of Sectlon
156(C) of the Byiaws, there was no prior Board approval for this sale. (Ex. 5 at 22; Ex. 35} Over
three months later, the minutes of 8 Board meeting on September 25, 2013 noted, “There was
a notion . . . to approve the selling of Ed Speckman’s truck and that motien is carrigd.” {Bx.
£351%¢  No sale price was disclased in the minutes, [Ex. 539) There was no indication that the
Board had been told that the truck had been sold to Speckman months earlier without
approval. {Ex. 539) Muoreover, retroactive approvat did not cure the Bylaw viofation. United
States v. {BT Itipurotis], 814 F. Supp. 1185, 1179 {5.0.N.Y. 1953).

In making these purchases and dispositions of Local vehicles without the required
authority Alonzo and Rosas violated tha Bylaws and breached their fiduciary duties to the

members.
b. Car Lgans

Section 14{B}{3} of the Bylaws provided that the Board must approve all Local borrowing
and Section 16(C) specifically required Board approval for financing the purchase of cars. {Ex. 5
at 15, 2210 | violation of the Bylaws, without the required Board approval, Rosas and Alonzo

caused the Local to borrow 235,547 to finance the purchase of seven cars. {Exs. 77, 80-87)

v On lune 5, 2013, Speckman pald 53,500 to the bocal, (Ex 759)

1 The Locat produced @ document that was faxed en May 28, 2013 from Chase Chevralet to Alonzo which
stated that with an agjustment for 180,000 miles, the *Total Lending/Suggested Retall Value" was
~85,675/%7,875.” (Ex. 408) Handwritten on that document was: “Trada In Value = 53,500 This would be a very
falr price to sall to your employee.” (Ex. 40B} Chase Chevrolet was the dealer from which Rosas and Alenzo made
alt the unapproved purchases since 2008, (Exs, 80-BB)

1 This approval was not obtalned uniil after the \RB’s books and records notice daied September 18, 2013.
Ex. 516}
o Sectich 14{B}(3} of the Bylaws provides that the Local's Executive Board shail have the authority to:

i2




Dn October 31, 2008, to purchase a Chevralet plckup, Resas caused the Local to secure
g 529,801 loan. {Exs, 77, 87) Rosas signed the loan agreement. (Ex. 87) There was no Bozrd
approval. (Ex. 5 at 15; Ex. 30}

On February 17, 2011, Alonzo caused the Local to borrow $38,854.58 to buy 2 2011
Chevrolet Tahoe for De La Cruz to drive. (Exs. 77, 84) The next day, on February 18, Alenzo
caused the Lotal to borrow $37,970.13 to purchase a 2011 Chevrolet Tahoe for Daughters 1o
drive, {Exs. 77, 83} Alonzo signed both iaan documents. [Exs. 83-84) There were no Board
zpprovals. (Ex. 33}

When the officers purchased the 2013 pickup for Rosas to use, they caused the Local to
borrow $45,185.14. {Exs. 77, 822 Acting without Board epproval, on December 20, 2012,

Rosas signed the ioan document. {Exs. 77, 82; Ex. 5 at 15; Ex. 34)

2. Rosas and Alonze Caused the Local to Make Substantial Other Expenditures Without
the Board and Membership Approvals the Bylaws Reguired

Batween 2009 and 2014, Rosas and Alonzo were the two full-time officars with check
signfng authority at the Local. (Ex. 5 at 7-8; Ex. 8 at 7-8; Ex, 10 at 9)22  During that period, they

eaused the Local to routinely make expenditures without the members’ and Board approvals

Loan snd borrow manies directly and Indirectly far such purposes and with such security, If any,
as It seems appronciate, and with such arrangemants for repayment as it deems appropriate, &1
tq the extent provided by law;

{Ex. 5 at 15]

n The amount financed for the purchase of this car was $45,185.14, {Exs. 77, 82) With interest of 42,659.58
ovar the iife of the loan, the total cost of the tat was 567,844.72. (Exs. 77, 82

e saction B{B) of the Byiaws provided that checks were required to be signed by both the Secretary-
Treasurer ang the President. {Ex, 5 at 7-B)
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required under the Bylaws. |n doing so, they both viclated the Bylaw restraints on their power
to spend Local money and their fiduciary duties to the members.
Section 14(B}8) of the tocal's Bylaws provided that the Executive Board had the

authority to;

[IJease, purchase or otherwise acquire in any tawful manner for and on behalf of
the organization, any and alt real estate or other property, rights and privileges,
whatsoever deamed necessary for the prosecution of 1ts affairs, and which the
organization Is autherized to acquire, at its discretion pay there [sic] for either
whally or partly in money or otherwise. Speciflc authorization at 2 membership
meeting shall be required for such expenditures, excepting for routine
expenditures not of a substantial nature

{Ex. 5 at 16} The Executive Board had not adopted a policy deflning a substantial expanditure
under the Bylaws. {Fx. 8 at 34-37} For purpose of this report, expenditures in excess of 51,000
were tdeemed substantial.

Rosas and Alonzo regularly caused the Local to purchase non-routine items of a
cubstanttal nature, incluging tickets to Ralders games, shirts and televisions, without the
required Board and members’ approvals. (Exs. 78, 511, 170-174, 349) Rosas and Alonzo also
caused the Local to pay for holiday parties and fishing trips without the necessary approvals.

{Exs. 78, 85-93, 228-232)

a. Eaifure to Obiain Approvals for Expenditures Connected with Events
Rosas and Alonzo Organized

Fram 2009 through 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to spend 5350,251 on four

annual events they ran without Board approvals. {Exs, 78, 566, 89-33, 170-174, 22B-232, 426-
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479} Forthe same period, they caused the Local 1o spend over $343,558 without the
required members’ approvals for these events. {Exs. 3481 These events were a holiday party,

a Raiders game, a3 Lakor Day Picnic and a fishing trip. {Ex. 568)
i Hixliday Parties

Each December fram 2009 through 2013, the Local held a holiday party at the Hilton
Hotel I Stockton ("Hilton”). [Exs. 566, 88-93) There wera no membership approvais obtained
In the years between 2009 snd 2013 to spend Local funds for the substantial, non-routine
expenses of the parties. {Ex. 25-29)%° In two years, 2008 and 2013, the Executive Board
approved the expenditure of $25,000 for each year’s holiday party. {Exs. 405, 408} in 2010,
7011 and 2012, Alonzo and Rosas did not obtain Board approval for any of the party
expenditures, (Exs. 32-34} Between 2009 and 2013, they caused the Lacal to spend
approximately $152,668 In connection with the parties without Board approvals and $178,624

without membership approvals. {Exs. 348, 566)%

= As noted betow, in some years there were some Executive Board appravals to spend a specific amount for
an event. in this report, for those years, the amount the officers spent aver the approved amount was (ncluded in
the figure for expenditures without Executive Board approval.

"' This amount consisted of expenditures over 51,000 and included Stars and Stripes purchases for those
events, {Ex. 348)

el Rosas clzimed that because the holiday party was held each year, it was a routlne expensa that only
tequirad Board and not membership approval. {Ex. B at 276-277} Rosas testifled that he was not sure that Board
approval was obtained each year for the hofiday party. {Ex. B at 276-277} A party held without reguired approvals
does not hecomne routine because of repeated annusl violations. H is not a recurring routine expense sueh as rent,
taxes and utilitiss, According to Merriam-Webster dictionary, routing |s defined as, "= regular way of doing things
in a particular order.” (€. 581 Moreover, despite admitling he knew 2t least Board spproval was requlred as
described abova, Rosas only secured it for a small portion of what he caused to be purchased.

® As nated gbove, In this repert purchases over $1,000 were considersd to be substantial regquiring
membetship appraval if not rowting,
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In the years 2005 through 2013, the Local averaged 4,284 members. (Exs. 18-22) During
those years, the paid atlendance at the holiday parties averaged 172. (Ex. 377)*7 The Local
distributed an average of 207 tickets to each party. {Exs. 526, 98, 522-525)°® According to the
catering bills, an average of 224 entrees were served at the parties from 2011 through 2013.

[Exs. 374-376)2° The Local records had no explanation for the discrepancies.
2010 Haliday party

The 2010 party was on December 11. {Ex. 373) Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to
spend approximately $31,818 in connection with it. (Ex. 80} N There were no Board and
members’ approvals for these expenditures. {Exs. 26, 32} Accarding ta the Local’s records of

tickets sales, 132 tickets were sold for $60 each. {Exs. 377, 595)*

w The paid attendance 2t the hollday parties for 2003 through 2012 was obtained from the Local’s General
ledger records which showed tha ameunt the Local received from the sale of tickets to the hollday parties, (Ex.
377] The Local's Titan records showling the amounts recetved from the hoilday tickets sales were consistent with
the General Ledger for the years 2010 and 2011 {Fxs. 377, 595, 596] For unknown reasons, the Titap records were
inconsistent with the General Ledgsr for the years 2009 and 2012, {Exs. 377, 584, sg7)

® The Local alse produced spreadsheets described as "Records of Holiday Ticket Sales”, {Exs. 98, 522-525}
These spreadsheets did not akways record a sale date for tickets attributed to specific people. {Exs. 98, 522-525)
Thesa records ware used to determine the number of tickets distribyuted, not all of which were paid for, (Exs. 98,
522-525})

e For 2005 and 2010, the Local produced the catering contracts from the hotal, but {alied 10 provide the
final bill showing how many dinners were served. (Exs. 372-373) In 2011, 240 dinners wera served; in 2012 and
2013, the number of dinners was 220 and 210 respectively. (Exs. 374-376]

w The Local's racords reported under “sther Income” that 57,920 was deposited for “Christmas Dinner
Tickets” In 2010, (Ex. 95) Accordingly, the Local's net expenditures in connection with the 2010 hellday party were
approximately 523,898. {Ex. 30

i This paid ticket number was based upen the Local’s General Ledger which showed the amount deposited
from ticket sales for the halldzy pariy. [Ex. 377} This amount was divided by the cost of each ticket ta determine
the nember of tickets sold, The Locai also produced anether document entitled "Holiday Party Ticket Sales™
showing that 165 tlckets were distributed for the party. {Ex. 523] Mot alf of these Hekets were described on this
document as being pald for. {Ex, 523
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The tocal paid the Hilton $14,998.82 for this party. {Ex. 122) On November 24, 2010,
Rosas and Alonze caused the Local to spend $5,443.53 at Costeo to allegedly purchase party
itemns. {Ex. 12312 Jennifer Roses’ Costco membership card was used, {Ex. 463)% The items
they purchased included four smoked salmon packages, eight fudge packages, two flatware
caddies, eight trave! pillows, two crockpots, two cake domes, four electric sklilets, two slow
cookers and 67 bottles of llquor. (Ex. 123) On December 8, 2010, Rosas and Alenzo caused the
Locai to spend another $7,072 at Costco for an additional 121 items atso aliegedly for the party.
(Ex. 1173 During that trip, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase, among other
itams: seven televisions, four DVD players, two Niken cameras, four iap desks, two irans, a
Garmin GPS for $559,96, three fur throws, two garment steamers and two toasters. {Ex. 117}
The Local had no records showing it had received the lams Rasas and Alonzo czused it to pay
for at Costco. (Ex. 10 at 42-45; Ex, 12 at 47-48) The Secretary-Treasurer's Manual reguired that
someone at the Local actuatly determine that items which were purchased came into the
Local’s control, (Ex. 4 at 73; Ex. 44 at 26) Nor were there any Local records showing the
disposition of any of the items hought. (Ex. 474) Rasas and Alonze lgnored their legal chligation
to maintain such records. {29 U.5.C. §§436, 433) This was not the oniy time. By their pattern

of falling to keep records in violation of law, they created burdles for 18T audiors, fellow Local

2 The check voucher for this check stated, “Mbrshp Appr. (Holiday Party)”. (Ex. 123)

s hecording to records subpoenaed from Costeo, the name on the Costeo mermbership accownt number for
this purchese was Jennifer Rpsas who had & Cestece membership card associated with a Costeo business
rmembership for Rondl and Associates. [Ex. 463) Rond! and Assoriates is 2 company which provides accounting
and bookkeeping services. (Ex, S08)

u The check and theck voucher for thesa purchasas stated, “Membership Appreciation Heliday Party.” (Ex.
117
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officers and others trying to determine if they were misappropriating itetns for personal use
that were consumer products they caused the Local to purchase without approval, as detailed
below.

201% Holiday Parky

The 2011 party was held on Saturday, December 10. (Ex. 374} Rosas and Alonza caused
the Lacal to spend approximately $48,965 in connection with it. (Ex. 91)*® There were no
Board and members’ approvals. (Exs. 26,32) Actording to tocal records, 159 tickets were
sold for 560 each. (Exs. 377})%

The tocal paid $21,740.40 1o the Hilton. {Ex. 140) According to the hotel's agreement,
the party inciuded z cash bar, her d'oeuvres and dinnet, (Ex. 374) A December 21, 2011
invoice from the Hilton showed 240 entrees were served, (Ex, 374) This was a significant
increase both over the 158 tickets reflected in Local records as sold (Ex. 96), and the 221
distributed tickets identifiad on ancther Local document which included tickets not paid for.
(Ex. 524} There were no explanations in the records for the addltional meals Rosas and Alonzo
catised the Local to pay for.

Rosas and Alonzo allegedly in connection with this party caused the Local to purchase

over 371 items, costing at ieast $15,785.08 that were described as “membership appreciation”

& The Local's records reported Wnder “other income” that $9,540 was deposited for "Christmas Dinner
Ticksts” in 2011 (Ex. 96) Accordingly, the Lacal's net expenditures in connection with the 2011 holiday party were
approwimately 539,425, (Ex. 566}

38 This pald ticket number was based upon the Lacal’s Genersl Ledger which showtd the amount the Locat
recelved from ticket 5ates to the holiday party. (Ex. 377 The Locat alse produced another document entitled
*Hollday Party Ticket Sales” this showed 221 tickets ware distributed for the party. (Ex. 524) Not all of these
tickets were described on this document as belng paid for. [Ex. 524} As npted below, the Stockton Hiftan charged
the Loca! for 280 entrees at the hallday party. {Ex. 374)
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or “for X-Mas party”. {Exs, 133, 135, 137} ¥ The number of prizes purchased was significantly
hlgher than the number of entrees paid for or tickets distributed. [Exs. 524, 374) Using 240
attendees, this was a ciaimed expense of over $65 per attendee for gifts for 2 party it cost 580
to attend for those who paid, including dinner. {Exs. 374, 133, 135, 137) There were no Board
and members' approvals for these purchases. (Exs, 27, 33) Most of these items were of no use
to the Local and were personal consumet items. For example, on Decemhber 7, 2011, Rosas
used a Local check to putchase 364 items at Costeo for $10,431.12, ysing jennifer Rosas’ Costoo
membership number. (Exs. 133, 463} ¥ The items bought inciuded three waffle makers, three
ariddlers, two mini chappers, two hand mixers, two bienders, two woks, two pizza stones, two
three packs of sauté pans, two everyday pans, two spotlights, two wax warmers, two #ons, two
bakeware sets, two toasters, two popcorn makers, two tool boxes, two cake domes, four
heated throws, six lunch boxes, six umbrella two packs, four bracelets, twe 140 piece tool sets,
four six piece ton! sets and four cutiing boards. {Fx. 133} Also on December 7, 2011, Rosas
purchased at Local expense 62 bottles of liquor and nine bottles of vitamins. {Ex. 133)*® The
1ocal had no records showing It recefved any of these items, {Ex. 12 at 264-265)  in addition,
the Local had no records accounting for their disposition, (Ex. 474) Rosas and Alonzo violated

their legal obligations to maintain such records. {29 U.5.C. §5436, 439; Ex. 552)

w This Includad $10,431.12 spent at Casteo for numerous ltems, $4,968.18 spent at Magnella Home Theatsr
for five tatevislons and other electromics and $388 78 Rosas speit at Targed for two mountatn blkes. (Exs, 133, 135,
137)

2 The check voucher for thesa purchases stated, “Membership App. Holiday Party.” [Ex. 133) As noted
above, Jennifer Rosas' Castea membership number was acsoclated with the Costoo business account for Rendi and
Assoriates, (Ex. 463)

= Liguor was aliegedly raffied to members at the party. (Ex. 12 at 23-24] There was no Local record of
anyone who received any |kguor that year. {Ex. 474] The vitarmins were unexplained.
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On the same day of his Costeo purchases, Rosas also caused the Local to spend an
additional $4,96RB.18 at Magnolia Home Theater. (Ex. 135} * Among other items, Rosas
purchased four 40 inch Toshiba televisions for $1,519.96. {Ex. 135) There were no Board and
membership appravals for these purchases. (Exs, 26, 32) There were no records Indicating
anyone at the Local determined it received the purchased items, {Ex. 10 at 42-45; Ex. 12 at 48-
49) 1In addition, in vialation of federal law, the Local had no records of what happened to these
televisions and the other electronic items Rusas purchased. (Ex. 474} Rosas and Alonzo had
the responsibility to maintain such records, (29 U.S.C. §5436, 439; Ex. 552)

2012 Holiday Party

The 2012 party was held on Saturday, December 8. (Ex. 375) Rosas and Alonzo caused
the Lacal to spend apuroximately 546,350, allegedly In connection with it, {Ex. 92} They had no
Board and members’ approvals to spend this money. (Exs. 28, 34)  The Local received 511,400
in revenue from ticket sales, (Ex. 97)% At 575 per ticket, this represented 154 tickets sold, (Exs.
377, 97)*? According to Local records, 210 tickets were distributed to the holiday party. {Ex.
525)% The Local paid 521,565.44 to the Hilton which charged the Local for 220 dinners served.

{Exs. 416, 375}

40 The check for this purchase stated “Membership Appr. Holiday Party.” {Ex. 135] There was no notatlon on
the receipt indicating the unlon purpose for the purchase. (Ex. 135)

o Accordingly, the net amount the Local spent in connect|on with the 2612 holldey party was 535,550, (x5,
82, 87}
2 FoF reasons that are unclesr, the Local’s Titan records were inconsistant with the General Ledger records

for 2012 for the holiday party ticket sales. {Exs. $7, 597) The Titan records showed that the Local soid 103 tickets,
lEx. 597

” Of the 210 tickets, over ten parcent were ghven away, Aceording to 2 December &, 2012 telephone pol,
the Executive Buard approved giving 36 free tickets to the holiday party: 18 to Local staff and volunteers, ten to
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On December 6, Anszs and Alonzo signed a Local check to Costeo for 510,971.45. {Ex.
353} The description on the check was “Mbshp App. {12/08/12 Holiday Party)". (Ex. 353)
There were no reguired Board and members' approvals for this. {Exs. 28, 34) Moreover, the
Local, despite Alonzo and Rosas being obligated to ensure it had them, suspiciously had no
receipts reflecting what was purchased at Costco for almost §11,000 that day. Inrasponseto g
subpoena, Costen produced documents regarding these purchases. (Ex. 463} These
docutnents showed 325 items were purchased including 22 gift cards, three carneras, two
pleces of juggage, eight DVD players, 16 tools, 14 pot and pan sets, four waffle makers and 79
battles of alcohol. (Ex. 463) These purchases were made using Rosas’ wife’s Costco member
number. {(Ex. 463)* The Local had ro records reflecting it received the items bought. Rosas
and Alonzo failed to ensure the Local had records showing the disposition of these items. (Ex.
474)%

On December 7, 2012 Rosas charged $2,455.91 on his Local card at Best Buy/Magnolia
Home Theater which the Local paid. [Ex. 157 He purchased eight televislons, including one 42”
and two 38” televisions. [Ex. 157) A handwritten note on this receipt noted, "Gifts — Party”. {Ex.
157} As with the Costco items, there were no Board and members’ approvals for these nen-
routine substantial expenditures. in addition, the Local had no records regarding the disposal

of these televisions 25 Alonzo and Rosas were reguired to have the tocal make and maintain.

“Prop 32 Volunteers” and ten to “Distinguished Guests.” (Exs, 351, 361) The difference betweeh tickets soid and
dinners paid for was 66 which means that more tickets ware given away than there was Board approval to glve,

- As naoted shove, lennlfer Rosas’ Costeo number used for this purchase ascnciated with the Costco
business membershlp of Rondk and Associates, [Ex. 453)

= On November 27, 2012, the Lotal Issued a differant check to Costeo for $1,157.91 for 20 snowmen and
pengutn canterpleces zllegedly for the Local's holiday party. (Ex. 573)
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{Ex. 10 at 47-48; Ex. 474; Ex, 12 at 48-49, 266-267; 29 U.S.C. §5436, 439; £x. 552} Such records
were necessary to track the distribution of Local assets and ensure these iterns were used for a
union purpose.
2013 Holiday Party

The 2013 party was held op Saturday, December 14. {Ex. 375) This was after the IRB
investigation began in Octoker. (Ex. 518} On November 20, 2013, the Board approved spending
425 000 for the party. (Ex. 406) There was no members’ approval for this substantial non-
routine expenditure as the Bylaws required. {Ex. 28]  Rosas and Alonzo without authority
caused the Local to pay $17,942 more than the amount approved. {Ex. 566) There was no
membership approval for any of the $35,111 spent in non-routine substantial purchases for the
party. {(Ex, 511} The Local paid $24,505.71 to the Hilion. (Ex. 165) The Hilton tharged for 210
dinners served. (Ex. 376) According to Laca! records, members paid for 137 of the 179 tickets
distributed for the party. (Exs, 598, 38, 377) As in the past, there was a substantial discrepancy
among the number of tickets sold, distributed and actuai dinners the hotel represented it

cerved and Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to pay for. (Exs. 93, 97, 98, 276, 598)

it Dakland Raiders Games
£ach year from 2008 through 2013, Alonzo and Rosas causet the Local to purchase
tickets to Oakland Raiders football games. (Exs. 170-174] Most of these tickets were then
resald to interested members as part of a package to attend that year's game. {Ex, 12 at 185-
186}
Rosas claimed that “as a general rule” he submitted a budget for the game to the Board

for approval. (Ex. 8 at 187) There was no documentary evidence supporting his claim. Thera
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was no Board approval for any expenditures in connection with the Raider games in 2010, 2011
and 2012. {Exs. 32-34) In 2009 and in 2013, the Buard authorized the Local to spend $2,000
and 55,000 respectively for the games. {Exs. 411, 412)  In those two years, Alonzo and Rosas
exceeded the Board approved amount by $13,270 and 512,424, (Ex. 5661 Beiween 2009 and
2013, Rosas and Alonzo spent 587,747 without Board approvals in connection with the games.
(Ex. 566} There were no members’ spprovals es raguired for any of the 584,520.30 of non-

routine substanitial purchases Alonzo and Rosas caused the Local to make. [Exs, 348, 25-29) 4
2009 Ralders Game

On May 20, 2008, the Board authorized the Local to spend $2,000 “for Raider game.”
[Ex.412) On lune 4, 2009, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase 100 tickets to a

game on October 18, 2009, (Ex, 180)* These and parking passes for three recreational vehicles

46 In 2008, the Local spent 515,270 In connection with the Raiders game. [Ex. 566} This was 513,270 over
the amount the Executive Board approved. (Ex. 566) In 2009, the Local took in 57,844 from tickat sales for the
Raiders game. (Ex. 566] Accordingly, the 1ocal's net expen ditures for the Raiders game that year was 57,426,
S5 426 more than the Executive Board had approved. (Ex. 566)

In 2013, the Lacal spent $17,424 in connection with the Raiders game. (Ex, 568) This was 512,424 over
the amount the Executlve Board approved. [Ex 568) tn 2013, the Localtook In 511,375 from ticket safes for the
Raiders game. {Ex.566) Accordingly, the Local's met expenditure that year was 46,049, 51,049 more than the
Exetutive Board had approved. {Ex. 56E)

4’ When asked about members’ approval for the purchase of Ralders ickets and tlckets ta ther sports
svents, Alonzo testifled that after the Board had approvad the purchase elther through a phone poll orata
meeting and then the minutes of the Board meeting were read at the next members’ meeting. [Ex. 10 at 83] As
noted sbove, there ware no Board approvals to purchase tickets in 2010 and 2012. The minutes of the May 20,
2009 Board meetlng, In which approval to spend 52,000 for the Ralders game was reflected, were read at the
ceptember 16, 2002 membership mesting. {Ex. 412) The August 21, 2013 Board minutes, in which approval to
spend 55,000 was reflected, were read st the Drtober 16, 2013 ganeral membershin mesting. {Exs. 28, 401)
There were no votes at any membership meeting to apprave the purchase of Raiders tickets. (Exs. 25-28) Readling
Exmcutive Board minutes at @ membarshlp meeting does not constiivte tmembership approval for @ particular
expense mentioned in the minutes. See, In Ra: Richard Berg and Eugenia Alvarez, GEB Declslon a1 5 {May 18, 2010)
{". . . matters that reguire Executive Board approval must he presented to the Board and explicltly appraved.”] {Ex.
619} The members need to spprove it separately.

@ The tickets cost SG1 each. (Ex, 180)

23




cost $6,335. (Ex. 180} The Local spent $15,270 for the 2000 game. (Ex. 170) In violation of the
Bylaws, there was no members’ approvai for any Local funds that Rosas and Alonzo caused the
Local ta spend on the game. {Ex. 25} in addition, Rosas and Alonzo without authprity caused
the Local to spend $13,270 more than the Board approved. (Exs. 566, 170)%°

According to the Local's Titan records, the Local sold 72 of the 100 tickets purchased for
this game, [Exs. 170, £89)5° The Local's tallgate list included 22 additional Individuals as
receiving tickets. (Exs. 170, 175} Local records did not show they pald. {Exs, 589, 175}

1n connection with the 2009 game, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to pay 52,802.98
for buses without the required approvals. (Ex. 181} [n addition, without approval, Alonzo and
Rosas caused the Lotal to purchase 150 jerseys trom Stars and Stripes for $2,522.60 afleged|y
for the game. {Ex. 184} These had “Teamsters Day at the Coliseum™ and other writing on tham.
(Exs. 184, 198, 209) Each parson who went on the trip to the Ralders game was to receive a
shirt, {Ex. 12 at 30; Ex. 8 at 232-233) |n 2008, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase
50 more jerseys than it had purchased game fickets. (Ex. 184) They did not have the Local keep
records, as they were legally required fo do, recording the disposition of these jerseys. (EX.
564} The Local had purchased 71 more shirts than the 79 tickets it had resoid to members.

(Ex. 184)

“ According te Loca! records, the Local deposited 57,844 from the ticket gales to this game. [Exs. 174, 566,
584) Accordingly, the Local spent 57,426 more on the game than it tock in, {Ex. 568]

sa in addition to the Titan records showing the amount the Local received from tickets sales to the Raiders
games, the Local also produced a Tailgate Party List for each Raiders game which listed names of individuals who
attended the game and sometimes Indicated If a ticket had been paid for. {Exs. 589-583, 175-178)

5 Grate Alonzo, Alonzo’s wife, received a Locat check dated October 26, 2009 for 5250 for which the check
voucher stated "Raffle-Raider Game.” {Ex. 188)
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2040 Raiders Game

Rosas and Alonzo caused the Lotal to spend $17,278 in connection with the 2010 game
without reguired Board and members' approvals. (Exs. 171, 26, 32) By check dated May 7,
2010, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase 100 tickats. {Ex. 191) These tickets and
oversized vehicle passes cost $6,335. (Ex. 19157 By checks dated September 14 and
September 22, 2010, Alonzo and Rosas caused the Local to purchase an additional 25 tickets
and ancther vehicle pass for $1,600. {Exs. 194-195}

The Loeal's Titzn records showed that 510,166 was pald to the Local for 104 tickets in
2010. {Exs. 580, 171)** Twenty-one tickets the two officers caused the Local to purchase were
not resold to members. {Exs. 171, 590) Rosas and Alonzo were not listed as having paid for
any tickets. {Exs. 171, 580} The Local’s Tailgate list indicated 17 tickets of these 21 were
distributed without a record reflecting these were paid for, including, as discussed below, five
for Alonzo and six for Rosas. {EX. 176) Out of the 125 tickets purchased, there was ng record
reflecting any disposition for four tickets. {Exs. 590, 176, 171)

On October 2, 2010, Rosas and Alenzo also caused the Local to spend $1,663.59 at
Costco allegedly for items for the game, (Ex. 196) These items included two waffie makers, two
hand blanders, two cake domes, four NFL Snuggies, beer and liguor. (Ex. 195) Rpsas and

Alonzo failed to have the Local maintain records showing the disposition of these itams. {Ex.

564)
51 The game tickets cost 3561 each. [Ex. 191)
52 This Titan records showed that ohe person paid $366 for & tickets which was the face value of the tickets.

{Ex. 580} The Local genarally charged is members $100 for each ticker, (Ex. 550)
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In addition, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase for $2,674.80 from Stars and
Stripes 150 mock turlieneck shitts for the Raiders game. (Ex. 198} This was 25 mare shirts
then they caused the Local to purchase game tickets, There were na Local records reflecting
the disposition of any of those 150 shirts. There was testimony claiming & member purchasing
a ticket received a shirt but no records were kept showing this as required. (Ex. 12 at 30; Ex. 8

ai 227) The dispositian of the other 25 shirls was unexplained.
2011 Ralders Game

Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to spend 520,808 in connection with the 2011 game
on Octaber 2. {Exs. 172) There were no Board and members’ approvals for the axpenditures.
{Exs. 27, 33) By check dated April 29, 2011, Alonzo and Rosas caused the Local to buy 100
tickets and three parking passes for $6,335. (Ex. 203) On September 12, Alonzo charged $1,830
on his Local credit card for 30 additlonal tickets. (Ex. 206)** The Local paid the charge. {Ex. 206)

The Local’s Titan records showed the Local received $10,700 for the resate of 107 tickets
to this game. {Exs. 581, 172} The “Tailgate Party List” the Local providet described 18
arditiona! tickets as being distributed without any indication of payment. {Ex. 177) The Local's
records taited to reflect in any way the disposition of five of the 130 tickets purchased,

Despite having the Local buy 130 tickets, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase
from Stars and Stripes 170 mock turtlenecks and six mesh jerseys for the game for 53,972.48.

(Ext. 209) This was 46 more shirts than tlckets. {Ex. 209} There were no records reflecting the

5“ At 2 Executlve Board meeting on September 21, 2011, after this purchase, there was a motion to
purchase 30 adiitlonal tickets 1o the Ralder game. {Ex. 33} The minutes did not reflect eny vote to approve thls
matlan. {Ex. 33}
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disposition of any shirts, including the surplus shins, as the two officers were required Lo have
the Local maintain. (Ex. 564] That year, 2011, was both a Lecal and an Internationa! election
vear. (Exs, 603, 614)

Rosas and Alonzo also caused the Lacal to spend without authority $2,246.56 at Costro
on September 30, allegedly for raffle items for the game. {Ex. 207) 35 |ncluded in this purchase
were eight umbrella packs, two safety kits, three drills, cne waffie maker, three screwdrivers,
four mini choppers, two blenders, three Hitachi 71 plece dril hit sets, nine lunchboxes, four
packs of 24 Titleist goif balls, five hooded fleeces, two stadium seats, two backpacks, four
thermal mugs, fwo sauté pan three pack sets and two other pans. {Ex, 207) The Local had no
records showing the purchased items came into its possession, (Ex. 12 at 46-48, 267) Rosas

and Alonzo faited to have the Local maintain records of the disposition of these items. (Ex. 474)
2012 Rakders Game

In 2012, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Locai to spend 523,964 in connection with 2 game
on September 23, {Exs. 173) There were no Board and members’ approvals for these
expenditures. {Fxs, 28, 34)% By check dated May 10, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to
purchase 30 club tickets at 5136 each and 70 200 level tickets 3t $51 each, (Ex. 212) These
tickets and parking cost 57,885, [Ex. 212} OnJuly 17, Alanzo charged 52,550 on his Local credit

card for 50 additional $51 tickets. (Ex. 216) The Local paid that also. {Ex, 216

" The recelpt for these purchases at Costoa dld net reflect 2ny union purpose. {Ex. 207} The memo on the
check Rosas and Alonzo signed stated, “Raider Game Raffles (30/2/11}". {Ex. 207)

e The minutes of the September 19, 3012 general membership meeting stated, “The members were given a
report on the . .. Ralder game.” [Ex. 28] There was no vote to approve any axpenditures. [Ex. 28)
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Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase 150 tickets 1o the game,  {(Exs. 212, 216}
The Local’s Titan records reflected that 129 of these tickets were resoid. (Ex. 592¥7 The
Local’s Tailgate list included notations for 17 additional tickets distributed without a sale
reflacted in the Titan records. {Exs. 178, 592} In addition, there were four more tickets the
Local had purchased but had no record of being distributed, {Ex. 178]

Rosas and Alonzo caused the Lazal to purchase from Stars and Stripes, 200 mock
turtleneck shirts for $4,530.70 allegediy for the game. {Ex. 360) This was 50 more shirts than
the Local purchased tickets. (Ex. 2360) Rosas and Alonzo did not have the Local maintain
records regarding the disposition of any of these 200 shirts. They provided no union purpose
for the extra shirts. Assuming, because there are no records, that each ticket hoider received a
shirt, there was na explanation for what happened to the 50 surpius shirts Stars and Stripes was
paid for. (Ex. 474)

In addition, Rosas and Alonzo also caused the Local to spend %1,767.95 &t Sports Authority
for items aliegedly to be raffied in connectlon with the 2012 game, {Fx. 215)°F These included
three bleacher back stadium seats, four duffle bags, six sets of mini speakers, seven coolers, an

eye black stick, three NFL official games balls for $89.99 gach, three youth foothalls and insect

H The Titan recards refiected that ciub tickets were soid for $140 each and other tickets were soid for $100.
{Ex. 592) The mark-up on club tickets for transportatlon, food and 2 shirt was 94 & ticket, Alonzo and Rosas
csused the Local ta charge the mambers who purchased regular thckets a 543 markup far the same benefits it was
providing club ticket holders for 54, Each shirt purchased allegedly for the game cost the ez between 518 and
%22, (Ex. 360) There were no records showing the disposition af the 200 shirts or how the markups were decided
on.

58 The receipt fram Sports Autherity contalned the handwritten natatlon “Raffles” and the check stub for
these purchases stated “Membership App. {Raider Game) 3/23/12". {Ex. 219}
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repellent. {Ex. 219} Alonzo and Rosas did not hawve the Locat maintain the required recerds for
the disposition of these items. |Ex. 12 at 47-48, 267; kX, 474}
2013 Ralders Gams

Rasas and Alonzo caused the Local to spend $17,424 in connection with the November
3, 2013 game including purchasing 110 tickets: 75 Level 200 tickets at $50 each and 35 Club
tickets at $125 each, (Exs. 174, 221-227, 362-364) The Loces! paid $8,289 for these tickets, two
bus parking passes and 3 handling fee, (Exs. 221-223) Rosas purchased 100 of thesa tickets on
his Local card. (Exs, 222-223)* Subsequently, after these purchases, on August 21, 2013, the
Boart approved spanding $5,000 for the game. (Ex, 35} By that polnt, Rosas and Alonzo had
already caused the Local to spend 57,039. (Ex. 174)5 There was no membership approval to
spend any Local money for the game. (Ex. 296 On August 21, 2013, Rosas purchased an
additional 10 Club tickets at Local expense for 51,250 (Ex. 223)

in addition to the tickets, the Loca! paid for other items allegedly associated with the
game including the rental of four buses, food, alcohol and shirts. {Ex. 174)% On October 31,
2013, Rosas charged 52,427.21 on his Local credit card at Costco. {Ex. 227) Tha Local produced

twa copies of the receipt. {Ex. 227) it produced one with the hendwritten notation "Raider

5 This was 75 Level 200 tickets and 25 Club tickets. (Exs. 222-223)

& On July 17, 2013, Rosas charged $3,237 on his credit card and on August 6, 2013 he charged %3,625. (Ex.
222} These cherges were paid by Local check on August 18, 2013, IEx. 222} On January 23, 2013, Alonzo charged
a 5100 depesit for Ralders tickets on his Local credit card which the Local pald on February 25, 2033, (Ex. 221

Bl The Lacal charged members $100 for the Leve| 200 seats and $125 for the Club seats. (Exs. 535, 543) The

Local's records shawed that the Local took in $11,375 in ticket sales for this game for 106 tickets sald. {Exs. 535,

174) After accounting for the 511,375 the Local took tn for titket sales for the 2013 Raiders game, the Local spent
approximately $6,049 in connection with the 2013 Ozkland Raiders game. {Ex. 566)

&2 The Local paid $3,719.92 to Stiverado Stages for a bus to the Raiders game. {Ex. 224}
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Game”. {Ex, 227} The setond copy it produced had handwritten on the copy of the recelpt for
the same purchase, *Oakland Ralder Game Food and Raffles.” {Ex. 227) Rosas caused the Local
to purchase 264 units of beer, 144 cans of soda, 36 botties of liquor as wel as cookies and
candy. {Fxs. 227, 174) Also included in Rosas’ Costeo purchase were 14 gift cards costing
$679.96, for movies and restaurants which could be used by any holder. (Ex. 227) There were
no Local records indicating any of these purchases came Into its possession. {£x. 10 at 42-45; Ex.
12 at 26, 47-4B, 267-268} Rosas and Alonzo did not have the Local keep records reflacting the
disposition of these items, inciugding the gift cards that were cash equivalents. {Exs. 474, 273}

Rosas 2nd Alonzo also caused the Local to purchase 120 tee shirts from Stars and Stripes
for $1,485.66 allepedly for the game, {Ex. 363) The Local had purchased only 110 tickets. (Exs.
232-223) There were no required approvals obtained for this shirt purchase, There were no
records reflecting that the shirts were received at the Local, {Ex. 10at 42-45)% Rosas znd Alonzo
did not have the Local maintain records of the disposition of any of the shirts, incfuding the 10
surpius ones. {Ex. 564; Ex. 10 ot 43; Ex. 8 at 391)

i, Fishing Trips

Between 2002 and 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Lecal to spend at least 533,232 1in

connection with fishing trips held each year, {Ex. 566) There were no members’ appravals as

reguired to spend $24,620 in substantis! expenditures for these trips. (Exs. 511, 25-28) In 2011,

& The Local's practlce priot to the baaks and records examination was ta not keep track of [tems recelved at
the Local. [Ex. 10 at 42-45; Ex, 12 at A8} As described above at pages 24-28, hefore the IRE's books and records
exarmination, in prior yeats the excess shirts purchased from 5tars and Stripes for the Ralders games ranged from -
25 to 50 shirts each vear that were not accounted for,
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the Board approved spending $980 on a fishing trip. {Ex. 413)% There were no other Board
approvals. {Exs. 31-35) Between 200% and 2013, Rosas and Blonzo caused the Local to spend
432,242 without Board approval for the trips. {Ex. 566}

For the fishing trip on August 11, 2012, Rosas and Alonzo without authority caused the
Local to pay 58,220, including the rental of three boats for 46,800, (Ex. 231)% On August 7,
2012, Rosas charged $812.92 on his Local eard at Sports Althority for various itams, Including:
six fishing poles, twa tackle boxes and three children's fishing kits. {Ex. 267) The Local paid the
charges. (Ex.267) Rosas also caused the Local to purchase Raiders items that day at Sports
Authority, including two stadium seat cushlons and slx coolers. [Ex. 267) The handwrlitten
notatipn on this receipt was “Raffles — Fishing and Reider Game." {Ex. 267) There was no Board
approval for the Local to pay for any of these items. (Ex. 34) Thera were nelther records at the
Local refiecting the disposition of these items as federal law required Rosas and Alon2o to
maintain of that the Local had ever received the items. {Ex. 474; Bx. 10 at 42-45}

iv. Labor Day Pichics

Between 2009 and 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to spend at least 581,632
ailegedly for Labor Day picnics. {Ex. 566)  in no year did Resas antd Alonzo abtaln members’
approvals for eny substantial non-routine expenditure for the picnics as they were required to
do. {Exs. 25-28) They caused the Local to spend $55,793 in such expenditures without

members’ approval, (Exs. 511, 25-29)

5“ In » Board poil dated August 11, 2011, the Executive Board approved spending 3990 for fllet knives and 3
gratuity for the crew. (Exs, 413, 806}

& The Lacal also pald 400 in gratultles te the fishing center. {Ex. 252)
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tn 2009, the Board authorized spending $5,000 for that year's picnic. {Ex. 412} Rosas
and Alonze caused the Loca! to spend 513,016 for the picnic, $8,016 more than the Board
approved, [Ex. 566} Despite having sought some approval in 2003, from 2010 through 2013,
Rosas and Alonze caused the Lotal to spend for picnics without any Board approvals. {Exs. 32-
35, 5661%° Inciuding the unauthorized spending in 2008, from 2002 through 2913, they spent
£76,632 on picnics without Board approval, {Ex. 566}

Rosas and Alorzo caused the Local to spend $33,542 on the 2011 pichic. (Exs. 566, 428)
They did not secure Board and membership approvals for these non-routine, su bstantial
expenditures, {Exs. 25-29, 31-35)¥ Rosas ceused the Local to purchase $2,842 51 worth of
iterns at Costeo allegedly to raffle at the picnic. (Ex. 477) These included two youth snorkels,
twa microscopes, four packs of 24 Titlelst golf balls, four junch boxes, four DVD players, three
rolling duffel bags, two heaters, three backpacks and three blenders. (Ex. 477) There were no
records of the items being received at the Local. (Ex. 10 at 42-45; Ex, 12 at 26, 47-48, 267-268)
Rosas and Alonzo falled to have the Local make a_nd maintain records of the itemns’ disposition
as they were legally required to do. (Exs. 273, 474}

Rosas and Alonzo taused the Local to spend $15,957 without approvals an the 2012
{abor Day plenic, Including an August 31, $3,698.12 purchase of items from Costca allegedly to

be given to members at the plenic. (Exs. 428, 390} %8 These Included four Mr, Potato Heads,

BE From 205C through 2013, there were no Board approvals to spend Local funds for a Labor Day picnic,
{Exs. 32-35) This was despite, 25 the approval in 2009 showed, the two knew Board approval was reguired,

&7 That year, Reses and Alonze taused the Local to spend $24,780 for substantial purchases over $1.000 for
the picnic, {Ex. J48)

&8 Alonzo's Costen mambership number, which was associated with the Local’s Costeo buskness account, was
used for these purchases, {Exs. 350, 463}
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four Lego Brickmaster kits, flve garment steamers, 12 Regal movie glIft cards, six hair trimmers,
four spice racks, four toaster ovens, two rice cookers and eight irons. (Ex. 380) There were no
records of the items being recelved at the Local. (Ex. 12 at 26, 47-48, 267-268} Roszas and
alonzo also failed to have the Local make and maintain recorts of the disposition of these
tems. (Exs. 273, 474)

k. Rosas and Alonza Failed o Obtain Executive Seard and

Membership Aparovals for Purchases from Stars and Stripes

Batween 2008 and 2013, Rosas and Alorzo caused the Local to pay $314,301 to Stars
and Stripes allegedly for ftems such as shirts, hats, tankards and bags. (Exs. 345, 544.550)%
Between 2008 and 2013, the Executive Board approved only $47,478.01 of these purchases.
{Exs. 349, 544-550)7 There was only membership approval for & purchase of $20,000 in 2013,
[Ex. 29) Between 2008 and 2013, Rosas and Alonze caused the Local to spend $270,533 In non-
routing substantial purchases over $1,000 from Stars and Strlpes without membership approval
and $266,823 from Stars and Stripes without required Board approval, {Exs. 348, 343)1

For example, without any authorization, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase
1,750 shirts for the 2011 pienic for $13,113.29, [Ex. 466} That year, Rosas and Alonzo also

caused the Loca! to purchase 315 additional shirts from that vendor for 54,138.24 also allegedly

= Some of these purchases from Stars and Steipes were gllegedly connected to the Hollday parties, Raiders
games znd Labor Day picnics, {Exs. 349, 511)

n This included 526,000 approved at the Ortober 16, 2013 Exgcutive Board meeting for *. . . the purchase of
shirts, hoadies and zip up jackets™. {Ex. 35} This was after the [RE’s books and records examination. [Ex. 516)

LS As noted above, substantlal purchases were considerad to be those over $1,000. Between 2008 and
2013, the Local spent $290,5533 In substantial purchases from Stars and Stripes. {Ex. 348)
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for the picnic, {Ex. 473} Alonzo and Rosas did not have the tocaf keep records to account for
the disposition of the 2,065 shirts bought in 2011 waorth over 517,000. (Exs. 466, 473, 547, CE4)
There were both Loeal and international elections in 2011. {Exs. 603, 614] In contrast 10 the
election year, in 2010 and 2012, the Local did not purchase anything from Stars and Stripes for
the Labor Day picnic. [Exs, 427, 425)7

€. Rosas and Alonzo Fafled to Cause the Local to RMaintain Records of

the Dispositicn of Assets as Federal Law Required

in addition to Rosas and Alonzo purchasing items without autherity in breach of their
fiduciary duties under 29 U S.C. §501(z) 2s described above, they repeatedly falled to have the
Local record the disposition of Local assets as 29 U.S.C. §5431, 436, required them personally to
ensure was done. Between 2009 and 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase at
least $72,012 in merchandlse they claimed was to be raffled or given to members, (Exs. 542,
541, 272, 396)7 The iters allegadly to be raffled Included negotiable gift cards, televisions,
DVD players, liquor and personal appliances. (Exs, 542, 541, 272, 396) 7% As sipnatories on
Furms LM-2, Alonzo and Rosas ware requirad to ensure the Locsl malntained records
conmtemporanecusly reflecting the disposition of its assets. (29 U.5.C. §8431, 438, 435; &x. 552)

Alonzo and Rosas admitted that the Local did not keep any records of when ltems were

T In 2010 and 2012, the Local made purchases from Stars and Stripes for other events. {Exs. 546, 548)

i For much of the merchandise, the Local had no recerds confirming the purchases were received. {Ex. 12 at
26, 47-48, 267-268)

“ This 472,162 53 amount included Items purchased at Costeo allegedly ta be rafiled or given as
“membership apprectation”, which Included televislons, DVDs and glft cards, as well as televisions and gift cards
purchased at vendors other than Costee. (Ex. 542} The items purchased at Costoo totaled 564,757.75; the
televisions purchased somewhere other than Costeo totaled $6,018.78 and the gt cards not purchased at Costoo
iotaled 51,385, {Exs. 542, 386, 272}
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allegedly raffled, what was raffled and who received those items until after the IRE's
examination in October 2013, (Ex. 1D at 47; Exs. 273, 474, 516) Given the hature of the items
purchased, Rosas and Alonzo created an environment at the Local that made it ripe for offlcer
embezzlement. Even after the RB examination, recordkeeping was still inadequate. For
example, in 2013 the Local's record recorded that nine Regal gift cards were "comped” without

disclosing to whom such cards were given, where, when and why. {Ex. 602)
1. Costeco Purchases for Raffles

Between January 2009 and May 2013, Resas and AloRzo caused the Local to purchase
$64,757 from Costco in ltems atlegediy to give to members. (EX, 541} Seme of these purchases
were made in connection with the holiday parties, Raiders games and Labor Day picnies
discussed above. Rosas and Alonzo did not have the Locat maintain records regarding the

dlsposition of these items as they were required to da. {EX, 4740 7=
2. Televisiohs and DVD Players

Between December 2010 and May 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase
31 televisions for 58,175.69. (Ex. 396}  The tocal had no records reporting what happened to

these, including to whom, when, why or where a television was transferred. (Ex. 474)"7 For

* As discussed above, efter the IRES boaks and records examination, the Local hegan to maintain records
regarding who received raffle items. (Ex. 474)

Tt There was no membership approval for these television purchases most of which were substantial nan-
routing expenditures totaling over 51,000 on one day at one store. {Ex. 396)

e some of these televisions were purchased at Coston and are included In the total cost of the Costeo raffle

ltems described above. The cost of the televisions not purchased at Costeo hetween December 2010 and May
2013 was 56,019.78, {Fx. 396} These televisions were purchased at Best Buy. (Ex, 355]
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example, on December 9, 2011, Rosas caused the Local to purchase 14 televisions and six DVD
players for $4,948.18. (Ex, 135)7¢  Alonze and Rosas did not ensure the Local had records
refiecting the disposition of these items, (Ex. 474] Simifarly, on December 7, 2012, Rosas
caused the Lotal to purchase elght televisions for $2,459.91. {Ex. 157)° Again, they failed to
have the Loca! maintain records of their disposition. {Ex. 474)

3. Gift Cards

In the years 2005 through May 2013, Alonzo and Rosas caused the Local io purchase
190 gift cards costing $5,592.85, without required Board approvals. (Exs. 272, 273} They failed
to have the Local keep recerds reflecting the disposition of the cards. [Exs. 272, 273)® Gift
cartls were cash equivalents that could be used by whomever possessad them. {Ex. 509) &

On December 7, 2011, at Local expense Rosas purchased 24 discount gift cards far
rnovie theaters, Cold Stone Creamery, Jamba Juice, Elephant Bar and Dewz Restaurant for
$995.70, (Ex. 388) The Local had no records reflecting it received them or what happened to
these cards. {Ex. 273; Ex. 12 at 4B-49)

On December 6, 2012, Rosas caused the Local to purchase 60 gift cards for 5615.14 for

Elephant Bar Restaurant, Jamba luice, Coldstene Creamery and Regal and AMC movie theaters.

8 The notation on the check was "Membership Appt. Hollday Party.” {Ex. 358)

m That day Rosas taused the Local to purchase one 42 inch, two 38 inch and flve 32 inch televislons. (Ex
157) The réceipt he submitted to the Local for those purchases had 2 handwritten notation *Gifts — Party.” (Ex.
157]

& Some of these gift cards were purchased at Costeo and are included in the total cost of the Costoo rafiie
items described above. The cost of the glft cards not purchased at Costeo between January 2009 and Mey 2013
was 51,385, {Ex. 272)

&l The IRS has recognlzed gift cards are a cash equivalent, (Ex. 508}
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[Ex. 394} On October 31, 2013, Rosas purchased another 14 gift cards for $679.86 using his
Local card. {Ex. 381)% For all the cards Rosas purchased, Rosas and Alonzo failed o have the
Local maintatn records refiecting the disposition of these cards. (Ex. 273} There were no
recorgs reflecting the Local ever recelved them, {Ex. 10 ai 42-45; Ex. 12 at 48-43; Ex. 8 at 391}

Using his Local card, on November 21, 2013, Rosas purchased 35 $15 Safeway gift cards
for $525. {Ex. 306} He provided no union purpase for the purchase on the receipt he suhmlitted
io the Local. (Ex. 306) There was no record reflecting these cards came into the Local’s
possession. (Ex. 12 at 26, 47-48, 267-268) The Local had no records regarding the disposition of
the gift cards that Rosas purchased. (Ex. 273)

4, No Records regarding the Disposition of ltems Purchased from Stats
and Stripes

As described above, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase numerous items
from Stars and Stripes without any authority. Resas and Alonzo did not have the Local track
the disposition of items purchased from Stars and Stripes, assuming it received them. {Ex. 564)

For example, on December 7, 2011, the Local Issued a check for 55,93D to Stars and
Stripes which Rosas and Alonzo signed to purchase 500 16 ounce glass beer tankards with Local

439 and the Teamster logo printed on them. {Exs. 132, 547) The Local's records for this

& These gift cards were the following: elgin Regal Combo gift cards ($199.92); twe Papa Pavlos Restaurant
gift cards (5158.98); two Elephant Bar gift cards [$159.58) and two Shirashoni restaurant gift cards (5159.98). (Ex.
391)

# On November 16, 2013, Rosas purchased more gift cards: four Elephant Bar restaurant gift cards; nine
fegal Theater Cambo gift cards and faur Honey Baked Ham gift cards totallng 5864.83, (£x. 402} This was after the
I6E's books and Fecords examination and the Local had records reflecting the disposition of the elght Elephant Sar
and Honey Baked Ham cards. (Ex. 502) Rosas and Aloneo falled to have records for the nine Regal Theater cards.
{Ex. 602} In the reciplent cotimn for the mine Regal Theater gift cards thera was the notatlon “comped”. {Ex.602)
Who was “comped” and for what union purpose was not Included. {Ex. 502]
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purchase was noted, “ttems for Holiday Party”. {Ex. 132) There were no Board angd mambers’
approvals for this purchase as required. {Exs. 27, 33} There were no records showing the
tankards came into its possession. (Ex. 10 at 42-45)*  The Local had none of the records
Alanzo and Rasas were obligated to ensure it maintained detailing when, where, to whorn angd
why the tankards were distributed. {Exs. 564, 474) The Local paid for 2440 dinners at the 2013
holiday party and purchased S00 tankards. (Ex, 378) There were no records indicating what
happened to any of the tankards, (Exs. 474, 564135 This year, when the Local also made the
unique purchase of over two thousand shirts allegedly for the picnic, was hoth a Lecal and an
Internatianal efection year, {Exs. 603, 614}

in Dacember 2012, the Local purchased from Stars and Stripes 500 black duffel bags
embroiderad with “Teamsters Local 439”. {Ex. 151) On December 18, the tocal Issued a check
Rosas and Alonzo signed for $4,273,67 to Stars and Stripes. (Ex. 151} The memo notation on
the check detall report stated 12 Ann. Heliday Party {1/2 of Inv. 17704)", (Ex. 151} Invoice
17704, which was for the bags, was dated December 3, 2012 for $8,547.34. {Ex. 151) The Local
issued a second check an March 1, 2013 to pay the other half of this invoice, [Ex. 152] The
notation for the second check in the Local's check detail report was “Mbrship App.-Bags”. (Ex.
152] The memo on this check stated “Inv. 17704.” {(Ex. 152} Stars and Stripes was subpoenaed.
Its records for this invoice appeared to show that items on this invoice were shipped on

December 3, 2012, {Ex, 151) There were no Board and mermbers’ approvals as required to

4 The Local’s practice was not to track whether it had actuzally recelved merchandise [t purchased. (Ex. 10 at
42-45; Ex. 12 at 26, 47-48, 267-26H)

= The inventory the Local created after an [RB request far an Inventary of itarns on hand did not include any
tankards. [Fx. 5BE]
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purchase these bags. (Exs. 28, 34) There wera no recerd refiecting how, when, where and o
whom they were distributed. {Exs. 564, 474) Even assuming helf were for the pariy, the reason
for the other 250 was not explained in Local records.®

By check dated November 19, 2013, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to purchase
from Stars and Stripes another 400 glass tankard beer mugs with the Teamster logo and “Local
438, Stockion, CA” for $4,369. [Ex. 169) The memo on the check voucher stated, "Inv, 21210
[Beer Mugs) Christmas Party”. {Ex. 169) There were no members and Board approvals far this
purchase as required. {Exs. 29-35) There was no union purpose given explalning the purchase
which exceeded the number of attendees. (Ex. 376) Rasas and Alonzo did not have the Local
keep records reflecting the disposition or retention of these mugs. {Exs, 564, 474)

b. Rosas’ Lack of Receipts

similar to failing to account for the disposition of Local assets, on over 200 occastons
Rosas and Alonzo caused the Lacal to spend money without it receiving any receipt as reguired
in vialation of the Bylaws and the legal obligation to document an expense. {Ex. 5 at B, 20-21;

Ex.352)% Between January 2011 and October 2013, Rosas falled to submit receipts for at least

£ In the past in connection with an election, Rosas had caused the Local to pay for merchandise distributed
for political purpases, |Ex. 414)

. According to the hotel invaice, there were 210 entrees served at the 2013 Christras parly. {Ex.375)
Ba Sectian 10{) of the Local's Bylaws provided that the Local's Secretary-Treasurer *_ .. shall keep itemized
records, showlng tha source of all manles received and spent . . .M [Ex. 5 at 8} Sectlon 16{B) of the Bytaws entitled
“Expenses” stated the followlng:
When a reprasentative of the organlzation is engaged in activitles In the interest of, or for the
tenefit of the organlzation and its members within the scope of his authority, the tabor
arganization shall pay the expenses incu rred thergin, of relmburse the representativa epon

recsipt of iternized vouchers from him or the suppller of such services.

[Ex. 5 at 20-21)
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239 charges totaling $43,423,84 that he had incurred on his Local credit card. (Exs, 352, §00)
Desplte the absence of receipts, Rosas and Alonza signed the checks which paid the credit cards
bills for these. {Exs. 275-305, 530, 371, 279, 287}

Rosas submitted 2 letter dated April 9, 2014 to the IRB which lsted 239 of his charges
for which he acknowledged that the Local had no receipts. {Ex. 352)% The Local had pald
these. {Exs. 352, 275-305, 530, 371, 600) The Local Bylaws, 18T policy and federal law required
the Local to have supporting documentation for all expenditures. (Ex. 5 at 8, 20-21; £x. 4 at 2;
29 U.S.C. 55431, 436, 439; Ex. 55210 No Local records reflected the unlon purposes for the
expenditures for which receipts were missing. {Exs. 275-305, 53¢, 371}

Rosas and Alonzo signad the checks to have the Local pay these charges without
required documentary support. (Exs. 275-305, 530, 371} The bookkeeper testiled that she
told Alonzo about Rosas’ pattern of failng to submit receipts. {(Ex. 12 at 17}  Alonzo, ighoring

his fiduciary ane legal responsibilities, responded that Rosas “was the boss.” (£x, 12 at 17}

B3 During hls sworn examination, Rosas acknowledged that he did not turn in some of those receipts to the
Local. (Ex. B at 61) He claimad that he was "pretty sure” he submitted some of those recelpts to the Lozal and
sugpested that the Eocals bookkeeper misplaced them. (Ex. 8 at 61) In his Aprit 8, 2014 etter, Rosas stated that he
was In tha process of obtalning copies of missing recelpts refated to hotel and airline charges and would submit
thers to the 1RB. {Ex. 352} Rosas also wrote In Ris letter that, ™if receipts are unavaitable, 1 will sepplement this
respanse with further detail.” [Ex, 352) Rosas did nelther.

9" The |EF's Marual for Secratary-Treasurars requires that, “st & minimum, il disbursements must be:...
Supported by an ltamized invoice, recelpt of statement detailing the items ordered ar the services provided or 1o
be provided,” [Ex. 4 at 73)

an Rosas and Mlanzo were fully aware of the need for receipts. (n January 28, 2013, Rosas and Alonzo
issued a memo regarding the Local's credit card policy to all business agents, (Ex. 560} This potley emphasized that
sl receipts must be turned in to the bocal sach month znd specified that recelpts for charges on the Local's Visa
card must be submitted by the end of the third week of each month, (Ex, 560) After the date of this meme, In the
wine months between February 1, 2023 and Dctober 31, 2012, Rosas failed to submit 42 recetpts for itemns he
chatged on his Local eredit card. {Exs. 352, 600) The total value of these was 36,024.37. (Ex. 600} Rnsas and
Alonzo had the Local pay all those charges, (Exs, 296-305, 371)
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Title 29 1.5.C. §431{b) requires a Local to file an annual form detaiting mandated
information with the Department of Labor. (Ex. 552) included in that reguired informatian are
all Local expenditures, all loans to officers and a statement of Local assets. {Ex. 552)% Title 29
(.5.C. 3436 provides,

Every person required to file any report under {this subchapter] shall maintain
racords on the matters required to be reported which will provide in sufficient
datail the necessary basic information ane data from which the documents filed
with the Secretary may be verified, expiained or clarified, and checked for
accuracy and completeness, and shall include vouthers, warksheets, receipts,
and applicable resolutions, and shall keep such records available for examination

for a period of hot iass than five years after the filing of the documents based an
the information which they contain.

(Ex, 552} This required the Local to have . .. accurate, conlemporaneous records reflecting ail
union recelpts and disbursements. . ..” United States v. Budzanoski, 462 F. 2d 443, 450 |37 Cir.
1972) cert. denied, 409 U.S, 949 {1872},

The Local and the officers who sign the Forms LM-2 are required under 23 U.5.C. §430
to ensuré the Local has records “. . . contemporaneously made with the transactions invoived
from which the Secretary of Labor as the representative of the public, and the labor
organization’s members can check to verify and clarify any expenditures made by the labor

organization.” Hodeson v, United Mine Warkers, 1971 WL 705 at *2 (D.0.C. April 13, 1971)

{unton’s failure *. . . to maintain and keep supporting documents reflecting the date, purpase
and specific amount of the disbursement, frequently in cash, and in many instances faited to

obtain receipts from the witimate reciplents of funds disbursed” viclated 29 U.5.C, §436};

sz Pursuant to 29 U.5.C. 5331{h}, all labar organlzations must file annval reports containing, among ather
things, “assets and Babliities at the beginning 2nd end of the fiscal year”, “direct and indirect loans made to any
officer , . . which aggregated more than $250 durlng the fiscal year, together with 2 statemant of the purpose,
security, If any, and arrangement for repayment” and “sther disbursements made by it including the purposes
thereof” {Ex. 552}
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United States v. Chittenden, 530 F.2d 41, 42 (5th Cir. 1976} (officer required to sign Form LM-2 is

personaliy responsible for failure to keep required records under 28 U.5.C. §436).

All expenditures of Local funds must he reported on the Forms LM-2, (Ex. 510 &t 15, 32}
Accordingly, Rosas and Alonzo as the officers who signed the Forms LM-2, were required to
rmaintain records of all such disbursements pursusnt to 26 U.5.C. §436. Rosas swore to the
truth of Forms LM-2 the Local filed for years 2009 through 2013. (Exs. 18-22) Alonzo signed the
Forms LiVi-2 under path for years 2010 through 2013. (Exs. 19-22) They violated and caused
the Local to violate federal Jaw. 29 U.S.C. §5431(b}, 436, 439 and 440. Asthe Court explained in
Budzanaskl, supra, 462 F. 2d at 449-450, which involved a conviction for the falsification of
union records that were required to be kept under the LMRDA, the law required a Local to
rotain,

(1) accurate, contemporaneous records reflecting aH union receipts and
disbursement; (2] supporting documents refiecting the entry of transactions inte

the union’s accounts and their reproduction In the annual financial statement;
and (3) any interim financial records that ¢an serve to check that annual repott.

Id. at 450, Rosas’ and Alonzo's failure to maintain required records exposed the Local to

criminal and eivil liability, 29 U.5.C. §8435, 440, New York Centraf and Hugdson River Railroad v.

United States, 212 U.5. 481, 492-96 {190%) (ar entity can be itable for the criminal acts of an
employee committed within the scope of his employmant). Hare, it was within the scope of
Rosas’ and Alonzo’s employment to have the Local recards accurately reflect the disbursement

of the Local’s funds and Its assets. They failled to do so.

E. Rosas Engaged in a Pattern of Criminal Conduct
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In addition to his viplations of the criminal provisions for record keeping chliggtions
discussed above, Rosas emnbezzied, received illegal loans, committed fraud and received a thing

of value from an empioyer white principal officer of the Local.

1, Rosazs Embezzled and Breached His Fiduchary Duties wheh He
Caused the Locat to Pay for Non-Unlen Expenses

Between 2008 and 2014, Rosas embezzled tocal funds and breached his fiduciary duties
by causing it to pay for expenses unrelated io union business, The evidence shows thiat Rosas
used Locat 439 as “a personal piggy bank” making withdrawals under false pretenses to pay
non-union expenses. United States v, IBT [Ligurotis], 814 F. Supp. at 1185, for exampie, Rosas
ard Alonzo without a2 union purpose caused the Local to pay e retiring business agent over
£15.000 in alleged unused vacation time to which the agent was not entitied. {Exs, 617, 6, 51-
64) Rosas also embezzied when he caused the Local to pay $3,484.21 for a Hawaiian vacation
for the same ex-agent without the Board and members approvals the Bylaws required. (Exs.
65, 29, 35-36) There was no union purpose for this expenditure.

In addition, Rosas embezzled whan he caused the Local to pay particular expenses he
incurred that were covered by Local atlowances he was receiving. (Ex. 66} Rosas also
embeazzled when he caused the Local to pay for personal expensgs such as in town meals,
multiple tickets to foothall games, hote! rooms and bar bilis without & unlon purpose. These

totaled at least $15,680. (Exs. 617, 75, 527)

a. Rosas and Alonzo Embezzled Whan They Caused the Local Without Authority to Pay a
Retired Business Agent $15,000 Maore for Unused Vacation Than He Was Entltied To
and Rosas Also Embezzled When He Caused the Local to Give the Retired Agent at
Local Expense a Trip to Hawail
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In May 2013, Rosas and Alonzo embezzled Local funds, when they caused the Local to
pay retiriag business agent Speckman %15,928.43 for 645.56 hours beyond what Speckman was
entified to. (Fxs. 617, 51, 52-84)* in addition, in February 20014, Rosas embezzled when he
caused the Local to purchase a 53,484.21 Hawaiian vacation package for the retired Speckman.

(Ex. 65)% There was no union purpose or benefit from either expenditure.

L Lirlts the Executive Board Set on Accruing Vacation Pursuant to
the Bylaws

Pursuant to Section 16{D} of the Local 439 Bylaws, only the Board had the authaurity 1o
cat the terms and conditions of employment for officers and empicyees, including vacation. {(Ex.
5 gt 22} The Board approved a written vacation policy on January 21, 2009. (Exs. 6, 31" The
Board approved a schedule of vacation based upon years of service and limited an employee’s
scerual of unused vacation to 250 hours. {Ex. 6} In 2009, Rosas and Alonzo, as Board
members, approved these compensation terms for employees thus limiting the accrued unused
vacation an employee could cerry forward ta the next year. (Exs. 6, 31} Their initials appeared
on the Board approved policy dated January 21, 2009 and they attended the Board meeting at

which the vacation benefit was approved. |Exs. 6, 31)

= $packman had worked at the Lecal since at least 2000. {Ex. 60X
bl Rosas and Speckman were friends, [Ex, 12 at 126)
= The Local's prior vacation policies were more restrictive on the amount of vacation that could be carried

over. The Local's vacation policy spproved on lanuary 10, 2001 provided that, “vacation not used must be cashed
out at the end of each year.” [Ex. §15] Rosas inftialed this policy. (Ex. 615) The Local's vacation policy approved
on May 17, 2006 provided that an employee could carry over 3 maxkimum of two weeks vacation. {Ex, £16) Rosas
initialed this policy. (Ex. 616} The 2003 poitcy, which he sizo Initlaled, increased the amount of accrual pessible
fram 100 to 250 hours, {EX. 5]

" Under California law there is no right to carry wnused vacation from a prior year into the next. If an
etnployer allows that practice, It can set |lenits o the amount it allows, [Ex. 561)
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It Rosus and Alonzo Embezeled When They Knowlngly Caused the
1ocat to Pay Speckman for Unused Vacation to Which He was Not Entitbed

in violation of the expiicit Board impased 250 hour limit, Roses permitted Speckman to
carry forward 474 vacation hours into 2011, 654 vacation hours into 2012 and 724 vacation
hours into 2013. {Ex. 47) Rosas knew these accruals exceeded the vacation compensation the
Board set, {Ex. B at 339-340, 343-344, 347) He and Alonzo did not discicse the accruals on the
Forms LM-2 as they were required to do. {Exs. 20-21) Disciosure would have revealed their
viciation of the compensation fimits te non-fulitime officers and the members. el

speckman retired effective May 21, 2013. (Ex. 588] At the and of May 2013, Rosas and
Alonzo caused the Local to pay Speckman $15,928.43 for 645.66 hours more than he was
entitied to be paid for as compensation for unused vacation. [Exs. 617, 51, 62-64, 6)°% They did
this without authority and for no union purpose. The vacation entitlement the Board set
allowed for an employee to carry forward 3 maximum of 250 hours vacation into the next year.
(Ex. 6) in the year Speckman refired, Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to pay Speckman
$34,327.32 fnr 1,351.46 vacation hours. {Exs, B17, 51-64)% As explained below, this was
$15,928.43 more than he was entitled to because he was paid for 645.66 more vacation hours

than he should have been. The 645.66 hours included 474 hours Speckman was credited with

el They were also not disclosed 2s llabilities on the manthiy Trustees keports filed with the |BT. {Exs. 421-
A2
“ The $15,928.43 amount was determined by multiplying the B45.68 haurs be was not entitied to by his

hourly rate of $24.67. Speckman’s hourly rate of 424 £7 In May 2013 was obtained by dividing the gross amount
of his paycheck by the numbar of hours for which he was paid.

w The Local's Gulckbogis records showed that Speckman either taok of cashed out 1,343.77 vacatlen hours
in 2012. (Ex. 42) 'n 2n AJgust 13, 2014 levter, the Lotal's certiflad public accountant stated that the vacation
shown on the Local's Quickbooks records were not accurate. {Ex. 501 The Local's checks and check stubs showed
speckman was actually paid more, for 1,391.46 hours vacation in 2013, (Exs, 517, 51, 52-564)
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having acerued heyond the 250 hour limit the Board set an accrued vacation hours permitted to
be carried forward, [Exs. 617, 6, 51-64; Ex. 12 at 132-133)*%

The maximum number of accrued vacation hours Speckman was entltled to be paid for
through May 2013 was 745.80 as outlined below. Throughout 2013, Speckman was elther paid
for or cashed out 1,391.46 vacation hours, including 661.46 hours paid to him by threa checks,
one dated May 29, 2013 and two dated May 31, 2013, [Exs. 51-64, 617)

At the start of 2013, Speckmar was entitled to 350 vacation hours that had been
accrued in 2012 but were not credited to him under the Local's vacation policy untl january
2013, {Exs. &, 47, 51) In addition, pursuant to ihe Board's vote on accrued vacation, he was
antitled to carry forward into 2013 a maximum of 250 hours he had previously acerued. (Ex.
B}1% He had accrued these 250 hours. (Ex. 47} in addition ta the 600 hours carrted forward
from 2012, Speckman also accrued 145,80 more vacation hours during 2013 for working
between January and May.2%2 Thus, the maximum vacation hours Speckman was entitled to be
paid for through May 2013 was 745,80 hours. Despite this, In 2013, Rosas and Alonzo, the
Local’s onfy two full-time officers and 1ts chack signatories, knowingly aliowed Spackman to

efther take or cash out 1,391.46 vacation hours, {Exs. 617, 51-64) Accordingly, they raused the

R It is Unclear where the additional 171.66 hours Rosas and Alonzo caused the Local to pay Speckman came
from. 1t was not supplied I the Local’s records.

0 According to the Local's vacstion schedule for Speckman, Instead of the 250 hotirs he wes entitlad to
under the Local's vacation policy, Speckman was permitted to carry over 724 hours, 474 hours beyond the policy.
[Ex. 47)

e In 2013, Speckman accrued vacation hours at the rate of 28.16 hours per month, 350 per year. (Ex. 6} Five
manths at this rate was 145.80 hours,
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Local to pay Speckman 515,928.43 for 645.66 vacation hours that he was not entitied to. (Exs.
617, 51)

in 2013 prior to May 1, Speckman had efther used or cashed in 330 vacation hours
worth $9,374 50, (Exs. 617, 51-56) This was paid to him through seven thecks. {Exs. 51-56)
Roses signed all of these and Alonzo signed six. (Exs, 51-56)*3 The stubs for six of these checks
showed that Speckman was credited with more time than the 745.80 vatation hours which was
the maximum amount he was entitled to. (Exs. 51-55)1% For example, the check stub for the
check Rosas and Alonza signed dated March 6, 2013 showed that Speckman had 1,044 vacation
hours avallabie to him. [Exs. 51-52) Under the Local’s vacation polley, the officers wouid have
known that was rmathematically impossible. The maximurm possible was never to exceed 250
accrued hours, plus the avaitable hours earned in the immediztely prior year and the vacation
hours earned in the current year.

The Local’s bookkeeper testified Rosas and Alonzo instructed her ta pay Speckman far
all his vacation hours at his retirement which was effective May 31, 2013. (Ex. 12 at 133; Ex.
588] Rosas and Alonzo told her, “Cash him out; his vacation has accrued.” {Ex. 12 at 133) The
unused vacation hours Speckman was paid for on May 25 and May 31, 2013 Included hours
beyend the Local's cap on accrued vacation. (Ex. 12 at 132-133; Exs, 6, 51} In the last month of
Speckman’s employment, the Local issued an additional 11 vacation checks to him. {Exs. 51, 57-

64) These represented payment to Speckman for 1,061.46 unused vacation hours beyond the

1 On one check dated April 24, 2013, Alonzo's facsimila signature was on the check. {Ex, 56
0a Spackman's check stubs for the foliowling dates In 2013 shawed the following vacation amounts avallable

o him: March 6, 2013, 1044 hours; March 13, 924 hours; March 20, a44 hours; March 27, B84 hours; April 3, 844
hours, Apeid 16, 794 haurs and April 24, 744 hours. (Exs. 51-56)
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hours for which he had been pald in 2013 before May, (Exs. 51, 57-64} Alonzo sipned ten of
these checks and Rosas signed seven. {Exs. 51, 57-64) n that month, Kosas and Alonzo caused
the Local to pay Speckman for 645.66 more hours than he was entitled to. {Ex, 617}

The last three vacation checks Rosas and Alonzo signed for Speckman were:I May 29 for
$986,80 for 40 unused vacation hours; & check dated May 31 for $7,449.68 for 304 unused
vacation hours and also on May 31 one for $7,831.74 for another 317.46 unused vacation
hours. {Exs. 51, 62-64)'% The two May 31 checks Rosas and Alonzo signed noted on each
check and on the check stubs, the amount of unused vacation hours for which Speckman was
being paid. (Exs. 63-64) This came after both officers had signed multiple checks paying
Speckman for vacation that he was entitled to before May. {Exs. 51-62) in 2013 prior to May
31, Alonzo had signed 14 of the 16 vacation payment checks issued to Speckman and Rosas 12.
{€xs. 51-62) Thus, knowing that they had already issued numergus checks for unused vacation
to Speckman since January, Rosas and Alonzo slgned the two final checks, which they knew or
shoulg have knows, were payments Speckman was not entitled to amounting to an additional
671.46 unused vacation hours substantially beyond what he could have any vight to. {Exs. 63-
64)1% They knew or closed their eyes to knowing they were having the Local pay Speckman
substantially above what the maximum under any circumstances he could be entitled to.

The final three chacks represented payment to Speckman for 661.46 unused vacation

hours. (Exs. 51, 62-64) Speckman was not entitled ta 545,66 of these hours, including 424

L The net amount of the May 29, 2013 check, which included holiday pay, was £891.45, |tx, 62) The net
amounts of the May 31, 2013 checks ware 56,050.85 and 56,343.20 respectively. [Exs, 63-54)

16 These two final checks were for 304 and 31746 vacatton hours. [Exs. 63-564)
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acerued vacation hours for which Rosas and Alonzo were paying him in excess of the 250 hours
limit on carried over unused vacation time the Board explicitiy set.2®? There also was no basis
for the additional 171.66 hours they paid him for.

Over the years, Rosas and Alonzo concealed the vacation accruals by not reporting as
required accrued vacation as a liability on the Forms LM-2. (Exs. 20-21) The 2012 Form LM-2
flied on March 30, 2013 completaly omitted it. {Ex. 21} It was also not reported on 1BT Trustees
Reports. [Ex. 423) According to the Local's records, Speckman had acerued 724 vacation hours
into 2013 worth $17,861, yet the December 2012 Trustees Report did not include any vacation
liability from him and other Local employees. [Exs. 47, 423198 Thus, Rosas and Alonzo not only
hid it from the members and feliow Board members but did not alert the Trustees or the BT to
the liabllities.

fit. Rosas Also Embezzled When He Caused the Lecal to Pay for a
Vacatlon for Speckman

On February 10, 2014, Rosas Incurred a $3,484.21 charge on his Local card for
Hawaiian vacation package from March 22 ihrough March 28, 2014, (Ex. 55) The raceipt listed
as the primary and secondary travelers Speckman and his wife, Including thgir dates of birth.
{Ex. 65} Rosas stated this trip was a retirement gift to Speckman. {Ex. 8 at 176) Speckman had

retired in May 2013, Rine months before Rosas’ purchase. {Ex. 588} W8 This was not

1w Earlier in 2013, Speckman had either taken vacation time off or had cashed In 730 vacation hours, [Ex. 51}
The total number of vacation hours Speckman took 35 time off or cached I 1n 2013 was 1,391.86, (Exs. 51, 617) As
described above, Speckman was entltied to 745.80 vacathon hours in 2013,

108 At Speckman’s December 2002 hourly rate of £34 67, 724 haurs equaled $17,861.08. {Ex. 4B} The
Becember 2012 Trustess Report included without any detall 2 payred] labNity of 52,402.51. (Ex. 423) This was
much Jess than the value of the vacation Speckman carried aver.

i Beginning in lanuary 2014, the Local began ta pay Speckman for 45 hours a month. {Ex. 409)
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compensation for services rendered. There were no Executive Board and members’ approvals
jor Rosas’ non-routing substantial expenditure as the Bylaws required. (Ex. 5 at 16; bx. 35;Ex. 8
at 177)1° Rosas had o authority to spend this money and there was alse no union purpose for
the expenditure,

Rosas claimed he discussed the vacation for Spackman with the Board. (Ex. 8 at 177} In
the minutes, there was no reflection of any Board discussion. {Exs. 35-36) In any event,
discussion was niot approval. There was no approval of Speckman’s git reported in any Board
meeting minutes or telephone polls, (Exs. 35-36)

Former Recording Secretary Cholula recalled “some discussion” about a Hawail trip for
speckman for his retirement but did not recall a vote to approve its purchase, [Ex. 16 at 24-25)
He acknowledged If a vote to approve had occurred, he would have recorted it In the minutes.
[Ex. 16 at 26}

in any event, the Executive Board would not have had authority to make a substantiat
gift from union funds to an ex-employee without a union benefit. Moreover, such approval
wauld not have been sufficient under the Bylaws to authorize the expanditure. Membarship
approval was also required for this non-routine expenditure. {Ex. 5 at 18} The membership
minutes did net contain any approval for the Local purchase of a vacation for Speckman. {Ex.

29)111 The Recording Secretary would have reflected any such vote in the minutes. {Ex. 16 at

g Section 14{E)[E) of the Bylaws requires Executive Board approval for expenditures atd membership
approval except for “routine expenditures net of 2 subistantial nature.” (Ex. 5at 16) A trip to Hawaii for an ex-
employee was not routing. In addition, Section 16i0} of the Bylaws requires Executive Board approval far fringe
benefits for Local emplovees. {Ex, 5 at 22)

ti Rosas testified that if members approved the vacation for Speckman, ™. . . 25 a general practice, it should
be refiected in the minuies.” {Ex. 8 at 177)
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26-27) In addition 1o the testimony of the Recording Secretary about his practice to record alf
votes, the absence of a vole being recorded in any Board and membarship minutes was strong

evidence I did not nceur. United States v, 181 [tigurotis], 814 F. Supp. at 1165,

Besides acting without authority, Rosas knew there was no union benecfit to cause the
Local to buy & vacation for Speckman and his wife after Speckman’s retirement. Any gift Rasas
wanted to give his friend was a personal expense, By his conduct, Rosas embezzled.

b, Rocas Embezzied Whien He Caused the Loczl to Pay for Particular Expenses He Incurred
That Were Also Covered By Allowances He Received

Pursuant ta Section 16[A) of the Local’s Bylaws, whan traveling out of town for unton
business, officers recaived a per diem allowance to cover meal expensas. {Ex. 12 at 193; Ex, 8 at
182-183; Ex. 5 at 20- 21)1 The Bylaws specifically prohibited an emgployee being reimbursed
far expenses covered by the aflowance. {Fx. 5 at 20-21) Despite recetving this zllowance, Rosas
charped eleven food and drink charges costing $499.75 to the Local that he incurred for
expenses that the atloewance covered. (Exs. 66-74, 513, 604} Rosas caused the Local to pay

twice for these charges: once to Rasas and once to the credit card company. This was

R Sactlan 16{4) of the Local's Bylaws provided the foliowing:

.., officers and representatives may be granted an allowance {bath for tn-town and out-of-town
work, respectively, which In the cass of out-of-town work shall inciude hotel and meai
expenditures) in such amount {daily, weekly or maonthily) as the Local Unlen Executive Board may
determine and there shall be no need to make a daily or other accounting ta the Local Union
membership, ...

Where allowances are provided, officers and empioyees may not he reimbursad for additional
expenses far tems intended to be covered by the allowance without specific addvlonal
aytharization Dy the Executive Board and approval by the membership. 0 noevant shall an
afficer or employee Teceive mare than one payment for the same expense.

{Ex. 5 at 21}
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embezzlermnent, United States v. |BT [Vitale], 775 F, Supp. 80, 93 {5.0.N.Y, 1991) aff'd, United
States v, |BT, Docket No. 91-6154, slip op. {2d Cir. October 31, 1991} {Ex. 620)

When Rasas was in New Orleans from October 28 through November 3, 2011, ha
received an allowance of $100 per day for meais. [Exs. 66, §3) Rosas stayed at the Ritz Carlton.
[Exs. 6Y, 513} During this hotel stay, Rosas incurred on a Local card $578.04 and $1,273.11
charges for his room and other expenses, (Ex. £9) In violation of the Local’s Bylaws,
Department of Labor guidelines and IBT policy, when he sought the Local to pay these charges,
Rosas did not submit any receipts including the hotel bill. (Ex. 5 at 21; Ex. 4 at 73, £x. 40 at 2, B
352} Yet, the Local paid. {Ex. 63} Not submitting the required receipts enabled Rosas to
conceal he was causing the Local to pay twice for the same food charges. The IRB chtained
these receipts through subpoena. {Ex. 513} The cost of the room was 5338.87. {Ex. 513)1%9 n
addition, these recelpts showed Rosas charged $225.47 for three in room meals and an honor
har charge. {Ex. 513)1%* The allowance he had received covered these chargas. During his IRB
sworn examination, Rosas admitted that he should not have had the Local pay the charges he
submitted because the allowance covered them. (Ex. 8 at 183-185) He kept the allowance.
[Ex. 553) Even after his testimony he mada na restitution. (Exs. 353, 554}1%  |n connection

with the charges, Rosas’ intent to embeazzle was evidenced by his failure to submit any receipts

11 It was the Local's practice to allow particularized payments for hotel roams despite the Bylaws stating the
rooms should be paid by the per diem. {Ex. 5at 21) For purposes of this report, the bocal practles, although in
axplicit violation of the Bytaws, was used as the standard. If this practice is to continue, the Board should seek
amendment af the Bylaws.

14 The three in room dining eharges were as follows: $61. 44 on Octoher 28, 2031; $82.99 on Cctober 30,
2011 and $66.77 on November 2, 2011, (Ex. 513] The honor bar charge was 514,27 on Octoher 28, 2011, (Ex. 513

us The Local's records from 2009 through Fabruary 4, 2015, did not reflect that Rosas made any
reimbursement to the bocal for allowances he received, (Ex 553)
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as required. {£x. 5 at 21) A receipt would have disclosed he was seeking payment for charges
the allowance covered. 1t was further evidenced by his keeping the allowance, including after
he admitted to improperly keeping it, {(Ex. 553; Ex. § at 87-95, 103-104, 284) His intent fo
embezzie was further evidenced by his double dipping on other accaslons.

For exampie, from September 28 through October 1, 2010, Rosas received an allowante
of 5100 per day to cover meals while attending UWG negotiations in Los Angeles. {Exs. B8, 6}
During that period, Rosas stayed at the Hilton Los Angeles/San Gabriel. (Ex. 68} Despite the
allowance he received covering meals, Rosas charged 551 in food and beverages at that hotet
that the Local paid. (Ex. 68) He pocketed the allowance. (EX. 553} Again, on june 5, 2010,
Rosae caused the Local to pay a $35,80 meal charge at a restaurant at the Embassy Suites Hotel
in Los Angefes. {Ex. 71) He had received an allowance ta pay for thls. (Ex. 57) By causing the
Local ta kmproperly pay the charge, he again pocketed the allowance. On another trip, Rosas
received an allowance of $100 & day for two days to attend a Food and Drug Council meeting in
Las Vegas from December 12 to December 15, 2010. {£x. 70} He charged 5387.10 to his Local
credit card for his stay at Caesars, {Ex. 70} He did not submit any receipt for these tharges as
required. (Ex. 5 at 21; Ex. 352} Despite that, the Locai paid the full charge. {Ex. 70) His failure to
comply with the Bylaw requirement to submit a receipt enabled him to conceal his double
dipping. Rosas’ hotel bill from Cagsars was obtained by subpoena. {Ex. 604) In addition to the
roowm charges, the hotel bili showed that on December 14, Rosas charged 530,94 to his room
for a restaurant expense his allowance covered. (Ex. 604} Rosas kept the zliowance he did not

use. (Ex. 553} Rosas’ failure to submit the receipt to the Local as required concealed that he
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caused the Local to pay for a meal the allowance covered. This viclation of the Bylaws for his
personal benefit was additional evidence of Rosas’ intent to embezzie,

In another example, on June 21, 2013, Rosas recelved an allowante to cover food cosis
while attending a Jolnt Council 7 seminar in Lake Tahoe. (Exs. 57, 74)*'® On June 25, Rosas
charged $52.11 on a Local card st the Hard Rock Café in take Tahoe. (Ex. 74) Rosas indicated
ofi the receipt that Grover, the President of Stars and Stripes, and Rome Aloke |"Aloize”), an
international Vice President and Joint Council 7 President, were present, [Ex.74} The Local paid
the bili. {Ex. 74) Rosas kept the allowance covering his share. (Ex. 553) Moreover, evidenclng
Rosas’ intent to embezzle, he submitted faise information to the tocal. Wigmore on Evidence,
A™ Ed, 5278, Alpise stated under oath that he was not present on that date at this restaurant
with Rosas and Grover. (Ex. 368) 1n addition to the double dipping for himself, Rosas had no
union purpose to cause the Local to pay for a meal with Grover, a vendor ¢ the Local, in
connection with a loint Council function. The falsification of the record, the double dipping, the
objective lack of union purpose and Rosas’ failure to note tontemporaneously the union
purpose as regquired all evidenced his intent to defraud.

In another example, Rosas received three days allowance for September 17 through
September 19, 2012. (Exs. 67, 73) Despite receiving the zllowsnte fer raeals, on Septembar 17,

Rasas charged $126.89 for 2 meal at Downtown Rookies in Visalia, California. {Ex. 73] Noone

16 Rosss received per diem for five days: for June 22, 2013 for 2 Joint Council hearing in 3an Franciscs and
for June 23 through June 26 for a Joint Council Seminar. (Exs, 67, 74)
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else was listed as present. {Ex. 73} The Local paid and Rosas kept the allowance. (Exz. 73,
5531117

Sirnilarly, Rosas also embezzled through causing the Local Lo pay particular expenses he
incurred that were covered by an in-town expense allowance he received. The Board set the
Local’'s credit card policy which stated, “Each agent is provided an expense allowance eath
manth, and therefore, Incidental expenses, (in most cases) under $10, should not be charged to
the credit card.” {Ex. 6} Rosas and Alonzo each receivet a $500 per month expense aliowance
for such expenses. {Ex. &) Rosas acknowledged that he violated the Local’s policy when he
submitted charges under $10 ta the Local for payment. {Ex. 8 at 103) His pattern of double
dipping on his cut of town expenses when he also received an allowance was further evidence
of his intent to emhbezzie by double dipping on his in town allowance.

Despite receiving this $500 per month allowance, Rosas repeatedly in violation of the
credit card policy charged items under $10 on his Local card for which the Local paid and he
kept the aliowance. For example, on Cecember 7, 2012, the day before the holiday party,
Rosas charged $9,56 at the Stockton Hilton on the Local's card, (Ex. 285; Ex, 8 at 302} He gave
no explanation of the union purpese for the tharpe 1 During his sworn examination, Rosas
testified that his charge related In an unspetified way to the holigay party. {(Ex. 8 at 303} In
ather examples for which the in town allowance covered the charge, Rosas charged $6.00 and
$7.50 for parking on February 5 and March 14, 2013. (Exs. 297,299} On December 21, 2013,

Rosas charged $8.00 for parking on his Local card. (Ex. 307) Onlanuary 30, 2014, Rosas

e A handiwritten notatlon on this recetpt stated, “Prop 32" [Ex.73)

L& The receipt submitted to the tocs! had @ handwritten note, "Christmas party.” {Ex. 295}
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charged 56.72 a1 Rancho San Miguel on his Local card. {Ex. 308} Rosazs did not submit @ receipt
to the Local for this fast expense. (Fx. 308) In additlon to Rosas charging items under 510 on
his Local cradit card, Rosas paid cash for and recelved reimbursement for a $10 parking fee
incurred on February 13, 2014, which the aliowance covered, [Ex. 8 at 301-302; Ex. b) The Local
paid for all these charges Rosas incurred despite that all were covered under the allowance
Rosas received.

Rosas knew he received 2n allowance covering expenses of $10 or less. {Ex. 8 at 284}
He received $500 for this each menth, He knew the obvious: that he should not cause the
Local to 2lso pay charges of $10 or less while he pocketed the allowance, (Ex. B at 149)  For
example, Rosas testified that, when on luly 1, 2013 Alonzo reguested and received
reimbursement from the Locat for 55.13 that he had paid in cash for keys, this expense was
covered by Alonzo's expense aliowance and relmbursement was improper. [Ex. 8 at 84; £x. 10

at 90-53%; Ex. €11}

c. Rosas’ In Townr Meals without 2 Union Purpose

For the Local to pay for an officer’s meats and other expenses incurred, the Bylaws
provide:
When a representative of the organization is engaged in activities in the interest
of, or for the benefit of the organization and its members within the scepe of his
authority, the labor crganization shall pay the expenses incurred therein, or
reimburse the representative upon recelpt of itermnized vouchers from him or the
supplier of such services.
[Ex.5 at 21) Between January 3, 2011 and March 12, 2014, Rosas caused the Local to pay at least

$11,854 for 188 restaurant charges he incurred In area restaurants without a union purposes.

(Ex. 75) There were no union henefits from these charges which on their face were personat.
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fipsas did not n Local records or kn his testimany present evidence that the charges were
necessary for union purposes. For at least 14 of these he did not submit any receipt and for most
he failed ta submit itemized receipts as the Bylaws required. (Ex. 5 at 21; Bx. 75) Without the
proper documentation, he caused unauthorized Local payments of his expenses. in these
tnstances when Rosas gave an explanation for the charge he gave vague, inadeguate statements
that did not explain the need for the charge and the union purpose. The circumstances
surrounding these charges showed that Rosas had an Intent to embezzle in causing the tocal to
pay them.

Bylaws Section 16(8) provided the Locat would pay employees expenses that were
‘ncurred in the interast of or for the benefit of the members only upon the submission of itemized
reﬁeipts from the employee or the suppiiers of the goods and services. (Ex. 5 at 21) Thiswas also
|BT policy. (Fx.4 at 73] Moreover, federal law required for union payment of restaurant charges
a Local employee Incurred and sought payment for that the employee submit the ftemized
receipt the restaurants provided. (Ex. 40} Rosas failure 10 comply with these requirements
further evidenced his intent to embezzle. People v. Clausen, 52 P. 658, £59 {Cal, 1898} |failure to
make required entries evidence of knowledge that belleved entrles showed actions weve

Improger).

1z 26 U5.C. 436, [Section 206 of the Labor Management Raporting and Dlsclosure Act {“LMROA"] In order ta
compty with the recordkeeplng requirements of Section 206, the Locai is requirad to maintain the following credit
eard information: 1] Al credit card statements and gayment infermatlon for amounts pald to credit cerd vendors; 2)
Al ariginal, termizad recelpts for each credit card charge, including itemized hotel invoices, transportation costs, and
Itemized rmeal recelpts fram restaurants; and 31 For group meal expenses, Unions must also include: (3} 3 written
explanation of the specific union business conducted...; {b) the full names and {c) titles of all persons incurring the
fontt and beverage chargas. OLMS Compliance Tip, Unian Credlt Card Pollcy, April 2010 [Ex. 40]
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The Local’s Bylaws authorized the Setretary Treasurer, in conjunction with the President,
to disburse funds 1o pay the Local’s bills. {Ex. 5 at 8)1*° Eack menth Rosas and Alenzo approved
payment of charges on these cards by signing the chacks to Visa ant American Express for the
amount of the ronthly bills, {Ex. 12 at 13-17} Rosas and Alonzo routinely violated the Bylaw
injunction by causing the Local to pay charges for themselves without the required itemized
receipts. (Exs. 75, 310'21 As the few itemized receipts ihey submitied showed, such receipts
were available to Rosas and Alonzo frem the jocal restaurants. {Exs. 75, 310}

Yolanda Daughters {"Y. Daughters”), then the Local’s bookkeeper, routinely collected
receipts from the officers either on the day the expense was incurred or the next day, {Ex. 12 at
13-17}122 The tocal’s officers were to submit receipts as they were generatad before the Local’s
credit card bill was received. {Ex. 12 at 13-17} When the officers submitted their receipts to Y.
Daughters, they were also required under BT, Local policy and federal law to narme those present
and provide sufficient cther information to determine the union purpose for the expense. (Ex. 4
at 73; Ex. 5 at 21; £xs. 40, 43] Further evidencing their intent to defraud, bath Alonzo and Rosas

routinely falled to do what was reguired.

L Byiaws Ser. B{C) provides In pertinent part: “Thve Principal Officer in conjunction with the President shall
have the suthorlfy to diskurse or order the disbursement of ali manles necessary to pay the bllis, obligatians and
Indebtedness of the Lecal Union which have been properly incurred as provided herein. He shall have tite authority
to pay current opetating expensas of the tocal Linion, Including rents, utilities and malntenance of the Union Hall,
and salaries and expenses of officers and employess.” (Bx, S at 8}

1z Rosas had credit cards on Local acoounts with both American Express and Visa, The statements wers 5ent
to the Lacal and the Locat paid the bills,

m Daughters was the bookieeper for Local 433 from 2005 to 2014, {Ex. 12 at 11-12, ¥75-285) Prior to her
marrigge, her last name was Gomez.
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De La Cruz, a former business agent, stated that it was the custom of the Local’s officers
and staff to charge the Local for restaurant expenses “at least three times per weak, if not more.”
(Ex. 14 aL 60} Rosas and Alonzo were the only full-time oificers. De la Cruz explatnad that “most
of the cases, we leave the Local at lunchtime to have lunch and charge the members for [the]
meal.” {Ex. 14 2t 59) The pattern of Rosas’ charges correborated De La Cruz’s description of the
officers’ practice. Under such circumstances, there was no benefit to the union for paying for an
ampioyees’ lunches.

On at least 28 occasions between January 2011 and March 2014, Rosas caused the Local
to pay for restaurant charges he incurred when Alonzo alone was listed as present with him. {Ex.
75} On nine of these occasions, the receipts Rosas submitted to the Local failed to provide any
description of an alleged unton purpose for the expense. {Ex. 75)

On Tuesday, fanuary 18, 2011 at 12:41 p.m,, Rosas charged 543,35 at The Black Bear
Diner. {Ex. 275)12* The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted listed Alonzo as present. {(Ex. 2765}
Rosas failed to provide a union purpose for the lunch time expense. {Ex. 275} On its face, this
was a personal expense with no Local benefit. The Local paid it. (Ex. 276) Rosas’ intentional
faillure to provide the required information needed to justify lunch time restaurant meeting
hetween Local employees evidenced his intent to embezzle.

On Thursday, November 17, 2011, at 12:46 p.m., Rosas charged $41.70 at China Palace.

[Ex. 285)1%* The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted listed Alonzo as present. {Ex, 285) Rosas

1a Arcording ta MapQuest, the Black Bear Diner [5 23.18 miles from the Lecal, with 24 minutes travel time,
The restaurant is 14.48 miles from Rosas’ home, with 1B minutes trave| time. lEx. 347}

iz According to MapOuest, China Palsce 15 3.06 mlles fromt the Local, with B minutes travel time. {Ex. 347
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faited to provide a union purpose for the lunch expense. (Ex. 285) Mo reason was given as i
why the meeting could not have been held at the local office. On its face, this was a parsonal
expense of no benefit to the Local. The Local paid it. {Fx. 285) That Rosas' failure to provide any
of the required information as wel! as the nature of the expense evidenced his intent ta embezzle.

On Saturday, April 7, 2012, st 10:23 a.m., Rosas charged $27.62 at Nena's Mexican
Restaurant. {Ex. 288)*% The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted listed Alonzo as present. {EX.
288) Rosas noted the union purpose for this non-workday expense as “439 Bus.” [Ex. 288) The
intentionally vague description of union purpose was Inadequate. it, along with his failure to
arovide the reguired documentation in violation of the Bylaws, evidenced Rosas’ intent to
embezzle.

On Friday, December 28, 2012, at 1:02 p.m., Rosas charged 453,54 at Bi's Restaurant
Brewhouse. {Ex. 296)1%* The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted llsted Alonzo as present far
this lunchtime expense. {Ex. 296) Rosas stafed the union purpose was “439 issyes”. (Ex. 296}
What those issues were and why the discussion needed to take place at & restaurant at lunch
time at members’ expense instead of the union hali was not axplained, as required. The vague
deseription of union purpese was Inadequate. it, along with the gircumstancas and his failure to
provide the required dotumentation, avidenced Rosas' intent to embezzie,

The next workday, Rosas ate with Alonzo agsin at junchtime at members’ expense. {Ex.

296) Qn Monday, December 31, 2012, at 1:01 p.m., Rosas charged $52.23 at BJ)'s Restaurant

15 According to MapQuest, Nena's Mexican Restaurant is 1.75 miles from the Local, with 4 minutes travel
time. [Ex. 347}

2% According to MapQuest, B's Restaurant & Brewhouse is 5.4 miles fram the Local, with 10 minutes traval
time. [Ex. 347]
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Brewhouse. {Ei. 296} The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitied iisted Alonzo as present. {EX.
296) Rosas failed to provide & union purpose for the expense ar explanation why he needead to
meet Alonzo st @ restaurant instead of the office. {Ex. 296) On its face, this was 2 personal
expense of no benefit to the Local. The Local paid . {Ex. 256) Rosas’ fallure to provide any of
the requlred information and the nature of the expense evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Tuesday, January 8, 2013, at 2:00 p.in., Rosas charged $29.71 at Susy’s Mexican Food.
{Ex. 296}'*7 The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitied listed Alonzo as present. Rosas failed to
provide an explanation of union purpose for the expense. {Fx. 296} On its face, this was a
personal expense for two officers to eat lunch at members' expense and of no benefit lo the
Local. The Local paid it. {Ex, 296) Rosas’ failure to provide any of the required information and
the circumstances of the expense evidenced his intent to embezzle.

On Wednesday, January 9, 2013, at 7:49 p.m., Rosas charged $35.70 at Restaurant El
Grullens. {(Ex. 256) Rosas submitted a non-itemized recelpt which listed Alonzo as present. (Ex.
296) Rosas intentionally omitted an explanation of union purpose. {Ex. 296) On its face, this was
a personal expense incurrad in town for an evening restaurant vislt by two officers of no benefit
to the Local. The Locat paid it. {Ex, 296) Rosas’ fallure to provide any of the required Infermation
and the nature of the expense evidenced his intent to embezzle.

On Wednaesday, March 6, 2013 at 12:33 p.m., Rosas charged $31.41 at Angelina’s. {Ex.
298} The recelpt Rosas submitted listed Alonzo as present for the lunch time charge and noted

the union purpose as “439 Bus.” {Ex. 298) Angelina’s shared & parking lot with the Local. These

2 According to MapQuest, Susy's Mexican Food is 1.94 miles from the Local, with 4 minutes travel time, {Ex.
347)
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were the Local’s only two full-time offlcers and could have discussed any union business at the
Local acrass the parking lot. Rosas provided no explanation why it was necessary 1o have a
meeting In a restaurant, There was no resson for the members ta pay for thelr lunch. Moreover,
the vague description of unicn purpose was inadequate. Rosas’ omission of required
information and the circumstances of the expense evidenced Rosas’ intent to emberzle.

On Thursday, fuly 25, 2013 at 11:32 a.m., Rosas charged 555.47 at Las Casuelas. (Ex. 303}
The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted Hsted Alonzo as present. [Ex. 303) Rosas omitted any
explanation as to union purpose for the expense and why any business needed to be done away
from the Local. (Ex. 303} On its face, this was a personal expense for two officers to eat out at
members’ expense and of no benefit to the Local. The Local paid it. {Ex. 303) Rosas’ failure io
pravide required information anlti the nature of the expense avidenced his Intent to embezzle.

On Monday, September 23, 2013, at 11:26 a.m., Rosas charged $28.62 at The Black Bear
Diner. (Ex. 371} The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted he listed Alonzo as present. [Ex. 371}
Again, he provided no union purpose for the restaurant charge for the two employeas. {Ex. 371}
These were the Local’s only two full-time officers and could have discussed any union business
at the Local. On its face, this was a persanal expense of no henefit to the Local. Rosas’ faiiure
to supply the information necessary before the Local was authorized to pay, his pattern of such
charges and the nature of the charge evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Monday, October 14, 2013 at 1:06 p.m., Rosas charged $63.04 at B)'s Restaurant
Brewhouse, (Ex. 517} On the non-itemized receipt he submitted for the junch time charge at
rmembers’ expense listed Alonzo as present. {Ex. 517} Rosas noted the union purpose was "438

issues”. {Ex. 517] What those issues were and why the discussion needed to take place at a
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restaurant at lunch instead of the union hall were not explained, as required, The vague
description of unlon purpese was part of a pattern to conceal required detail that would not
support the Local paying for charges that on the surface appeared to be personal. This, along
with his failure to provide the documentation the Bylaws required, evidenced Rosas’ intent 1o
embezzle,

On Wednesday, November 27, 2013, at 10:27 a.m. Rosas charged $47.48 at Black Bear
Diner. (Ex. 306) On the non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted he listed Alonzo as present. (EX.
306) No unich purpose was noted. {Ex. 306) These were the Local's only two full-tirne officers
and could have discussed any union business at the Local, ©On its face, this was a personal
expense of no benefit to the Local. Rosas’ fatlure to supply the infarmatlon necessary before the
Local was authorized to pay or able to determine this was a union refated charge evidenced his
intent to embezzie.

On Friday, December 20, 2013, Rosas tharged 538.96 at Tha Creamery. (Ex. 307) The
non-itemized receipt he submitted iisted Alonzo as present and noted the union purpose as “43%
Issues” [Ex. 307) What those issugs were and why the discussion batween the Local’s only two
fuli-time officers needed to tzke place at  restaurant instead of the union hall was not explained,
:H requiréd. The vague description of union purpose was inadedquate. The faflure to supply
reguired information and necessary documents here and an a constant basis, evidenced Rosas’

intent to embezzle.
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On Friday, January 14, 2011, at 1:06 p.m., Rosas charged $49.15 at Golden Star Café. (Ex.
276)** Tha non-iternized receipt Rosas submitted for lunch among Local amployees listed Alonzo
and De La Cruz as present. (Ex. 276) Rosas did not to provide an explanation of the union purpese
for the expense and why they needed to meet in & restaurant. (Ex. 276) On its face, this was 2
personal expense of no benefit to the Local, The Local pald it. (Ex. 276) Resas’ failure to provide
the required infarmation as well as the nature of the expense evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Saturday, May 21, 2011, at 11:33 a.m,, Rosas charged $23.33 at Flip’s Burgers. {Ex.
342)12° On the non-itemized receipt he submitted, he listed Alonzo as present. (Ex. 342} Rosas
stated the union purpose for the expense as “439 issues”. (Ex. 342) What those issues were and
why the discussion needed to take piace at a restaurant instead of the union hall were not
explained, as required. The vague description of union purpose was inadeguate. It, along with
his fallure to provide the reguired documentation and the circumstance of a weekend |unch,
evidenced Rosas’ Intent to embezzle,

On Tuasday, July 12, 2011, at 12:55 p.m., Rosas charged 549;46 at Nena's Restaurant. (Ex.
280} The non-itemizad receipt Rosas submitted listed Alonzo and De La Cruz as present. (Ex.
280) Rasas listed the union purpose as “Union issues™. (EX. 280) What those issues were, and
why the discussion needed ta take place at a restaurant on a workday instead of at the union hall
were not explained, as required. Rosas’ vague description of unicn purpese was inadequate and

his fallure to provide required information intended to cover up the lack of unlon purpose. it and

1% According to MaplQuest, Golden Star Cafe is 3.13 miles from the Lacal, with & minutes travel time. {Ex.
347
1 According to MapQuest, Flip’s Burgars is 144 miles from the Local, with 2 minutes travel time. (Ex, 347)
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the circumstances, along with his failure to provide the required documentation, evidenced
Rosas’ intent to defraud.

Relow are some other examples of Rosas’ personal use of the union card:

On Saturday, September 3, 2011, at 11:57 a.m., Rosas charged $30.59 at Maria's Café.
{Ex. 282} The non-itemized receipt he submitted to the Local listed De La Cruz as present. {EX.
282} Rosas stated the union purpose for the expense as "Bus. Mtz.”. (Ex. 282) What the business
issues were and why the discussion needed to take place at a restaurant on a non-workday
‘nstead of the union hall or on the telephone was not explained, as required. The vague
description of union purpose was inadeguate and intended to conceal the lack of union purpose,
it, along with his failure to provide the regquired documentatien and that it was 2 lunch with
another employee in town, evidenced Rosas’ intent te defraud,

On Saturday, October 13, 2012, at 7:22 p.m., Rosas charged $29,30 at Restaurant El
Grullens. {Ex. 294}1¥ The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted to the Local listed De La Cruz as
present. [Ex. 294} Rosas intentionally omiltted any explanation of the unlon purpose for the
Saturday evening restaurant expense. {&x. 254) There was none. The Local paid the charge. {Ex.

294) Rasas’ failure to provide the required information and documentation evidenced hls intent

to defraud.
Lo According to MapQuest, Marla's Cafe is 1.67 miles from the Logal, with 3 minutes travel time. {(Ex. 343
13 According to MapQuest, Bl Grullens is 2.39 miles from the Local, with five minutes travel time, ard 12.47

miles from Rosas’ home, with 17 minutes travel time, (Ex. 347)
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On Saturday, November 17, 2012, ot 2:29 p.m., Rosas charged $27.17 at Las Casuefas
Restaurant in Manteca, where he lived. {Ex. 295) %2 Rosass failed to provide any explanation of
union purpose for the Saturday restaurant expense when he submitted # to the Local. {Ex. 285)
There was none. The non-iternized receipt Rosas submitted to the Local listed De La Cruz as
nresent. De La Cruz testified he was not present on that non-workday. [£x. 14 at 48-49}) The

Loca! paid tha charge. (Ex. 255)

On Wednesday, August 14, 2013, at 12:46 p.m., Rosas charged 534.45 at Susy’s Mexican
Food. {Ex. 304) The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted listed business agent Buzo as present.
{E€x. 304} Rosas falled to provide an explanation of the unlon purpose for the lunch expense for
two employees and why the meeting needed to be at a restaurant. {Ex. 304) On s face, this
was a personal expense of no benefit to the Local. The Local paid it. (Ex. 304} Rosas’ failure to
provide any of the required information, the nature of the expense and his pattern of incurring
such lunch time expenses without an explanation of unlon business conducted and why it was
necessary to do work 8t a restaurant, evidenced his intent to embezzie.

On Monday, November 4, 2013, at 12:50 p.m., Rosas charged 55%.20 at DeVega Brothers
ltalian Culsine. {Ex. 305)'3* The nan-itemized receipt he submitted fisted De La Cruz as present
for this lunchtime charge, {Ex. 305) Rosas noted the union purpese as “Const. [ssues”. [Ex, 205)

What issues needed to be discussed and why 1t was not done at the Local was not expiained as

12 According to MapQuest, The Mantaca tas Casuelas is 1,83 mltes from Rasas” home, with 2 minutes travel
time. {Ex, 347] The restaurant Is 12.30 miles from the Local, with 20 minutes travel time. {Ex. 347)

1 Acoording 1o MapQuest, Da Vega Brothers tallan Cuisine 15 5.43 miles from the Local, with 11 minutes
travel time. {Ex. 347)
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required. According to De La Cruz, "It was - what | was toid was: Let's go have lunch and we'll
construct — | mean we'l taik about construction husiness, but it wasn't something that was
necessary. | mean, it wasn't Hke 2 — you know, a meeting that we had to have.” (Ex. 14 ai 58-39)

There was no union purpese for the Local to pay for Rosas’ and De La Cruz’ lunches.

On Wednesday lanuary 15, 2014 5t 1:20 p.m., Rosas charged 563.11 at Famous Dave's Pit
BBQ. (Ex. 308)13 Rosas submitted a non-iternized receipt which listed Alonzo and Speckman, a
retired husiness agent occaslonally doing work for the Local, as present for this lunch time charge
at members’ expense, (Ex. 308) Rosas failed to provide an exphanation of union purpose for the
expense gnd why they needed to meet at the restaurant. [Fx 308} On its face, this was 3
personal expense for lunch for the three of no benefit to the Locat. The Loca! paid it. (Ex. 208}

On Wednesday, December 19, 2012 at 9:21 p.m., Rosas charged 446.26 at David's New
York Style Pizza, (Ex. 296}%° Rosas did not provide the Local an explanation as to the union
purpese. (Ex. 298) Onthe non-ltemized receipt he submitted, Rosas listed De La Cruz, Andazols
and "+2” unnamed others as present. (Ex. 296) Da ta Cruz testified that he was not present far
this evening restaurant visit, (Ex. 14 at 50) The time, the presence of unidentified persans, the
lack of a stated purpose, the failure to submit an itemized recelpt as required and falsely claiming

De La Cruz was present all evidenced Rosas’ Intent to embezzle,

134 According to Maptiuest, Famous Dave's BBO Pit is 23.36 miles from the Lacal, with 23 minutes travel
time. {Ex. 347}

1% According to Mapﬂueﬁ, David's New Yark Style Plzza is §.73 miles from the Local, with 13 minutes travet
time. (Ex. 347)
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On Friday, November 2, 2012, at 1:05 p.m., Resas charged $32.52 at Angelina’s. {Ex. 254]
Angelina’s shared a parking lot with the Local. {Ex. 8 at 170-171) The non-itemized receipt Rosas
submitted Tailed to provide any information as to the union purpose for the lunchtime expanse.
(Ex. 294) On its face, this was a personal expense for Rosas to eal tunch and of no benefit to the
Local. The Local paid it. {Ex. 294) Rosas’ failure to provide any of the required information as
well as the nature of the expense evlidenced his intent {0 embezzle, There was na explanation
why union business was being done at lunch time by Rosas alone at membars’ expense in a
restaurant with which the Local shared a parking lot rather than at the Local.

On Friday, September 27, 2013, at 10:32 a.m., Rosas charged §151.55 at Ei Forastero
Restaurant. {Ex. 371)%¥ The non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted did not list anyone alse as
present, Rosas did not provide an explanation as to unjon purpose for the expense. {Ex. 371}
On its face, this was a personal expense of no henefit to the Local, The Local paid it. {Ex. 371} His
failure to provide any of the required information, the nature of the expense and the pattern of
such charges, evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Saturday, February 9, 2013, Rosés used his Local card to pay $245.00 to the Waterioo
Gun and Boece Club, in Stockton, & bar and grill and event catering hall with bocce courts and an
outdoor trap shooting range. (Exs. 297, 370) The non-ltemized recelpt Rosas submitted was
printed at 21;51 {9:51 p.m.} and showed he added a 535 tipto a bill of $210. (Ex. 297} On the
back of the receipt, Rosas wrote "Donation-Stockton Spertsmen Ciub.” (Ex. 257) Rosas provided

no other information, (Ex. 297) There was no explanation how an evening charge at a bar and &

& according to MapQuest, the E| Forastera s .08 mlies froun the Local, around the corner. {Ex. 347]
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tip for service was 2 donation 1o 8 differant organization. Moreaver, under Section 14[A) of the
Byiaws, Rosas had no authority to make a donation without Board approval. {Ex. 5 at 14) This
was a personal expense, No others were listed as present on Rosas’ submission to the Local. {Ex.
297) He also failed 1o submit the lemmized receipt as reguired further evidencing his intent to
defraud.

At hls [RB sworn exarnination, Rosas claimed he could not recall the names of any of the
ather persons present that he eaused the Local to pay for. (Ex, B at 206) Rosas also claimed the
expense was in connection with 2 #crab feed”, a charitable dinner event for which Rosas had
sought, through a telephone pell he conducted on February 7, 2013, Board approval to make a
donation of $320 to support the “Stockton Sports Club.” {Ex. 8 at 204) On February 8, 2013, the
Local issued a check to that Club for 5320, which was apparenthy not a donation as he represented
but payments for some meals for him and some unknown individuals at the crab feed. (Ex. 528}
Rosgs had no autharity 1o make his claimed additional contribution of 5245 beyend that. {Ex.
297} Rosas’ initial explanation on the receipt for the $245 credit card charge was intentionally
false. Donations do not result in tips to the alleged donee. At Rosas’ deposition, he claimed that
he purchased “six or seven” aprons and "some drinks” and claimed that the portion of the
expense attributable ta the drinks was 2 further "donation”. {Ex. 8 & 307-208) Rosas’ buying
drinks for himself and companions from a bar was under no circumstances a charitable
contrisution. Thare was no evidence the Local ever received any aprons for which it would not
have had any use. Rosas could not explain how the purchase of aprons and drinks from the
Waterloo Gun and Bocce Club would be a further donation to the Stockton Sporisman’s Ciub

benefit. tndeed, Rosas claimed he was uncertain as 10 what the Stockton Sportsman’s Club was.
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He caused the Local to pay this expense with a false explanation to conceal there was no union
purpose. {Ex. B at 209} His intent to embezzle was further evidenced through his failure 1o
provide necessary information about these charges at the time he submitted it to the Local and
at the time he asked for Board approval of his initlal claimed contribution.

According to Ks website, The Stockton Sporismans tlub is a hunting club that holds s
meetings at the Waterloo Gun and Bocee Club. In 2015, its annual sustaining membership fee
was 5450, [Ex. 369) The crab and shrimp feed was an annual event held in late fJanuary or eatly
February. For 2015, tickets, which were not donations, cost 545 each. {Ex. 369) tn 2013, at 540
or $45 & ticket, the donation Rosas caused the Local to pay would have boupht either 7 or B
tickets.

On Sunday, January 26, 2014, Rosas made two charges, one for $192.00 at 9:23 p.m. and
the ather for $60.00 at 10:13 p.m. at the Waterloo Gun & Bocce Club. (Ex. 308} On tha non-
iternized receipt he submitted to the Local for the %192,00 expense, Rosas did not identify any
other persons in attendance. {Ex. 308) He Iisteﬁ the union purpose as "Stockton Spertsman Club
Dinner/Donation”. (Ex, 308} This appears to have been for tickets to eat at that year's crab feed.
There was no Board approval for thls claimed donation. (Ex. 36) For the 560.00 expense, ROsas
listed the unlon purpose for the expense as “Kitchen Supplies 4-aprons,” {Ex. 308} The Local paid
thase expenses, (Ex. 308) There were no records of the Local ever receiving aprons far which, in
any event, It had no need. Rosas’ late Saturday night drinking and eating expenses at a bar were

nat for a union purpose and without authority,
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On Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 9:00 p.m., Resas charged $92.17 at Original Pete’s Pizza.
(Ex. 517)%7 The receipt Rusas submitted to the Local isted Business Agent Richard Andazola as
present. Rasas noted the union purpose for the expense as "palitical action” and “P2 SEIUY. (Ex,
517) The receipt was ltemized. Among the items purchased, it listed three maln-courses and
three different beverages, 8 pint of draft beer, an iced tea and two glasses of Cabernat wine. {Ex.
517} There was no indication as reguired as to wha the third persan was. {Ex. 517) There was
no explanation as 1o why this mes! was necessary antl why any discussion could not have been
held atthe Local. It was pert of Rosas’ pattern of charging in town meals to the Local and omitting
to provide information to conceal it was a personal expense.

On Wednesday, December 11, 2013 at 8:55 p.m., Rosas charged $67.89 at Nena's
wexican Restaurant, (Ex. 306) On the non-itemized receipt Rosas submitted, he did not note
anyone eise as present, provided no information as to what the union purpose was and did not
axplain why it was necessary for the members to pay for his meal in an area restaurant. {Ex. 306}
On its face, this was 2 personal expense of no benefit to the tocal that benefitted Rosas, There
is no unjon purpase for a late night restaurant charge for an officer by himself. Rosas’ failure to
supply the required information also evidenced his intent 1o embezzie.

On Tuesday, December 31, 2013, New Year's Eve, at 9:08 p.m., Rosas charged 583.51 at
Original Pete’s Pizza, Pasta & Grifl. (Ex. 307) Rosas [Isted Geraldine Coseip and lade Becker as

present, {Ex. 307} He did not identify who they were on the receipt. Rosas noted the union

ur According to MapQuest, Orlginal Pete’s Plzza, Pesia & Grill, lotaved in Elk Grove, Ca.is 36.95 miles from
the Local, with 37 minutes trave! thme, [Ex, 347}

i Geraldine Coseip was a Local 439 member, employed full-time at 2 Local 439 employer. According to
Rosas, Coseip has a degree in accountlng, was an sctive member of the Local, and was the Locai's “political
coortlnator”. (Ex. 8 at 65-66} Rosas hired her to assist pait time 2t the tocal's office after the bookkeepers,
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purpose as "Political Coord, Mtg.” (Ex. 307} 138 The itemized receipt included as items “Kids
Pirza® and two “Kids Soda”. {Ex. 307) At his IRB sworn examination, Rosas clzimed that ihe
expense was incurred after he had traveled to Sacramento to pick up Coseip and her daughter,
Jade Becker. (Ex. 8 at 151-153) According to Rosas, they stopped at the restaurant on the way
back from a poiitical coordinators meeting, {Ex. 8 at 151-153) Rosas acknowledped Coselp was
a close friend with whom he was romantically involved. {Ex. B at 152) He claimed Coseip was the
Local's political coordinator (Ex. 8 at 66, 152) No Local document confirmed this. There was ng
union purpose for the expense with his girlfriend and her child. [Ex. B at 152)

On Tuesday, December 17, 2013, at 8:57 p.m., Roses charged 540,65 at Dave Wong's
Restaurant. (Ex, 307)1% On the non-itemized receipt Rosas submiited, he listed his girlfriend,
Coseip, as present. He noted the union purpose as “Christmas Party Work”. {Ex. 307] The Lozcal
439 holiday party in 2013 was days arlier on December 14, {Ex. 376} What the party work was
days after the party and why it was necessary for Rosas and his friend 10 eat at mernbers’ expenssa
was not explained. The nature of the expense, its date and lack of reguired information

evidenced his fraudulent intent. There was no union purpese for this meal.

yolanda Daughters and Tatiana Mondragon-Cortez, no fonger worked there, (Ex. 8 at 85-66) lade Beckeris
toselp’s daughter, [Ex. 8 3t 151) In a Teamster Local 438 press release from November 5, 2012 about a Teamster
rally to defeat California Proposition 32, Roses was nuoted and Coseip, who also was guoted, was identified as 3
Locat member and not Local 439's Polltical Coordinater, (Ex. 612

g This is the restaurant where Rosas omitted the third person from his charge on October 15, 2013, lEx.
517} On that receipt he also put a5 a reason "political getion.” [Ex. 517}

¥ pcrording to MapQuest, Dave Wong's Restaurant is £.31 miles fram the Local, with 8 rlhutes travet thine, (Ex
347
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On lanuary 30, 2014, Rosas charged $222.43 at Papapavios Restaurant. IEx. 3081t On
the non-itemized receipt he submitted to the Local, he listed Alonzo, Alonzo's wife, Grace Alonzo,
Coseip and Heather Keegel as present. (Ex, 308) Heather Keegel was an 1BT TITAN Fieid Rep. {Ex.
531} Rasas listed the union purpose as “Meet, Discuss Training”. {Ex. 308) According to Rosas,
Grace Alonzo was going tu be trained as a part-time TITAN operator at the Local. (Ex. 8 at 65)
No such training was planned for Coseip. (Ex. 8 at 66) There was no union benefit to the Local to
pay for a restaurant expense for the two officers and their escorts as well as an BT employea to
discuss training a potential part-time employee, rather than condutt any discussion zhout TITAN
tralning at the Local's office, where the TITAN terminal was located. This was a personal expense
that Rosas fraudulently charged the Local,

On Tuesday March 11, 2014, at 8:30 p.m. Rosas charged $41.26 at Michael's New York
Style Pizza. {Ex. 309)*** On the non-temized receipt Rosas submitted to the Local, he listed
“Geraldine Closeip}” as present and stated the union purpose as the uninformative "439 issues”.
{Ex. 309} Rosas” meal with his girlfriend, who was not 2 Local 439 employee, served no unlon
purpose, Ht was a personal benefit he had no atithority to £3use the Local to pay for. The person

present and his fallure to provide required information evidenced Rosas’ intent to embezzle.

a, Addittanal Examples of Personal Charges Rosas Caused the Local ta
Pay
i According to MepQuest, Papavalos Restaurant ks 6.85 milles from the Local, with 12 minutes travel time,
(Ex. 347
L2 According to MapQuest, Michael’s New York Style Pizza |5 5.16 miles fram the Local, with 7 minutes travel

time. (Ex. 357}
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Rosas ernbezzied $3,826 when he caused the Local to pay personal expenses including

Raiders tickets, restaurant charges at Raiders games and hotel rooms in Stockton. (Ex. 527)

I Rosas Embezzled When He Recelved Raiders Tickets for Himself and Others at
Locat Expense znd Caused the Local to Pay Restaurant Charges in the Stadium

Between 2008 and 2013, Rosas embezzied 5746 in tickets to Raiders pames and caused
the Local to pay $568 for restaurant charges Inside the stadium during two games without a
union purpose. {Exs. 527, 293, 362) There was no union benefit from these expenses. Former
Vice President Lee, wha was not a full-time Local employee, was unaware that Rosas and
Alonzo received tickets at the Local’s expense, {Ex. 15 at 28-32)*% It was his understanding
that Rosas and Alonzo paid for their tickets. (Ex. 15 at 28-30} There were no approvals, indeett
na mentions in Board ang members' meeting minutes that Rosas, Alonzo and their guests
would attend at union expense Local social functions mermnbers paid for. (Exs. 25-29, 31-35)

There were no Board approvais for Rosas taking Local preperty for his use.

Raiders Tickets

As described above [pages 22-30), between 2003 and 2013, Rosas and Alonzo organized
atrip ta a Raiders game each year. (Exs. 170-174) In 2010, 2011 and 2012, without reguired
Soard and membership approvals, the Local purchased Raiders tickets. (Exs. 25-29, 31-34, 170-

1741 To attend those garnes, in the years 2002 through 2011, Local members purchased a

i #etween Japuary 2009 ang December 2013, Lee attended all but two Executlve Board meetings. (Exs. 31-
35]

i As described ahova, In 2009 and 20113, the Board approved spending 52,000 and 53,000 respactively for

the Ralders games. (Exs. 412, 411) There was no membership approval In those years 35 was required. {Ex. 5 at 16;
Exs. 25, 29)
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ticket package from the Local for 5100, {Exs. £80-591)1 {n the years 2012 and 2013, in
addition to the regular tickets, the Local also purchased ciub seats for which the members paid
$140 and $125 respectively. {Exs. $92-593) Rosas admitted that without paylng he attended all
the games for which the Local purchased tickets. (Ex. 8 at 230, 266) Rosas claimed he was
working at these social events. (Ex, B st 231] There was no evidence of Rosas working at the
games he caused the Local ta buy tickets for without authority and that the Board ever
authorized the purchase of tickets for him to use withaut charge, There was no explanation as
to why, even If he was working, he was entitled to more than one ticket per game,

According to the Local’s bookkeeper, when the tickets came 1o the Local, they went to
Alonza, (Ex. 12 at 185) She testified that Resas and Alonzo tock tickets for themselves. {Ex, 12
at 185-186) She was then given the remaining ones 1o distribute to members who purchased
them. {£x. 12 at 185-186) In the years 2009, 2010 and 2012, the Local’'s records reflected that
Rosas recelved 11 free tickats to the games costing the Local $748. (Exs. 527; 588, 5af, 592,
175, 176; Ex. 12 at 188-183}16 There was no union purpose for Rosas receiving muitiple ticket
packages to the games at Local expense.

2009 Raiders Game

Rosas caused the Local to purchase Ralders tickets without authorization in 2009, For

the 2009 game, Rosas received four tickets the face value of which was $244. (Exs. 175, 589,

45 The ticket Inciuded transportation to and from the game, admisslon, a tallgate party and a shirt. {Ex. 8 &t
227 Ex. 13 at 3

b Afrar the IRE's books and records examination during which the Locat was asked to produce racords

regarding the Ralders tlckets (Ex. 512}, for the 2013 Raiders game, cantrany to his past practice and evidencing hiz
intent to embezzie in the past, Rosas purchased flve club tickets. {Ex. 533
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1801147 There was no union purpose recorded in Local records for Rosas recaiving free muitiple
tickets. His intent to embezzle was evidenced from the nature of what the Local paid for, that
his taking tham without paying for them was unauthorized, not distlosed to the members or

the Board and without a unien purpose.
2018 Raiders Game

In 2010, there were no Board and membears’ approvals 10 purchase Raiders tickets as
the Bylaws required. {Ex. 5 at 16; Exs. 32, 26) Rosas caused the Local to purchase the tickets.
{Exs. 191, 194-195) In 2010, Rosas received six free tickets that cost the Local 5366, (Exs. 176,
191, 194-195, 595} There was na Board approval for him ta receive these. (Ex. 32) 1% The
nature of the expense, thal the Local expenditures were unatuthorized, that there was no Board
authorization for Rosas ta take free tickets, that there was no disclosure to the Board of his
recelpt of free tickets and there was no unioh purpose avidenced Rasas’ intent to embezzie.
Rosas’ failure to docurnent any union purpose for his receipt of multiple free tickets and what

use he made of them was further evidence of his intent to embezzle.

2012 Raiders Game

bt he shirt, transportation and taiigate are not included here, If they were, the 1otal would be 5480, 5100
per ticket, [Ex. SE)

48 If the total cost of the package Rosas received was vajued at tha cost members pald, he would have
received a gift worth 5600, {Ex, 595}

aa i additlon, a5 described above st page 25, four other of the tickets the Local purchased that year were
pat accounted for.
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In 2012, there were no Board and members’ approvals for the {ocal to purchase Raiders
tickets as the Bylaws reguired. (Ex. 5 ot 16; Exs, 28, 34) Rosas caused the Local o purchase them
without authorization. (Exs. 28, 34, 212, 216) The Local's records gid not reflect Rasas purchased
any tickets that year. (Ex. 582} For the 2012 Raigers game, Rosas received at feast one ticket
costing the tocal $136 since he attended the game. {Ex. B at 230; £x. 29310 Four of the tickets
the Local purchased were not accounted for. {Exs. 173, 178, 552)1! As described below, Rosas
also charged $321.25 at a restaurant in the staglum on the day of the game without a union
purpose, (Ex. 293}

flosas’ Restauraet Charges at Ralders Games

On September 23, 2012, the day of the Raiders game, at 2:44 p.m., Rosas charged 3
$321.25 expense on his union card at Aramark Oakland Coliseum. (Ex. 293) On the non-itemized
receipt he submitted to the Local, Rosas did not provide the names of any other persons that
might have been present for this expense, (Ex, 293) He listed the union purpose for the expense
as the deliberataly uninformative “Raider game®. {Ex. 293) This was not a staternent of @ union
purpose. The ticket packages the Local sold to rmembers included food and drink. {Ex. 12 at 185-
186) Expenses individuals ncurred at the stadium, such as Rosas’, were personal.  This was
Rosas’ personal expense incurred at a footbalt game for food, drink or socuvenirs, with no benefit

to the Local. [Ex. 293)

=0 Rosas was not included on the Tailgate fist for the 2012 game. {Ex. 178) He attended the game since he
purchased 2 meal In the stadlum that day for $321.25. {Ex. 293)

151 It appears that Rosas received at least one of these tickets.
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On WMovermber 3, 2013, on the day of the Raiders game, Rosas, who was at the game with
four others, charged two separate expenses, one for $121.75 st the stadium food and beverage
vendor, Ararmark, and one for $125.75, at 2:45 p.m., at the West Side Club at Cakland Collseum.
{Exs, 305, 362)*°2 Rasas did not list the names of any other persons as being related to these
expenses. (Exs, 305, 362) He noted the alleged union purpose on both non-itemized receipts as
“Raider game snacks/drinks”. (Exs. 305, 362) Thesc were personal expenses at a football game
for Rosas and pecple he seiected. There was no benefit to the Local from these charges. His
failure to exptain how it benefitted the Local and who received the benefits evidenced his intent
to embezzle.

in addition to the free tickets and restausant charge during Ralders games at Local
expense, Rosas also caused the Local to pay an additional 52,511 for additional persanal

charges, such as hotel rooms in Stockion. (Ex. 527)

H. Rosas’ Bar 81l Charged to His Local Credit Card

Rosas also embezzied when he caused the Local to pay for a $953.37 bar bill at the
Hilton he charged on December 11, 2011, {Ex. 155} The party had been held on December 10.
(Ex. 374)** The Local paid his charge without a receipt, (Exs. 285, 352) There was no union
purpose for it. Rosas’ failure to submit a receipt as the Bylaws reguired evidenced his intent to

embezzie. {Ex. 5 at 16) Nothing in Local records showed the union purpose for his charge, who

152 This ggme was after the IRE's books and records examination on Octaber 10-11, 2023, (Ex. 516) On
Getaber 33, 2013, Rosas purchased five tickets to the 2013 game. (Ex. 553)

1 For unknowh Teasons this bar bl was listed a5 & transaction on Rosas’ Local's credit card statemant as on

January 5, 2012, {Ex, 286) The zctual charge decuments showed it was opened on December 10 and clgsed out
early In the morning of Dacember 11, 2011, {Exs, 551, 155]
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pise was present and what was purchased.>* Further evidencing his intent to embezzle, Rosas
subseguently made false statements to the IRE on differant occasions that this charge was for a
deposit with the hate! for the next year's event. {Exs. 352, 551; Ex. B at 214-318)

in an Aprit 9, 2014 mermo to the IRB regarding his missing credit card receipts, Rosas
described the charge as “Hilton $tockton deposit for Local's Chrisimas dinner event of $953.37.
. “{Ex. 352) During his IRE sworh axamination, Rosas initially testified that the $953.37 charge
was a deposit. (Ex. & at 314-318) The add sum alone, $953.37, woulid have alerted Rosas that
this was not a devosit, if he had forgotten. (Ex. 286)

Rosas’ written explanation and subsequent testimony were false, evidencing his intent
to embezzle. Documents the Hilten produced pursuant to subpoena reflected that the £953.37
charge was for a bar bill Rosas incurred after the Local’s party on December 10. {Exs. 551, 155)
According to these recards, the charge was apened at 11:39 p.m. on Decemnber 10 and closed
st 17:17 a.m. on December 11. {Exs. 551, 155) During that time, 82 alcoholic drinks and 40
orders of bar food were charged, (Exs. 155, 552} There was no information as to who received
the food and drink. After being shown the subpoenaed documents, Rosas admitted that the
£053.37 charge was not 2 deposit as he had clalmed under path and represented to the IRB.
{Ex. B at 315-316; Ex, 352) Rosas testified that he authorized the Local to pay this bar bill
because it was in connection with the hoiiday party. (Ex. 8 at 318} He had no authority to da so.
The Board had not approved it. (Ex. 33} tn additlon, his failure to provitde contemporaneously

the required information concerning attendees, items purchased and union purpose before the

R Handwritten on Rosas’ credit card stetement which tncluded this charge was the notation, “Christmas
Farty.” {Ex. 286
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Lotal paid the eredit card Wil containing the charge as well as his failure to submit the receipt
evidenced his intent to embezzle through his concealment. There was no union benefit for this
exXpense.

. Rosas’ Hote] Rooms in Stockton

In each of the vears 2010 through 2013, Rosas caused the Local 1o pay for at least one
hote! ropm, sometimeas more, for himself the night of & holiday party. {Exs. 527, 114, 138, 150,
BU5) 1% Rosas caused the Local to spend $1,157 far these rooms, (Ex. 527) Rosas lived
appyoximately 16 miles from the hotei. {Ex. 347, 584115 The union records did not reflect any
union purpose for the charges. [Exs. 114, 138, 156, 168, 03} As described below, in 2013,
more than one room was registered to Rosas. {Ex. 168) Rosas never explained the union
purpose for these charges In Local records.  Former Executive Board mermber Lee, who paid
for a roam at the hotel the night of the holiday party, testified that he was unaware that the
Local paid for Rosas to stay, (Ex. 15 at 31-32) Rosas claimed that the Local paid for his hotel
roorm because, “| was a big part of the event” and *. ., was respenstbie for hauling stuff to the
evert.” (Ex. § at 280-281) There was n0 Union purpose for the Local to pay for Rosas’ hotel
roorms after an in town social event. To the extent Rosas viewed his claimed duties as part of
his jab, he was paid a salary for that work.

2018 Hotel Room

Lsd in 2013, Rosas caused tha Locel to pay for him to stay twa nights at the Stockton Hilten at the time of the
halidey party. (Exs. 645, 527]

& Durtng the relevant period, Rosas’ address on his Local paychecks was 1047 Magglore Lane In Mantecs.
{Ex. 567}
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in 2010, the Local’s holiday party was on December 11 at the Hilton, (Ex. 373) Rosas
charged $96.50 for a one night stay on his Local card with a check out date of December 12. (Ex.
114) The Local paid. (Ex. 113) Rosas provided no union purpose in the records. (Ex. 114)
There was no benefit to the Loca! for Rosas’ stay in a hotel after 8 social event when he lived
minutes away.

During his IRB sworn examination several years later, Rosas claimed that he had the
Local pay far hils hotel room in 2010 because he worked the event, “ .. hauling stuff to the
event, hauling siuff back to the Halt from the event.” {Ex. B at 281) ‘That was not a
contemporaneous explanation of union purpose found in Local records as required. Rosas Hved
less than 20 miles from the party site. (Exs. 347, 584) Even if he worked, there was no
explanation why he could not go home. Working late in town daes net entitle an officer to
hotel lodging at member expense without some further union reason. It was a social event.
He had family members at the party. (Ex. 523) Moreover, if he was claiming it was
tompensation for working, he was unautharized to make payments to himself above what the
Board set. {Ex. 5 at 14) A claim this was unauthorized, undisclosed compensation was

trivolous.157 His failure to provide a contemporaneous explanation in the records as required,

bl Section 16{A) of the Bylaws provides the following under “Aligwances”:

Recognizing that the officers and representatives of this arganization do not work regularly
scheduted hours and receive no cempensation for cvartime or premium pay; . .. and recognizing
that they must participate in cultural, civic, lagislative, potitical, fraternal, educational, tharltable,
social and other activities in additlon to thelr specific tutles as provided in the Constitution and
these Bylaws, that such activities beneflt the organlzation and is members and that the time
spent in such activities ts unpredictable and unascertalnable, such offfcers and representatives
mazy be granted an allewance {both for in-town and aut of town work . . .} as the Local Unicn
Executive Board may determing. ..

{Ex. 5 at 20-21)
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his failure to disclose to the Board he was having the Local pay for lodging, the presence of his
family at a social event, his nearby residence and the circumstance of the charpe evidenced his
intent to embezzle.
2011 Hotel Reom
The Locals 2011 party was on December 10 at the Hilton. (Ex. 374) Rosascharged a
room, food and heverages for $126.72 on his Locaf card. {Ex. 138) His wife and daughter were
at the party. {Ex. 524; Ex. 8 3t 285) He noted no unlon purpose for this charge in the Local’s
recorgs. {Ex. 138) The Local paid. [Ex. 138) Rosas tved |ess than 20 miles away. (Exs, 347, 584)
Again, there was no union benefit 1o paying for Rosas’ room after a social event at which family
members were present near his home.
2142 Hotel Room
The party was held on December 8, 2012, {Ex. 375} Rosas charged $850.76 on the
Local's card which appeared to cover five rooms for him, his wife and four others. {Ex. 156)%°
t appears that the rate for one night was $122.08. (Ex, 156) On the bill from the Hilton in Local
records next to his wife’s name was handwritten “help”. {Ex. 156} There was no ather
description of unian purpase for the charge Rosas caused the Local to pay. These were
personal charges and his failure to provide reguired information evidenced his intent te

ernbezzle through concealment.

= During his sworn examination, Rosas testified that the Local paid for his hatel reom *, . | 0 connection
with the haliday party that the members benefitted ta attend.” {£x. 8 ot 2R4-285)

155 Handwritten on Rosas’ hotet blil was that it Included roams for Aloise, an Internztional Vice President;

Ray Torres, at that time a member of Local 853; Joe Delgade, Alonzo's brother-in-law, who was then a bocal 438
Trustee; Rick Andazota, a business sgent; and Resas’ wife Jen nifer. (Ex. 156; Ex. E at 204-285}
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2013 Hotel Rooms

For the 2013 party, Rosas charged three rooms to his Local card. {Ex. 168] Two of the
rooms were registered to him. (Ex. 168) The third was registered to Yauna Throne. [Ex. 1681
The cost to the Local was $981.50, {Ex. 168) The distance from the hote! to Rosgs’ home was
approximately 17 miles. (Exs. 347, 5B84)

For both of Rosas’ roams, cherk in was on Friday, December 13, the day before the
party, and check out was December 15, a day after the party, {Ex. 168) Rosas made no
indication in the Local's records as to who stayed in the rooms. {Fx. 168) There was no
indication as to why the rooms were needed not only the night of the party but also the night
before. [Ex. 168)] Rosas provided no explanation in the Local’s records of the union purpose for
his causing the Local to pay for these rooms for the weakend. {Ex. 168) This concealment
through omission evidenced his intent to embezzle,

Rosas caused the Local to pay $812.13, which included $220.77 in food and beverage
charges, for his two rooms. {Ex. 168) Rosas provided no explanation in the Local's records of
the unfon purposes for the meals. {Ex. 168) Nor who was present. {Ex. 168) He did not submit
the receipts for the hote! meals as required. {Ex. 168; Ex. 5 at 21; Ex, 4 at 73; Exs, 40, 431161 The

Local pald for both the rooms and the meals. (Ex. 168)

16a s discussed below, she is the wife of Local 433 member Maynard Throne, {Eu. & at 145)

351 The IBT Secretary-Treasurers Manus] required that disbursement of funds be "Isjupporied by an ltemized
jrolee, recelpt of statement detating the items ordered or the services pravided of to be provided.” {Ex. 4 at 73)
The Department of Labor's Gffice of Labor Managemant ttandards has stated Locals are Tequired to maintain ™. ..
Al original itemized recelpts for each credit card charge, including itemized hotel invoices, transportation costs and
itemlzed meat recelpts from restaurants,” [Ex. 40 at 2]
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in sddition to the two rooms registered to himself, Rosas charged ancther room for
$169.37 at the Hilten on his Local card for the night of the party registered to Yauna Throne,
yocal 438 member Maynard Throne's wife. {Ex. B at 245; Ex. 168} Throne ived approximately
24 miles from the hotef. (Ex. 347) Rosas provided no union purpose for this charge
contemnporaneously in the Local records. (Ex. 168) Rosas subseguently testified that she was 2
volunteer for the party. {Ex. 8 at 145] He did not explain why there was no reason in the
contemporaneous records nor what autherity he had for the Local paying the cost of a
voluntear's room. Nor did he indicate what she actually had done as a volunteer. Rosas!
charges were unauthorized and witheut a union purpese.

he., Other Parsonai Items

On August 31, 2013, Rosas charged $91.18 at Mont Blane North America on his Local
card to repair his pen. (Ex. 304) The Local paid it. (Ex. 304; Ex, 8 at 156-158) There was n¢
union purpose for this charge. This invaice had the false notation “office supply.” (Ex. 304}
When asked about this charge during his sworn exarmination, Rosas claimed the expense was
for a union purpose because he used the Mont Blanc pen for union business and it ¥, .. was
broken in the line of business and repaired so that | could continue to use it for the business of
+he Local and it sits in my desk every day.” {Ex. 8 at 157, 158) The pen belonged to Rosas and
not the Local, {Ex. 8 at 156) His cholce to use his pen was not an expianation of union purpose
for a Local expense to repalr his personzl property.  The Local had no more responsibility for it
than it would to replace a shirt Rosas stained with ink while working with his pen at the office.

Moreover, his explanstion conflicted with the false statement contemporaneously written on
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the document he submitted to the Local. The nature of the expense and the false explanation
on the receipt evidenced his intent to embezzie,

On December 27, 2013, Rosas made 2 $49.74 purchase at Walgreens on his Local card.
(Ex. 307) Handwritien on this receipt was “supplies — Pictures”, included in this purchase was
campho-phenigue gel, an cintment to reduce cold sores, for $7.99 and four picture frames. {Ex.
307} The Local paid. (Fxs. 307, 308} Rosas atmitied that the ointment’s purchase was
personal and should not have been charged to the Local. (Ex. 83t 148-149Y%2  in addition to
the purchase being persenal, Rosas’ intent te embezzle was evidenced through his use of a
tocal card for a personal purchase in violation of IBT policy and his fallure to provide an
explanation for the particular purchase at the time, {(Ex. 4 at 178} 1t also was consistent with
his pattern of spending Local money for unautharized items without a union purpose.

On May 31, 2013, the day of the Local's galf tournament, Rosas purchased golf balls for
$52.32 at The Reserve Golf Shop using his Local card. {(Ex. 301) The Local paid. {(Ex. 301) The
handwritten note on this receipt was "Golf Tournament.” (Ex. 301) That was not an atenuate
description of the unicn purpose for Rosas causing the Local to pay for items not for Local use.
Rosas subsequently testified that at the tocal's All Charities Golf Tournament he purchased golf
balls as a gift for a member of the Steetworkers Union who was participating in the tournament,
{Ex. 8 a1 211-212) Rosas claimed he made the purchase as “a gesture.” {Ex.8at 212} Rosas
did not provide that information contemporaneousty to the Local as required. There was no

upion reasan for the Lacal te buy golf balls for Rosas to give as gifts to an individual of his

L2 Rosas testifled that the charge was ", ., inadvertent.” {Ex. B at 140) As Rosas knew, the Locals credt card
should not be used for personal charges aven if the Lol was relmbursad for the charge. [Ex, 4 at 178) Rosas
cialmed that the plcture frames were for the Local, {Ex, 8at 148}
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choosing. (Ex. 303) There was no document establishing as required that he ever gave them to
anyone. That purchase for the purpose he described was not 3 velid use of union funds. Rosas
had no authority to do it. His failure to provide reguired information, and that the purchase
was unauthorized and of no benefit to the Local evidenced his intent to embezzle.

On Decermber 30, 2011, Rosas charged $248.52 af the Buckhern Exchanpge Restaurant in
Denver to kis Local card, [Fx, 286) He did not submit an itermized receipt for this charge as he
was reguired to do. [Ex. 5 at 21; Ex. 286) Rosas’ handwritten notation on the top of this non-
itemized receivt was “Sam R., Albert De La {ruz, aarc Grover +1° (Fx. 286; Ex. 8 at 362} The
plus one was not identified in any Local records as required. (Ex. 4 at 178) The receipt would
have been submitted shortly after the trip. No unlon purpose was noted in any Local record.
The Local paid it. (Ex, 286) During his sworn examination, Rasas testified that the plus ane was
Ken, an employee of Stars and Stripes, (Ex. 8 at 363)

Besides his failure 10 supply necessary information, further evidencing Rosas’ intent to
embezzie, Rosas falsely claimed only & few days after the charge was incurred that De La {ruz
was there on the receipt he submitted. {Ex, 286} De La Cruz did not travel 1o Denver antd was
not at that restaurant. {Fx. 14 at 46) During his [RB sworn examination, Rasas admitted Oe La
Cruz was not present. {Ex. 8 at 362) Rosas claimed he mada a mistake in putting his name on
that receipt. {Ex. 8 at 362) This was one of sevaral times Rosas caused the Local pay for a
restaurant charge with Grover while falsifying the receipt by adding the narme of someone who

was not present. (Exs. 286, 295, 302; Ex. 8 at 362; Ex. 368)16% That Rosas could have mistakenly

168 The othet Instances were on Sunday, December 8, 2012 when Rosas had 2 meal at Scoma’s Restaurant in
San Franclsco and wrote he was with Srover and Aloise and on June 25, 20113 at the Hard Rock Café Lake Tahoe
when Rosas again wrote he was with Graver and Alcise. {Exs. 293, 302] Alalse denied belng present at hoth these
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beiieved De Le Cruz traveled with him from Stockton to Denver and back s not credible. This

mesl was part of a trip Rosas made to Denver in a union vehicle with 3 union trailer to pick up a

motoreycle he purchased from Grover, a memorable event, {Ex. 407) Rosas claimed that he

picked up shirts the Local purchased In Colorado from Grover. {Ex, 8 at 361-364}

2. Rosas Engaged In a Schema to Defraud California in Violation of the Mail Fraud Statute
and Violsted the Taft Hariley Act when He Solicited and Received Something of Value

feom the Owner of Stars and Stripes

a. purchazes from Stars and Stripes

Between October 2008 and December 2013, the Logal spent 5314,301 for items such as
shirts, hats, mugs and bags purchased from Stars and Stripes. {Ext. 3492 Siars and Stripes is
located In Bridpeview, lllincis. {Ex. 346] Local 438M GCC/IBT, representad employees of Stars
and Stripes. (Ex. 348) The owner of the company was Grover. {Ex. 8 at 348) Rosas and Grover
wera friends. (Ex. 14 at 70; Ex. & at 372, 799-3011% Between 2008 and 2013, Rosas caused
the Local to pay Stars and Stripes 5270,593 for substantial purchases over $1,000 without
member approvals as required. {Ex. 348} Inthat same period, without Board approval, Rosas

caused the Local to purchase $266,823 worth of items from Stars and Stripes. {Ex. 3AG) 166

meals. (Ex. 368} Rosas also submitted & receipt for December B, 2012 for a bar blil at the Rliten a1 which he
claimed Grover and e La Cruz were present with him before the Local’s party. (Ex. 285) De La Cruz denied belng
present far this charge. (Ex, 14 2t 74)

1= in 2011 zlape, Rusas caused the Local to pay $104,797 for merchandise from Stars and 5tripes. (Ex, 349)
That was & Local and International electlon yaar. {Exs, 603, £14)

163 Rosas testified that Grover attended some of the Local's holiday parties 35 a guest. {Ex. B at 205-313) in
addition, Rosas and Grover had meals and drinks at Lotal 439 expense, {Ex. B at 288-313) As described above, for
at east four of these tharges, Mosas falsified information on the recelpts when he claimed that Internatonal Vice
fresident Alolse or De Lz Cruz were prasent. {Exs. 74, 368, 235, 302, 363, 486, Ex. 14 3t 46-47; Ex, & at 307, 362-
363}

165 In that period the Executlve Board had approved purchases of $47,47E from Stars and Stripes, [Ex, 349]
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The Local had no records indicating that anyone confirmed any items it bought from
Stars and Stripes were received at the Local as IBT policy required. {Ex. 4 at 73; Ex. 10 at 42-45)
Ini agtdition, as described above, there were no records tracking the disposition of much of the
quarter milkian dofiars in merchandise purchased as Rosas and Alonzo were required to ensure
the Local maintain. (Ex. 564; Ex. 10 at 42-45)"7

h, Rosas’ Fraudulent Scheme and Mis Solicltation of a Thing of Value from an
Employer

in Detember 2011, Rosas purchased a Barley Davidson motorcycle from Grover for
$13,000. (Ex. 556; Ex, 8 at 350, 386, 392)%% Resas acknowledged he paid Grover jess than the
market va{ue for it. {Ex. 8 at 357-358) Me admitted that this particular metorcycle was worth
more than $13,000 because it had extra chrome and upgrades. {Ex. 8 at 358) Rosas had told De
La Cruz that because of the additional tems Grover added to the motovcycle it was worth twice
what Rosas patd. {Ex. 14 at 69) An officer knowingly purchasing an itern from an employer for
less than market price in itseif violates of 18 L1,5.C. §186(a) and (b}.

Grover lived in llinois and his company was there, {Exs. 424, 407) Raosas traveled to
Denver, Colorado on December 28, 2011 to pick up the motorcycle fram Grover. (Ex. B af 360-
364} Rosas also claimed that on this trip he picked up shirts for the Local that Stars and Stripes
had allegediy brought to Colorado. (Ex. B at 364} There were no Local records indicating that

any other employee confirmad any shirts had been received from Rosas after this trip, (Ex. 10 at

re? Under federal faw, Rosas a5 Secretary-Treasurer was requited to have records that accounted forthe
disposition of Lotal assets. 29 U.5.C. §5431, 436, 435

e He pald 510,000 In Becember 2011, {Ex, 556] Seven months Jater, Rosas sent Grover 3 53,000 check
drawn on @n account in the name of Rosas” wife and son. (Ex, 558)

Lt}




42-45) For this trip Rosas used the Local truck assigned to him and the Local owned trailer {o
carry the bike back. (Ex. 8 at 361} Rousas caused the Local to pay 5314.33 for his gas to get
Grover's motorcycie. (Ex. 464)

On January 5, 2012, Rosas signed under oath an "Application for Title or Registration”
for the motorcytle ta be registered in the State of California on which he misrepresented his
purchase price as $100. (Ex. 407)*® Rosas admitted that he made an intentional false
representation on the form submitted to the state because he was attempting to defraud
California out of taxes he owed. {Ex. 8 at 393-396) Ha mailed the form to Grover in Hliincis,
along with @ “Vehicle/Vessel Transfer and Reassignment Farm®, Rosas hat also filled out, (Ex. &
at 394-3596)1" On January 30, 2012, Grover signed the “Vehicle/Vesse| Transfer and
Reassignment Form” which also falsely represented the purchase price was $100. {Ex. 407)
Rosas testified that he “may” have told Grover that, . .. { put down { paid $100 to save on
taxes.” {Ex. 8 at 396) Those forms were filed with the state. (Ex. 407) With Grover's essential
aid, Rosas defrauded California out of 51,032 in state use tax he owad, {Ex. 562) %"

Through thelr scheme to submit a material faise statement to California to defraud it

out of money and their use of the mails or interstate carrier service te implement their scheme,

165 California Reg Form fa. 343, [Ex 407)
i Californis Reg. Form 262, (Ex. 407}

17 The purchase price was $13,000. {Ex. 556) The tax on that was $1,040, {Ex, 562) Instead, Rosas pald
48.00 In taxes on the false clalm of the $100 purchase price, cheating the state out of over 51,000, [Ex. 407)

The IRE obtained the records from the Callfornlz Department of Motor Vehicles with which they were

fiied. [Ex. 407} In a letter from his artorney copled to Rosas, Rosas had claimed he did not have a copy of a bill of
sale Because the transaction was “informat”, (Ex, 556}
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Rosas and his co-scherner Grover violated the federal mall fraud statute, Y Fountain v. United

States, 357 F.3d 250, 255-256 |2d Cir. 2004); United States v. Poreglli, 865 £.2d 1352, 1360 [2d
Cir. 1385) (prosecution under 18 U.5.C. §1341 for scheme to evade state sales tax); United

States v, De Fiore, 720 F.2d 757, 761 (2d Cir. 1983} {Sectlon 1341 applied to state tax

violations).

Grover received no direct benefit from Rosas’ fraud. He actommodated Resas, who
through his control of Local 438, was a substantial custorner of Stars and Stripes,  [n addition to
defrauding California, Rosas committed another criminal act when he solicited Grover's
participation which was essential to Rosas’ fraud. Titie 29 U.5.C. §186(a} and (b} provida in
pertinent part:

{a} it shall be uniawful far any employer .. . any person . . . who acts in the interest of
any employer to pay, lend, or deliver, or agree to pay, lend, or defiver, any monay of
cther thing of value -

* L] L]

(4} to any officer or amployee of a laber organization engaped in an industry affecting
commerce with intent ta influence him in respect ta any of his actions, decisions, or
duties as a representative of employees or as such officer or employee of such labor
grganization.

{B] {1} It shall be unlawful for any person to request, demand, recelve, or accept, or
agree Lo receive or accept, any payment, foan, or delivery of any . . . thing of value
prohibited by subsection {a) of this section.

17 Rosas malled the farm to Grover as a step In the scheme. {Ex, 8 at 3%4-395) The statute covers not only
sechemes that use the US Mall but also that use commerclal Intersiate carrlers such as UPS and Federal Express, 18
U5C 51341, Even if he emafied 1t, it would stil be the racketeering act of wire fraud, 18 US.C. §1343, 18 LS.
§1961{1),
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Rosas, an employee of a labor organlzation engaged in an industry affecting commerce, ™
violated 29 U.5.C. 5186(h) in soliciting and receiving from Grover, an agent of an erployer, a
thing of v2lue with the intent to influence his decisions 1o use Locat funds to make purchases
from Grover's company, Stars and Stripes. Rosas had authorized the toca! to purchase

$223 575 of merchandise from Stars and Stripes in the 40 months before Grover made the false
representation to California for Rosas. {Ex. 555)%* Rosas orderer an additional 520,725 in
merchandise from It in the 22 months afterwards, {Ex. 555} OFf that last amount, 570,222 was
without approvals. {Ex. 555)17% The false statement from Grover to California was a thing of
value Rosas solicited since it belped Rosas in his scheme to defraud California out of $1,000.
[Exs. 407, 556, 562} Rosas’ dual role &s the authorizer of the Local's Stars and Stripes purchases
and the beneflciary of the false statement was evident to Grover and showed Grover had the
necessary intent to influence a union decision maker. United States v. DeBrouse, 652 F.2d 383,
387 {&™ Cir, 1981). Rosas’ reguest for a thing of value from a vendor that would directly benefit
him evidenced he used his position to benefit himself, United States v. Pecora, 484 F,2d 1289,
1294 {3 Cir. 1973); United States v. DeBroyuse, 652 F.2d at 387. The thing of value Rosas
demanded was the false representation ha nseded to defraud Californta out of use taxes. The

employer complied, gave the union officlal what he solicited and the statute was viniated.

17 Amnong others, Local 439 represented UPS employees, [Ex 608) The Interstate pirckage indystry has an
tmpatt on inferstate commerce.

™ Thvis was the amount Local 439 paid to 5tars and Stripes during the 40 menth period from October 1, 2008
through January 29, 2011. {Ex. 555}

s This was the amount Lncal 438 paid to Stars and Striges during the 22 month period from January 30,
2012 through December 5, 2013, {Ex. 555)
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United States v. DeBrouse, 652 F.2d at 387.17¢ This wes In addition 1o the value Rosas recelved

from the employer by recelving the motorcycle for less than the market value.,

A thing of value may be intangible. United States v. Douglas, 634 F.3d 852, 858 {6™ Cir.

2011} (thing of value is not imited to an item of monetary value). The agreement and
participation of Grover, the employer’s agent, in the falsification of the sales price of the item
Rosas bought was of value to Rosas because it allowed him to save over $1,000 in taxes.

After receiving the thing of value, Rosas continued to cause the Local to make 590,725
in purchases from Stars and Stripes. {Ex. 555177 Rosas rade 570,222 of these purchases
without required Board and members' approvais, [Ex. 555) He did so without having someone
record what Stars and Stripes goods were actuaily received at the Local as he was required to
do undear the IBT's Secretary-Treasurer’s Manual, [Ex. 4 at 73; £x. 10 at 42-45} He failed to
account, as he was regulred to do under federal law, 28 U.S.C. §§431, 436, 439, tar the
disposition of much of the merchandise ailegedly purchased from Stars and Stripes. {Exs. 564,
552)7% indeed, as noted in pp. 37-39, Rosas often ardered more merchandise from Stars and
Stripes than was necessary for the claimed union purpose.

3 Rosas Teok Hiegal Loans from the Local

e Employees of Stars and Stripes were represented by another Teamster Local, Local 458M GOCABT, and
that was sufficient for e violation of 18 U.5.0, §186{al{4]. There was no requirement that the officlal seliciting the
thing of value be one whose unlon currently represented the employer's employees, United States v, Burge, 2]=a]
F.2d3 244, 250 (6% Cir, 1042).

LI This was the amount the Local paid to Stars ang Strlpes after January 30, 2012 through December 5, 2013.
(Ex. 555}

e Rosas t the past had been caught using fond the Locai purchased Wegally in connection with an election.
[Ex. 434]
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Title 28 U.5.C. 8502 makes it 3 crimina! act for any officer or employee of a labor
organization to borrow in excess of 52,000 from the union. ™ Advances for unearned vacatlon
are lozns, (Ex. 532 at 10-12) United States v. IBT [Burke}, 817 F. Supp, 337, 344 {5.D.N.Y. 1883}

aff'd 14 F.3d 183, 184 {2d Cir. 1994); United Stetes v. Briscoe, 65 £.3d 576, 587 (7' Cir. 1995)

Rosas authorized and received over 52,000 in prohibited loans to hivnself. {Ex. 12 at 142-144;
Ex. 383}

Pursuant to the Local's policy, @s of January 2009, Rosas eamed six weeks vatation each
year. (Exs. 6, 350) Section 14{B){2) of the Bylaws defined one weak as 50 hours. {Ex. 5 at 14-15}
Accordingly, Rosas was entltled to 300 vacation hours each year. Under California faw,
vacation is available to be taken as earned. {(Ex. 561} The Local's policy was more restrictlve,
requiring employees to wait until the following lanuary to take vacation fime earned during a
year. For purposes of the analysis in this report, California law was applled so that once Rosas
earned vacation time, he was credited with being able to use it.  In 2013, Rosss received
advances for vacation that he had not yet earned. {Ex. 383) These advances at times exceeded
43,000 and were an illegal loan. {Ex. 383) As of july 2013, the iliegal interest free loan from the

Local to Rosas totaled $4,375.50. {Ex. 383)

178 29 1.5.C, §503 provides the following:

a) Na laber organization shall make directly ar indirectly any foan or loans to any officer or employee of
such organlzation which results In 2 total indebtedness on the part of such officer or employea ta the
labor organization In excess of $2,004. {b) Ne labor organization or employer shall directly or indirectly
pay the fine of any offtcer or empteyes convicted of any wlllful violation of this chapter, (c] Any person
who willifulby vilates this section shzl! be finsd nat mare than 55,000 or imprisened for not mare than
One year, of both.

fEx. 552)
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in January 2013, under the Local’s policy, Rosas was credited with 300 vacation hours
earned in 2012, (Ex. 350} He had no other accrued vacation to carry forward inio 2013, {Ex.
350) In 2012, Rosas previously had exchanged 205 of these 300 hours far pay against this
unused vacation. {Exs, 382-383) That reduced the 300 hours. Consequentiy, Rosas hrad only S5
vacation hours available to him at the start of 2013, (Ex. 382-3831*¥0 n January 2013, the Local
paid Rosas for 120 hours; the remaining 85 vacation hours ke had earred In 2012, (Ex, 383} He
sarned 25 additional hours gurtng January 2013, (Ex. 38313  Between February 1 and July 21,
2013, Rosas received additional payments for 300 unused vacatlon hours. (Ex. 383} During
that six month period, Rosas had earned 150 hours vacation. {Ex. 383} Accordingly, after
crediting those earned, by the end of july 2013, Rosas had received advanced payment for 150

haurs of vacation that he had not yet earned. {Ex. 383} His pey stubs reflected his

& The Lotal's vacation records showed that Rosas’ 300 vecation hours credited 1n Jamrary 2013 ware
reducad by 180 haurs, the amount the Local had recorded as his varatien advances at the end of 2012, {Ex. 350)
Because the Local both falied to include 70 hours vacstion Rosas cashed In In May 2012 and improperly increased
the vacatlan cash out in February 2008 by 15 heurs, the Locat's records showed that Rosas had taken sdvances of
55 fewer hours than he hao taken by the end of 2012, {Exs. 350, 382, 379] Atthe end of 2012, Rosas had taken
205 howrs of the hours that would be credited to bim in January 2013 under the Local's vacation policy, not the
180 hours a5 reflected in the Local’s vacation schedule. {£xs. 350, 382, 363)

fnsas, who cialmed he had never taken yacation in 2002 through 2013 bt anly cashed it out, had no
arcrued hours being carried from year toyear, |Ex. B at 324; Ex. 3507 The only heurs he bad were those earned
the previous year which Local poltey did not allow to be cashed out or used unti! the fellowing year. {Ex. 5}

161 Rosas’ 300 annual vacation hours were sarned at a rate of 25 gach month. (£x. 5)
w2 The Lacal's former bookkesper test/fled that when Rasas requested to tash out 80 hours of vacation time
on July 18, 2013, she told him that hls vacation was In arrears under the Local’s vacation poiicy. (Ex. 12 at 148-149}

i response, Roses told her that ihe Board had approved the payment to him. {£x. 12 &t 148) There was nt such
Board approvak. [Ex. 12 st 149-150; Ex. 35)
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indebtedness. (Ex. 56718 The 54,375.50 in advances he had received were an iliegal loan. (Ex.

383, 532) 184

His indebtedness was reflected on his pay stubs in negative hours and known to hirm.
{(Ex. 567) Yet, Rusas did not report any loan on the Local’s 2013 Form LM-2 as explicitly
requiced. {Ex. 2215 That resulted in his making a false statement under oath on the Form LM-2
he signed that there were no officer loans. {Ex. 22} Inthe five months August through
December 2013, Rosas earned 125 vacation hours. {Ex, 383) When this was set off against the
hours he had previously been advanced, Rosas had an outstanding loan of $729.25 at the end
of 2013 becsuse he had been advanced payment for 25 vacation hours he not yet earned. {Ex.
383)

F. Aloneo Embezzled and Breached Mis Fiduclary Duties when He Caused the Locat to Pay
for Personal Expenses

in addition to assisting and abetting tha embezzlemant of Local funds with Rosas to pay

Speckman over $15,000 without autherity and for no union purpose as described at pp. 43-49,

e For example, Rosas’ paystub for his July 18, 2013 advance payment of 50 vacation hours showed his
vacation balance es “-280". (Ex. 567 Rosas received another check that day which inciuded an advance payment
of an additdonsl 10 vacation hours, {Ex. 567] The check stub for this check stated his avallable vacation was “_300%,
{Ex. 567]

I On Fehruary 5, 2013, Rasas was paid in advanee for 50 vatation hours resulting b & oan to him of
$2,535.60. (Ex. 363} On March 21, 2013, Rosas received advance paymend far BO vacation howrs resuiting in lnan
to himt totallng $3,937.95. (Ex, 283) Nointerest was ever charged on Rosas’ advances. OnjJune 14, 2013, Rosas
received advance payment for B vacation hours making the total amaunt af the loan to him S4,083.80. (Ex. 383}
On Jufy 18, 2012 Rosas was paid in advance for 60 vacatlon haurs. {Ex. 382) Atthat point, the laan to him was
54,375.50. (Ex. 383)

a8 Rosas’ June and July 2013 pay stubs showed negative vacation time balances. {Ex. 567) Tne Form LM-2
has a specific provision for "Loans Recelvable”, {Ex. 22) The Ferm L-2 mstructlons require the fallowing
informatian to be provided, *{}the name of each officer. . . whose total loan indebtedness to the |aber prganization
... at any tme during the reporiing perfod exceaded $250. , ." [Ex. 532) The Form b2 instructlons specifically
states that "[ajdvances, Including salary 2dvances, are tonsidered Joans and must be reported in Sthedule 2 (loans
Receivahie). {Ex. 532)
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Alonzo breached his fiduciary duties and embezzied from the Local by causing it te pay for
petsonal expenses. These parsonal expenses included Alonzo's restaurant charges in the
Srockton area for which there was no union purpose, Between lanuary 2011 and March 2014
Alonzo caused the Local to pay for 87 such restaurant expenses, totallng $3,808. (Ex. 310) In
agdition, hetween 2008 and 2013, Alonzo received at Local expense $1,741 worth of Raiders
tickets, tickets to the holiday party for himself and his family and in town Local hotel rooms
without & union purpose. [Ex, 528) There was no union benefit for the Local 1o pay these
expenses for social events for Alonza.

1. Alonzo’s In Town Meals with Only Gfficers and Employees Present

Alanza frequently caused the Local ta pay for his in-town meals without a union purpose.
For example, between January 2011 and February 2014, Alonzo charged 28 restaurant expenses
to the Local when Alenzo listed his brother-in-law Delgade as the only other person present. {Ex.
310) From january 2011 to December 31, 2014, Delgado was a Trustee. He was not empioyed
by the Local. (Fx. 13 at 6-9) Delgado retired frorn UPS in May 2013. {Ex. 7} On their face, these
charges appearad to be personal expenses. For 10 of these, Alonzo failed to note any union
purpose on the receipts he submitted. (Ex. 310) None was apparent. On 17 other cccasions,
Alonza noted "UPS” as the union purpose. (Ex. 310) There was no information as to what was
discussed, why these discussions had ta be at a restaurant, or any other information necessary
to datermine that what on its face was a personal expense was for a union purpose. When given,
Alonzo’s statements of union purpose for eating with his brother-in-law were Intentionally vague

and falied to meet the requirements of |87 policy, federal law, and the Bylaws.
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For six charges with Delgada at Angeling’s Restaurant which shared a parking lot with the
Local, Alonzo caused the Local to pay $271.47. (Exs. 310, 311, 334, 335, 338, 340; bx. 8 at 170-
171) Alonzo proviged no explanation of unien purpose for these. {Exs, 310, 334, 335, 338, 3401
Four accurred after Deigado had retired from his UPS job, On their face, these wete personzl
expenses, The timing, crcumstances and Alonzo’s failure to provide the required information
evidenced his intent to embezzle, evidencing his intent to embezzte,

On Saturday, Janvary 8, 2011, at 6:17 p.m., Alonzo charged %38.00 at Angelina's. On the
non-itermnized receipt he listed Delgado as present, [Ex. 311} He intentionally provided no unian
purpose for the Saturday night expense. (Ex, 311} The Local paid it. (Ex, 311} At this time,
Delgado was employad at UPS and was aiso a Lacal 439 Trustee. Any union discussion could have
been at the union offices across the parking lot or on the telephone. The intentional amission of
required information evidenced Alonzo's intent 1o emhezzie.

On Wednesday September 4, 2013, at 12:53 p.m,, lunchtime, Alonzo charged $36.80 at
Angelina's noting Deigado was present. {Ex. 334)1¥7 He submitted a non-itemized receipt. (Ex.
334) Alonzo provided no union purpose for the expense. (Ex. 334) There was no reason for the
Local to pay for their lunch. Angelina’s shared a parking Jot with the Local. (Ex, 8 at 170-171}
Any business could have been conducted at the Local across the lot.  There was no explanation

as to why they could not have had any union discussion at the Local.

26 One recelpt kad the handwritten notation “UPS” and another the notation "Trustee.” (Exs. 324, 340]

a2 The receipt was dated Tuescay, Septamber 3, 2013, but the eredit card statement lIsted the transaction
date as September 4, 2013, {£x 334)
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On Thursday, Septembier 26, 2013, at 5:43 p.mn., Alonze charged 554 87 st Angeiina's. [Ex.
325} On the non-iemized receipt, Alonzo listed Delgado as present. {Ex. 335) Alonzo provided
na union purpose for the expense. The Local paid it. (Ex. 335} At this time, Delgado was a
Trustee, and unemployed in any craft. Alonzo provided no reason why this meeting with his
brother-inaw needed to be held at a restaurant, at most, a two minute walk from the Local,
This was a personal and not & union expense,

Cn Tuesday, November 26, 2013, at 5:45 p.m., Alonzo charged 533,00 at Angetina’s. {Ex.
338] On the non-itemized recelpt he submlitted, he fisted Trustee Delgado as present. (Ex
33B)'%8 Alnnzo provided na union purpose for the expense. {Ex. 338) Thiswas a personal expense
with his brother-in-faw. Apy discusslon of union business could have been done at the hall, atwe
minute walk from the restaurant.

Alonzo also listed his brother-in-law Delgado on other restaurant expenses Alon2o
incurred and deliberately omitted providing union purposes for the expenses evidencing his
knowledge such information needed to be concealed to justify payment. The following are
Examples:

On Monday, May 9, 2031, Alonzo charged $12.72 at Fip's Burgers. {Ex. 214} Onthe non-
iternized receipt he submitted, he listed Delgado as present. {Ex. 314) Alonzo did not previde
any union purpose for the expense. {Ex. 314} There was no union benefit for what was a personal

EXpense.

18 Delgads, who was not a full-time Local employee, was ineligible to be Trustae without employment under
the IET Constitution. FBT Constitution, Att. N, (Ex. 3 at 13-17, Ex. 53t 6}
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On Sunday, September 2, 2012, Alonzo charged 553.30 at Hacienda Sahuayo. The thme
on the non-itemized receipt was ilegible. [Ex. 328) Alonzo listed Delgado as present for this non-
workday expense. {Ex. 228} Alonzo provided no union purpose. (Ex. 328} On its face this was
personal. The Local paid the charge. (Ex. 32B} Along with the circumstances, as in other
instances, Alonzo's intentlonal failure to provide the information the Byiaws and [aw required
contemporanecusly to judge whether this was a unton expense evidenced his intent to embezzie,

On four other occasions, Alonzo incurred restaurant expenses on his union card for
meetings with Delgado at The Creamery Restaurant. {Ex. 310)®® On Thursday, February 17,
2011, at 12:53 p.m., Alonzo charged a $54.60 lunchtime expense at The Creamery. (Ex. 315} He
submitted a non-itemized receipt on which the union purpose for the expense was neted as the
uninformative “UPS®. {Ex. 315} Alonza deiiberately omlitted detail he was required to provide
and was necessary to determine if this was a valid union purpose for a charge with his relative.

On Thursday, January 10, 2013, at 1:00 p.m., Alonzo charged $45.78 at The Creamery with
Delgado. {€x. 521} On the non-itemized receipt be submitted for the lunchtime expense Alonzo
omltted any description of the union purpose for the expense. (Ex. 521) Thls was an admission
that tha charge, which on its face was personal, was not for union business. [Ex. 521]

On Friday, Novemnber 8, 2013, at 2:42 p.m., Alonzo charged a 554.93 expense with
Delgado at The Reserve 660, a restaurant at a Stockton golf course. (Ex. 3371 He submitied a

non-itemized receipt. (Ex. 337) There was no reason for two officers to do union business at a

128 Acenrding ta MapQuest, The Creamery Restaurant ls 5.45 milies from Locad 438, with 11 minutes trave| time.
The restaurant is 8.01 miles from the UPS depat, with 13 minutes travel time, {(Ex. 347)

Ey According to MapQuest, The Reserve 660 is B.15 miles from the Local, with 14 minutes travel time. it is
14.18 milies from the UPS Huk, where Delgade worked, with 19 minutes travel time. [Ex. 347
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golf course in mid-afternoon of a workday, Alonzo gave no union purpuse for the charge. [Ex.
337} As with all these charges, the tircumstance of the charge and Alonzo’s intentional failure to
provite the required information evidenced his intent to embezzle,

On 15 other occasions, Alonzo and Rosas were together when Alonzo charged expenses
tothe Local's card. {Ex. 3101 Alonzo and Rosas were the only two full-time officers of the Local.
The following are some examples of Alonze’s charging the Local for restautant visits when only
he and Rusas were present and Alonzo deliberately omitted the union purpose for the expernise
he caused the Locai to pay.

On Thursday, July 24, 2013, Alenzo charged 540.75 at The Olive Garden for himself and
Rosas. {Ex. 520)1%2 Alonzo submitted a non-itemized receipt and provided no union purpose for
the expense. (Fx.520} He gave no explanation as 1o why any meeting between the two full-time
offtrars could not have been held st the Local, There was no reason for the members to be paying
for Rosas’ and Alonzo’s refreshment. Alonzo's intent to defraud was evidenced from his
Intentionat omission of any union purpase, his viclation of the Bylaws and the circumstances of
the charge.

On Wednesday, October 12, 2011 at 7:28 p.m,, Alonzo charged $71.81 at Bi's Restaurant
& Brewhouse for mself and Rosas. (Ex. 319) On the non-itermized receipt Alonzo submitted to
the Local, he gave no union purpose for the expense. {Ex. 319) He gave no reason why a meeting

with Rosas needed to be held cutside the Local. On its face it was @ personal expense. Again,

bt Rosas had 28 instances of restayrant charges when anly he and Alonzo were present. (£x. 75)

12 The DHve Garden [5 23.88 miles from the Local, with 25 minutes travel time. (Ex. 347] There was no time
visfiele on the receipt, {Ex 520]

190




the circumstance, his defiberate omission of any union purpose and his violation of the Bylaws
requirement evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Thursday, Cectober 31, 2013 at 2:34 pm., Alonzo charged $49.17 at Susy's Mexican
Eood for Rosas and himself. (Ex. 337) On the non-itemized receipt Alonzo submitted, he noted
na urlon purpose for the expense. (Ex. 337} He gave no explanation why any meeting between
the gnly two full-time officers needed to be held outside the Local. This was a personal expense
as his omission of union purpose, although required, evidenced, Both the circumstance and
Alonzo's failure to provide the information required for the Local to pay evidenced his intent to
embezzle.

Om Manday, November 18, 2013 at 3:13 p.m,, Alonzo charged $50.63 at Perko’s Café for
Rosas and hirmself, {Ex. 338)'*? Onthe non-itemized receipt Alonzo suhmitted, he noted no union
purpase for the expense. (Ex. 338) He gave no expianation why any meeting between the two
Full-time officers needed to be held outside the Local. (Ex. 338) This was a personal expense,
Bath the clreumstances and Alonzo’s deliberate omission of a union purpose evidenced his intent
to embezzie.

tany of Alonzo's other charges were aiso not for a union purpose. On Monday, March
21, 2011, at 12:2% p.m., Alonzo charged $48.33 at The Creamery. (Ex. 313) ©On the non-itermized
receipt he submitted, he listed business agents Nicewonger and Daughters as present. (Ex. 313}

Alonzo provided no union purpose for the lunch time expense. (Ex. 313} There was ng union

1 parke’s Café is 2.48 miles from the Local, with 5 minutes travel time, (Ex. 347)
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benefit for what was a personal expense among fudl time Local employees.  His intentional
osmisstan of a proper purpose which he was required to supply evidenced there was none.

On Monday, March 28, 2011 at 12:53 p.m., Alonzo charged 557.63 at Hacienda Sahuayo.
(Ex. 313}3%  On the non-itemized receipt he submitted, Alonzo listed his friend, George Juarez,
a retired member of Local 439, as present, {Ex. 313; Ex. 10 at 62} Alonzo provided no union
purpose for the expense, which on its face was personal. The Local paie it. {Ex. 313}

On Tuesday, September 4, 2012 at 10:51 a.m., Alonzo charged $32.64 at Susy’s Maxican
Food. [Ex. 328) The non-itemized receipt Alonzo submitted to the Local listed business agent
Daughters as present. (Ex. 328) Alonzo did not provide a union purpose for the expense, The
Local paid it, [Ex. 328)

On Tuesday, April 5, 2011, Alonzo charged $57.48 at Stockton Joe's. {Ex. 313 On the
non-itemlzed recalpt he submitted, he listed Rosas and business agent Andazola as present. {Ex.
313} Alonzo provided no union purpose for the lunch expense ameng full time Local employees.
{Ex. 313) The Local paid it. (Ex. 313} His omission of information he knew was necessary to Justify
the expense is evidence of his intent to embezzle.

On Friday, May 20, 2011, at 11:15 a.m., Alonzo charged $69.57 at Susy’'s Mexican Food.
{Ex, 315) On the non-itemlzed receipt he submitted, Alonzo listed Rosas, Buzo, Nicewonger and

Daughters as present. {Ex. 316) Alonzo provided no union purpose for the expense that he

b according to MapCluest, Hacienda Sshuayo is 6.39 miles from the Local, with 1 minute travel time. (Ex.
347
18 Aceording to MapCuest, Stockton Jog's is 5,17 miles from the Local, with 12 minutes travel time. (Ex. 347)
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csused the Local to pay. (Fx. 316} He gave no reason why the five full time employees could not
have met at the Local.

On Tuesday, December 27, 2011, Alonzo charged 524.24 ot The Reserve, a restaurant at
a Stockton goif course. {Ex. 322)™% The time was iliegible on the non-itemized receipt Alonzo
submitted. {Ex. 322} He listed business agent Buzo, asthe other person present. (Ex, 322} There
was no upioh purpose noted. There was no reason for Lotal employees to be doing union
business at a golf course. This in town charge was a personal expense.

On Friday, December 3, 2011, at 8:51 p.m,, two days befere the holiday party, Alonzo
charged $178.99 at Stockton joe's. [Ex. 321) The non-itemtzed receipt he submitiad fisted
Grover, the owner of Stars & 5tripes, a vendor of shirts, hats and other iterss, and business agent
De La Cruz as present. {Exs. 129, 321} Alpnzo provided no union purpose for the charge. {Ex.
321) On its face it was a personal benefit. There was no reason for the Local to be paying for
Alonzo and a business agent's charge with a vendor from [fiinois, appatently in town for the
Local's holiday party.

The following are examples of Alonzo’s charging the Local for bar or restaurant expenses
when he did not identify any others as present:

On Friday, April 27, 2012, 3t 7:43 p.m., Alonzo charged %130.25 &t Famous Dave’s Pit BBQ.
(Ex. 324} The nor-itemized receipt Alonzo submitted to the Local did not list anyone else as
present. (Ex. 324) Alonzo provided no unfon purpose for the Friday evening expense. [Ex. 324)

The circumstance, his intentional omission of & union purpose and who else may have been

95 According to MapGuest, The Reserve 660 15 8,15 miles from the Local, with 14 minutes travel time. {Ex
347)
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present, and Alonzo’s intentional viotation of the Bylaws by not providing required documents
evidenced his intent o defraud.

On Wednesday, November 2, 2011, at 12:49 p.m,, Alonza charged $38.88 ai Haclenda
Sahuayo. {(Ex. 320) The records refiect that he did not provide a unlon purpose or note anyone
else being present. (Ex. 320) There was no union purpose in paying for Alonzo to eat alane at
junchtime at members’ expense. Despite Alonzo's failure to provide the required information to
justify the expensa, the tocal paid it. {Ex. 320} His intentional omission of a clalmed union
purposa evidenced his intent to defraud.

On Sunday, March 18, 2012, Alonzo charged 550.93 at Angehina’s. [Ex. 323) The time was
iltegible on the non-itemized receipt he submiited. (Ex. 323) He did not kst anyone else as
present, {Ex. 323} Alonzo provided no union purpose for the non-workday expense far himself.
A weekand rmeal for Alanzo either alone or with someone else wouid not be & valid union
purpose. The gdrcumstance of the meal and Alonzo’s intentional failure to pravide basic required
information, including what the upion purpose was, evidenced his intent to embezzie.

On Thursday, August 15, 2012, at 11:11 a.m., Alonzo charged 565.90 at Lumberjack’s
Restaurant. (Ex. 328)%% The non-itemized receipt Alonzo submitted to the local listed no one
else as present, (Ex. 328) Alonze’s falure to provide a union purpose for the expense, which on
its face was personal, was an admission this was not union related. {Ex. 328} He failed to provide
the iInformatlon and documentation he was required to. The Local paid i, (Ex. 328} Thers was

no unicn purpose for the Local to pay for a late morning restaurant charge in town for an officar

157 According to MapQuest, Lumberlack'’s Restaurant is 7.57 miles from the Local, with nine minutes traved
time. {Ex. 347} The restaurant is 2.4 miles from Alotiza's home, with 4 minutes travel time. (Ex. 347)
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by himself, Alonza’s Intent to defraud was evidencaed by his Bylaw violation and the
circumstances,

On Monday, October 1, 2012, at 7:01 p.m., Alonzo charged $26.98 at the Brookside
Country Club, a golf course in Stockton. {Ex. 325)*%® The recelpt Alonzo subimftted to the Locai
listed no one else as present, (Ex, 329) The receipt indicated it was for three “premium® drinks,
{Ex. 329) Alonzo did not provide 2 union purpose for the expense for drinking alene, which on
its face was personal and of no benefit to the union. The Local paid [t. {Ex. 329)

On Wednesday, December 19, 2012, at 7:41 p.m., Alonzo charged 5121.00 at Angalina’s.
(Ex. 521) Alonzo submitted a non-itemized receipt that listed no other persons present and
noted the union purpose as “Genaral Membership Meeting.” {Ex. 521) The minutes of the
December 19, 2012 membership meeting showed that a meeting was called to order at 2:01 p.m.
and adiourned at 7:28 p.m.. {Ex. 28} Alonze's justification did not provide sufficient detall to
support the charge. There was no reason for the Local to pay for Alonza’s meal after a 27 minute
meeting. Any union discussion could have been at the offices across the lot. Alonzo knew what
informnation was required and deliberately falled to provide it evidencing his intent to defraud.

2. Alonzo’s Additional Personal Expenses

in addition 1o his in town restaurant charges, Alonzo received 12 free tickets to the

holiday party for him and his guests worth 5780, elght free tickets to Ratders games the farce

8 The recelp! was dated October 1, 2012, but the credit card statement llsted the transaction for October 4,
2012, [Ex. 329} According to MapCiuest, The Brookside Country Club 1s 7.71 miles from the Local, with 13 minutes
travel tirne. (Ex. 347]
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value of which was $488 and hotel reoms in Stockton In 2010 and 2012, (Ex. 528) The costto
the Local for these items was 51,741, {Ex. 528)
a. Holiday Party Tickets for Alonzo and Family Members

In the years 2010 through 2012, there were ne Board and members’ appravals for the
Local ta spend any money for a holiday party. {Exs. 26-28, 32-34) Alonzo received free tickets
tothe holiday parties in 2009, 2011, 2012 and 2013 without the required Board approval for
these. (Exs. 528, 522, 524, 525, 504, 596, 597, 598)'% Neither Alonzo nor anyone else
recorded a union purpose in Local records for the tickets he recsived without cost to him.
Other members paid. (Exs. 594, 596, 597, 538} In addition to Alonzo, in 2009, 2011 and 2012,
his wife Grace received free tickets to the parties. [Exs, 522, 524, 525) His parents, Armando,
Sr. and Beveriy, also each received a free ticket in 2009 and 2011, {Exs. 522, 524) *™ {n
addition, his children, Alyssa, Nick and Nicole Alonzo, each recelved a free ticket in 2012, {Ex.
525)%1 The vaiue of these 12 unauthorized free tickets for Alonzo and hls family members was
£780, (Ex. 528) No union record reflacted any union purpose for these expenses for

attendance at sotlal events. There was pore, That Alonzo and his family were attending a

s 45 noted above, In one year, 2012, there was Exacutive Board approvel for staff and halpers o receive a
free ticket, {Ex. 351] That year Alonzo recelved six free tickets, five beyond the one, if any, the Board had
suthorized for him. There was no vote on giving free tickets to the full-time officers. These flve tickets were worth
%375. (Ex. 528

2 Alonzo tastifled that he belleved Rosas gave comped tickets to hls father, Armando, Sr. wha was a retlree.
{Ex. 10 at 49-50) Beverly Alonze alss recelved 3 comped ticket in 2012, {Ex. 525) :

b Alyssa Alonzo is Alonzo’s daughter. (Ex. 12 at 223] Wick Alonizo and Nicote Alonzo lived with Alenzo in the
past and appear to also be his chlldren, (Ex. 510)
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Local social event without paying like members and thelr guests were required to do was never

disclosed at any Board or membership meeting. (Exs. 24-36; Ex. 15 at 30)

b. Ralders Tickets

In 2008 and 2010, there ware no 8oard and membership approvals for the Local to pay
for Raiders tickets and costs in connection with the trips to the games which Alonze and Rosas
caused the Local to pay.*¥ In the years 2009 and 2010, Alonzo received eight free tickets to
attend the game at Local expense without Board approval. (Exs, 528, 585, 590, 175, 176; Ex. 12
at 178-183, 185-189) These tickets cost the Local $488. (Ex. 528) Alonzo agmitted that he
attended the games without paying for a ticket. {Ex. 10 at £5-538} There was no disclosure 1o
the members or the Board that he was getting multiple tickets to the games at members’
expense. (Exs. 25-26, 31-32)

For the 2009 game, Alonzo recefved three free tickets worth 5183, {Exs. 528, 170, 175,
583)2%  The Local's Tailgate List showed Alonzo received three “somped” tickets and paid for
two others. [Exs. 175, 585) No purpose was noted n Local records for Alonzo receiving any free

tickets that year. Nor was there Board approval. (Ex, 31 4 Enr the 2010 Raiders game, Alonzo

au In 2003, there was Boatd approval to spend 52,000 for the Raiders game, {Ex. 812} The Local spent
413,270 more then that amount, {Ex. 566] Moreaver, there was ne membership approval as required to spend
any money for the Raiders game. {Ex, 31)

- The tokal value of the package he recetverd, as represented by the expanse to members, wes 3300, {Ex.
175}
s The Board had to approve expendltures, Nor can there be 2 claim these were comtpensation for workIng.

The Board needed to do that under the Bylaws and the Bylaws provided that Alonzo received an in town sllowance
for working iregular hours and stiending events. {Ex. 5 21 14-15, 20-21})
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recetved five free tickets worth $305. {Exs. 176, 528, 5901%  No Local records reflected that he
paid for those tickets, {Ex. 530)% There was no Local approval for him to recelve them. {Exs. 28§,
32}

€. Alonze's Restaurant Charges at Raiders Garmes

On September 23, 2012 at 11:48 a.m., the day of the Ralders game, Alonza charged a
477.75 expense on his union card at Aramark, a food and beverage vendor st Gakland Coliseum.
(Ex. 325) On the non-itemized receipt Alenza submitted to the Local, he listed his brother-in-
law Delgado and members Pablo Cordova and Ernie Ins as present. (Ex. 329} Alonzo did not
pravide a valid union purpase for this expense, which on its face was personal. {Ex. 329) There
was no henefit to the Local from Alonzo causing the Lotai to pay for refreshments for htm, his
brother-in-law and selected friends at a football game.

The following year, on November 3, 2013, on the day of the Raiders game, at 2:53 p.m,
Alonzo charged a $79.25 expense at The West Side Club, a bar/restaurant located on the Club
Leve! inside Ehe Oakland Coliseum. (Ex, 226) On the nan-itemized recefpt he submitted, Alonzo
iisted Richard Andazola, Alex Parra, Alex Carilio and Gerald Avila as present. (Ex, 226) Alonzo
noted no union purpese for the expense, which on its face was personal. (Ex. 226) At his sworn
examination, Alonzo stated that the expense was likely for "beverages” at halftime, but was not
ahle to provide a valid union purpose for the expense. (Ex. 10 at 70-75} Indeed, most

members attending did not have ¢lub seats. The packages sold to members included some

5 The total value of the package he received was measured by members’ costs for the same was S500. {Ex.
So0]
T For the 2012 Reiders game, which was after the |RB's books and records examination, Alonza purchased

eight club tickets. [Ex. 553]
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food and drink.  They had to buy anything beyond that. There was no union purpose that
justified Ajonzo buying some items for himself and selected members who had club level tickets

al a foothall game.

d. Alonzo's Rooms in Stockton

Alanzo caused the Local to pay 5316 for hotel roams for the 2010 and 2012 holiday
partles without autharization and a union benefit. {Ex. 528F%  In those years, Alonzo lved
approximately one and one haifl miles from the Hilton. {Ex. 10 at 28; Ex. 347} These rooms
were charged on Alonzo’s Local card. {Exs. B07-608) He did not supply 8 union purpese with
the bills as required, (Exs. 607-608) Alonzo testified that he caused the Local to pay for his
hotel rooms because he did not want to risk driving while intoxicated. (Ex. 10 at 28-30)°®® That
was a personal and not a unlon purpose for the expense. There was no Board authorization for
the expenses, He had no ohligation to the Local to get intoxicated. That was his choice. There
was no Union henefit to these charges. In addition, for the 2012 holiday party, AMlonzo caused
the Local to pay for a second room. {Ex. 608) Alonzo’s mother and his three children received
free tickets to the 2012 party. {Ex. 525} On the receipt for one room reglstered ta him Alonzo
wrtite “Christmas Party”., {Ex. ED8} Dn the ather receint Alonzo wrote “Christmas Pariy George
Juarez Retiree” (Ex. 608) There was no explanation of union purpose given for the room he

claimed to be for Juarez, a friend. (Ex. 10 at 62; Ex. 608)

20 For the 2010 Holiday party, the Locat paid $56.50 for Alonzo's hotel room, |Ex. 807)  For the 2012 Holiday
party, the Local pald $219.52 {$109.76 exch] for two hotel rooms raglstered to Alorzo, {Ex. 08

n When Rosas was asked about the reason for Alonzo's 2010 hotel ropm, Rosas responded that Alonze was
on the Christmas pommittee, [Ex, B 31 297}
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V. Analycls

The standard of proof for establishing 2 charge as proven is a preponderance of evidence.

Rules and Procedures for Operation of the independent Review Board, Para. He) ("[i]n order to

be sustained, the proposed. . . charges . . . contained in the Investigative Report, must be

supported by a preponderance of reliable evidence.”); United States v, 18T [Sitnpsont, 931 F.

Supp. 1074, 1089 (5.D.N.Y. 19%6), aff'd, 120 F.3d 341 f2d Cir. 1997). {Ex. 48 at 12) 9

A, Rosas and Alonzo Embezzled Local 435 Funds

The IBT Constitution prohibits embezzlement and conversion of union funds. BT Const.
Art XIX, Section 7{b}{3}. The standard for embezzlemert under federal tabor faw, 23 U.5.C. § 501
fe), is instructive in interpreting the 1BT Constitutional provisions. Investigations Officer v.
Calagna, Decision of the Independant Administrator at 11 {May 9, 1991), aff'd, United States v.
IBT, 777 F. Supp. 1123 (S.0.N.Y. 1991}. For an individual to be found to have embezzled union
funds, it must be established that he acted with fraudulent intent to deprive Local 439 of its

funds. See, United States v. Welch, 728 F.2d 1113, 1118 {Bth Cir. 1984) {under any test, union

officials vinlate Section 501{c) only when they possess fraudulent intent to deprive the Union of
its funds”); Investigations Officer v. Caldwell, Decision of the Independent Administrator at 7
{February 9, 1893}, aff'd, 831 F. Supp. 278, 283 {5.0.N.Y. 1993),

Determining whether a union official had the reguisite intent to embezzie Is done, “on
the basis of 'all of the evidence considersd together’ and ‘in light of all the surrounding

circumstances. United States v. Welich, supra, 728 F.2d at 1119 {quoting Unlted States v.

T — o S—

Maorisseite, 342 U.5. 246, 275-76 (1851)). "[It is permissible to infer from circumstantial

e i addition, Article XIX, Section 1ie) of the [BT Constitution provides that internal union disciplinary
charges tmust be proven by a preponderance of the evidenca. [Ex. 3]
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avidence the existence of intent.” United States v, Logal 560, 780 F.2d 267, 284 {3d Cir. 1585}

[citation omitted)
The Courl of Appeals for the Second Circuit has stated that key factors in determining the
issiee of fravdulent intent are whether there was authorization fromm the union for the

expanditure and & benefit to the union for the payments at issue. See, e.g, United States v.

Butler, 954 F.2d 114, 118 [2d Cir. 1992). Rosas’ and Alonzo's charges were for personal and not
union purposes. All charges not for a union purpose were not authorized under the Bylaws.
Rosas and Alonzo were fiduciaries with respect to Locai 439 funds, 22 U.5.C. §501{a}. As
such, they had an obligation to only spend Local money for union purposes. Sectlon 501{a}
provides in pertinent part:
The officers, agents . .. of 2 labor organizetion occupy positions of trust in relation
to such organization and lts members as a group. Itis, therefore, the duty of each
such person, taking inte atcount the special preblems and functions of a labor
organization, to hold its money and property solely for the henefit of the
organization and its membears and to manage, invest, and expend the same in
sccordance with its constitution and bylaws and any resolutions of tha governing
bodies adopted thereunder. . .
29L1.5.C, §501({a). Thissection imposes a broad fiduciary obligation on Local officers. 3ee United

States v, Bane, 583 F.2d 832, 834-35 (6™ Cir. 1578) cert. denied, 433 U.5. 1127 {1975), Sectlon

501 addresses the misuse of union funds and property In all forms. See Stelitng v. International

Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1547, 587 F.2d 1379, 1386-87 (3% Cir. 1978}

2. Rosas’ intent to Embezzle
Rosas” fraudulent intent fo embezzie was demonstrated from the circumstances
surrounding his causing the Local to pay approximately 535,593 for charges without a unlon

purpose, including paying Speckman for $15,928 in more unused vacation than he was entitled
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tn, Speckman’s 53,484 Hawali vacation, 511,854 for Local area meals, $439 for out of town meals
charged while raceiving an allowance that covered such meals and $3,826 in additional personal
charges. (Exs. 618, 51, 65, 66, 527, 75} Personal matters, vaguely described as “union” Issues,
inciuding charges with Rosas’ girlfriend and her child, an outside vendor friend and Local
employees for lunch together in town, were not union purposes. Even if sometimes business
may have been discussed, the charges would still not be for a union purpose.

Rosas intentionally failed to provide the required statements of unlon purpose. His
omissions were admissions there were none. Rosas claimed he chose to conduct unjon business
in restaurants rather than at the Local's offices, {Ex. 8 at 32-33, 106-121} This was a personal
choice and not for a unjon purpose. He received a personal benefit by causing the Local to pay
these charges. He did not document the charges as required by the Bylaws, the [BT and Federal
law. |n additicn to the evidence of intent from the violations of the Bylaws, and efforts to conceal
by not providing necessary information, Rosas’ listing false attendees and doubie-dipping
Illuminated his intent to defraud. On at least five accasions, Rosas wrote that an individual was
present for a restaurant charge when that individual denied being present. (Exs. 285, 302, 368;
Ex. 14 at 45, 48-45, 73-74)*1°

Given the lack of evidence of any union purpose, Rosas and Alonzo were obligated to

demonstrate how these facially personal charges benefitted the union. United States v. IBT

a0 Three of these restaurant charges were on Decetnber 30, 2011 #t the Buckhorn Exchange in Denver,
saturday, Novarnber 17, 2012 at Las Casuelas and December 8, 2012 at the Hllton bar. [Exs. 205, 286} Rosas
indicated that e La Cruz was present for these thres charges. {Exs. 295, 286) De La Cruz denied being present far
these three restaurant charges, (Ex. 14 a1 46-49, 72-74) Simfiarly, Rosas indicated that Alolse was present for a
December 9, 2012 charge at Scoms’s Restaurant and a june 25, 2013 charge at the Hard Rock Cafe Lake Tahoe.
{Fxs. 255, 302) Aloise denled being present at these restaurgnts with Rosas on those dates. {Ex. 368}
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[Xenny, Moreno and Guitloryl, slip op, at 10, {5.D.N.Y. 2014] aff'd, 2015 U.S. App. LEXIS 774 {2d

Cir. January 20, 2015}, Rosas and Alonzo failed to present any evidence to show that these
challenged charges, which on their face appeared to be personal, were for a union purpose.
when given at all, thelr vague descriptions of union purpose were not adeguate.

Their intent te embezzie was further evidenced by their failure to submit itemized
receipts, as the Bylaws explicitly required. (Ex. 5 at 6} These Bylaw violations asststad them

conceating the true nature of the charges. United States v. IBT [Wilson, Dickens and Weber], 787

F. Supp. 345, 352 (5.D.N.Y. 1992) (failure to comply with {the Bylaws] gives rise to an inference of
fraudulent intent} aff’d, 978 F.2d 68 {2d Cir, 1992). As described above, further evidencing his
intent to embezzle, Rosas did not submit any receipt to the Local for several charges including
the bar bill after the 2011 Christmas party, charges at the Ritz Carfton in New Orieans and at
Caesars in Las Vegas. Rosas’ Intent to embezzle was further demonstrated by his false written
staternent to the IRB, his faise testimony during his IRE sworn examination about the bar bill and
his inability in his testimony to provide union purposes for other charges.

e Alonzo’s Intent to Embezzle

Alonzo's fraudulent inteni to embezzle was demonstrated from the circurnstances
surroundlng hls causing the Local to pay approximately $21,478 for charges without a union
purpose, {Exs. 621, 528, 310) Personal matters, vaguely described as “undon” issues, including
charges with Alonzo's spouse, brother-in-law and 2 retired friend were not union purposes. The
intentinnal omission from many of his submissions for paymant of the reguired information as
to the unlon purpose of the charges was evidence he knew the truthful appropriate information

waould have disclosed he was embezzling.  In addition, the lack of authorization for benefits to
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himself such as the foothall tickets, hotel rooms and admission to parties evidenced his intent to
embezzle,

At best, Alonzo claimed he chose to cenduct union business In restaurants rather than at
the Local’s offices. {Ex. 10 at 38) There was no necessity to do so. He received a personal benefit
by causing the Local to pay these charges. He did not document the charges as required by the
Bylaws, the |BT and Feders| faw,

Given the lack of evidence of any union purpose, Alonzo was obligated to demonstrate

how these facizlly personal charges benefitted the union. United States v. 18T [Kenny, Moreno

and Guifleryl, supra at 10. Alonzo falied to present any evidence to show that these thalienged
charges, which on their face appeared to be personal, were necessary for a union purpose. When
given at all, his vague descriptions of union purpose were net adequate.

In additlon, both of their intents to embezzle were further evidenced by their failure to
submit itemized recelpts, as the Bylaws explicitly required. (Ex. 5 at 8) These Bylaw violations

assisted them concealing the true nature of the charges. United States v. |BT [Wilson, Dickens

and Weber], 787 F, Supp. 345, 352 (5.D.N.Y. 1992) {fallure to comply with [the Bylaws] gives rise

to an inference of fraudulent Intent) aff'd, 978 F.2d 68 (2d Cir. 1352},

Wi. PROPOSED CHARGES

It Is recommended that Rosas and Alonzo be charged as follows:

A, Rosas and Alonze

1. Charge Orie
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while officers of Local 429 and the sole signatories of tocal checks, you brought
reproach upon the |BT, breached your fiduciary duties and violated the tocal's Bylaws
restrictions on the expenditure of Local funds in violation of Article |1, Sectlon 2{a} and Article
XIX, Section 7{b){1) and {2} of the |BT Constitution to wit:

Between approximately March 2008 and May 2014, while offlcers of Local 439, as
detailed above, you caused the Local to spend $845 853 for cars, events and merchandise
without the Executive Board approvals Sections 14{B){8) and 16(C) of the Local’s Bylaws
reguired. You also caused the Local to spend $568,761 in substantial purchases for events and
merchandise over 51,000 without members’ approvals as Section 14{8)(8) of the Bylaws

requlred.

Z. Charpe Two

while officers and members of Local 439, you brought reproach upon the BT, expasad
the Local to the risk of civil and criminal penalties and interfered with the Local’s legal and
recordkeeping obligations under federal iaw in violation of Article I, Section 2{a} and Article
XiX, Sactlon 7{b}{2) and (5} of the IBT Constitution, to wit:

Between approximately 2008 and 2013, while Secretary-Traasurer and President of
Local 439 and required signatories on the Local’s Form LM-2s, as described above, you failed to
malntain records of the disposition of aver $72,000 in Local assets including televisions, other
electronic itemns, liguor and gift cards the Locat purchased. Such records were requirad to be
mzintained pursuant to 29 U.S5.C. §431, 436 and 438. Your failure to comply with your record
keeping obligations under federal law exposed the Local to the risk of civil and criminal actions.

25 U.5.C, §5439, 440,
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B. Kozas

1. Charee Three

While the Secretary-Treasurer and g member of Local 438, you brought reproach upon
the IBT and breached your fiduciary duties by engaging in a pattern ef criminal conduct,
including racketeering acts of embazzlement, mail fraud, soliciting and receiving a thing of value
fram an employer in violation of the Taft Hartley Act and recelving an illegal loan from the Local
in violation of Article 11, Section 2[a) and Arficle XI¥, Section 7{b{1), (2}, {3), (11} and (13) of the

87 Constitution, to wit;

while the Secretary-Treasurer of Local 439, as described above, you breached your
fiduciary duties and embezzled approximately $35,593 frorm the Local when you knowingly
caused the Local to pay 2 business agent upen retirement 515,328 in payments the agent was
not entitled to; caused the Local to give the retired agent 3 Hawalian vacatian costing 53,484
without authority and without a Unfon purpose; caused the Local to pay appraximately 511,854
for Lacal area meals without a union purpose; caused the Local to pay for expenses you
ncurred that were covered by sllowances you received and caused the Local to pay 53,826 in

additicnal personal charges.

tn other acts of racketeering, as described above, you violated the mail fraud statute
when you defrauded California of tax due and owing with the assistance of the owner of a
vendor from which you caused the Loczl to make substantial unavthorized purchases. You
solicited the owner of Stars and Stripes to make a false representation to California on a farm

filed with the siate to assist you in not paying tex due, The assistance the employer provided
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you to defraud California was a thing of valug you solicited and received from an employer in
violation of 18 U.5.C. §186(b}. 1n addition, you knowingly paid the employer representative
owner & price for a motorcycie less than its market value In violation of the statute. Stars and
Stripes employed members of another Teamster Local.

In addition, 25 described above, you reguested and received from the Local aver $2,000
in loans in violation of 20 U.5.C. §503 through a patiern of taking payments from the Local

allegadly for advances on vacation you had not yet earned.

C. Alanzo

i, Charge Four

While President and a member of Local 439, you violated the |BT Constitution and
breached your fiduciary duties ta the Local and its members, brought reproach upon the 1BT
and ambezzled In violation of Article I, Section 2{a) and Article XX, Section 7{b}{1}{2] and (3} of

the {BT Constitution, to wit:

While the President of Local 438, as described above, you breached your fiduciary duties
and embezzled appraximately $21,478 from the Local when you knowingly caused the Local to
pay a business agent upon retirement $15,328 in payments the agent was not entitled to;
caused the Local to pay approximately $3,808 for Local area meals without a union purpose;

and caused the Local to pay $1,741 in additional personal charges.
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